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an Yue Technology Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries ( the
“Man Yue Tech Group” or “Group”) were
founded in 1979 and was listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange in 1997. The Group’s core
business is the manufacture and sale of high technology
electronic components, including Aluminum Electrolytic
Capacitors (“E-Caps”), Conductive Polymer Aluminum
Solid Capacitors (“Polymer Caps”) and other innovative
electronic components.

The Group offers a full range of E-Caps products which
satisfy the needs of its global customers, consisting
mainly of the world’s leading information technology,
telecommunications, electrical and electronic brands.
In 2006, the Group launched an innovative electronic
component known as the Polymer Cap, and has advanced
to become a major global vendor. The Group continued
its pioneering course by unveiling a new type of capacitor
in 2009, the Electric Double Layer Capacitors (“EDLC"),
which basically acts as an energy storage device in
electrical or electronic products.

Over the years, the Group has fostered creativity and
inventiveness among the well-trained and highly qualified
research and development (“R&D") professionals who have
enabled the Group to develop new and groundbreaking
products.

As the key manufacturer of E-Caps and Polymer Caps,
the Group owns the renowned SAMXON® and X-CON®
brands, both are respected brands for their advanced
technology and superior quality, backed by the Group’s
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strong R&D capabilities and established global network.
Enhancing their market attraction, all of the Group’s
products comply with RoHS and environmental protection
requirements specific to different global markets.

The Man Yue Tech Group is headquartered in Hong
Kong and operates state-ofthe- art E-Caps manufacturing
facilities in Dongguan, Wuxi and Jiangxi of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), with a total production
capacity of over 1 billion pieces per month. The Group also
owns three aluminum foil factories located in Qingyuan,
Urumgi and Yaan of the PRC producing aluminum foil
forits own consumption. The Group has distribution
offices located in Hong Kong, the PRC and Taiwan,
complemented by worldwide distribution channels.

AN ACTIVE PARTICIPANT IN
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Man Yue Tech Group is fully committed to
environmental sustainability both for products and
operations. Accordingly, all of its products are halogen free
and RoHS compliant. In addition, all production facilities
of the Group conform to local environmental regulations,
as it has obtained relevant certification where appropriate.
Not content to passively observe regulations, the Group
is actively pursuing opportunities to directly contribute
to environmental protection. The Group has introduced
and continued to develop solutions for enhancing energy
efficiency, such as capacitors found in LED lamps and
high-efficiency lighting and new storage devices for use
in environmentally friendly products. The Group remains
steadfast in its support of environmental protection,
consistent withits commitment to be a good corporate
citizen.
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Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda
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Financial Highlights
B RE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
HZ12A31BLLEE

Operating Results

Revenue WA

Gross profit EH

EBITDA EBITDA

Net profit/(loss) smAl (&8 ) F e
Per Share Data sRER
Earnings/(loss) per share-basic &R ZF|/(E518) — FA
Net assets per share BREEFE
Financial Position B AR

Total assets BEHEE

Net assets BEFE

Financial Ratios At =

Gross profit margin EVIES

EBITDA to Revenue EBITDAMGWAE At
Net gearing ratio FEELE

2017
20175
HK$'000
FExT

1,275,923
280,046
152,276

45,205

HK cents
AL
10.13

310.28

HK$’000
FTET

2,753,087

1,475,539

%
B

21.9
11.9
37.7

2016
20165
HK$ 000
FBT

987,027
163,552
101,368
(13,102)

HK cents
AL

(3.13)
276.01

HK$'000
THET

2,475,167
1,312,575

%
B

16.6
10.3
41.8

% changes

increase/

(decrease)
B

#,/ ()

%

Bkt

29.27
71.23
50.22

n/a

%
AT

n/a
12.42

%
Aot

11.23
12.42

%
B

31.93
15.53
(9.81)
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Financial Highlights

MR RE
REVENUE EBITDA o
A AT FIEXZH » BURTERBHEAEF
For the year ended 31 December For the year ended 31 December
HE12ANBILEE HE1NANBILEE
HKS$' million & &E T HKS$" million B&7#&7T
(=722 1,275.9 210.2

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
GROSS PROFIT NET ASSETS PER SHARE - BASIC
EF BREEFE-EX
For the year ended 31 December As at 31 December
HZE12A31BILFE ®12A31A

HKS$' million & &8 HK$’ million & &7
291.1
280.0 327.4
3gl2 310.3
293.2
276.0
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

2017 was an encouraging year for the Group. Not only the
Group's sales revenue has increased by 29.3%, the Group
has also achieved a successful turnaround with a net profit
of HK$45,205,000 (2016: loss of HK$13,102,000). In 2017,
the economy in Mainland China had achieved a solid growth
momentum and the economy in Europe and America had
also gradually recovered, leading to a notable improvement in
consumer sentiment and overall demand in electronics market.
Benefiting from the recovery in global economy coupled with
the change in business strategy by focusing on the development
of diversified market sectors as well as customers with market
leadership, the Group has successfully achieved a remarkable
growth in sales revenue during the Year.

The Group has long been well-known as a major global supplier
of E-Caps and Polymer Caps and, in particular, its flagship brands
— SAMXON® and X-CON® have maintained a very strong market
position in the niche segment. Riding on its brands’ leading
market position in providing pioneered and high quality capacitors,
the Group has also further enhanced its global supply chain
diversification and customer-orientated product development
with an aim to achieve a stronger growth in sales revenue. The

SAVE OIL, SAVE MINERALS,
FRESH AIR, GREEN FUTURE

TOMORROW

STARTS HERE

Ms Kee Chor Lin
ERELL

Chairman /&
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Group's redirection of its business focus by penetrating into the
global supply chain of emerging market sectors as well as leading
customers in the industries such as new energy, automobile,
LED lighting and consumer electronics etc has eventually led to a
significant increase in its sales revenue during the Year.

To further place itself above the competition in the ever-changing
electronics landscape, the Group has exerted great effort in
advancing its R&D and bringing forth new ideas for products’
development. With its endless effort in R&D, the Group has
successfully established a multi-product platform with high-
technology products such as MLPC, EDLC and EDLC modules over
the years. One of the Group’s high-technology products, MLPC, is
now widely used in central processing unit related products and,
has already penetrated into the specialty server market in which
efficient power use is required to support massive and around-
the-clock data computing. In recognition of its endeavour and
accomplishment in R&D as well as innovation in technology, the
Group has been presented with “The Hong Kong Innovation
and Technology Innovative Technology Achievement Award —
Innovative Technology” by Hong Kong Federation of Innovative
Technologies and Manufacturing Industries in December 2017.

In addition to the consumer electronics market, the Group
is also committed to deliver new products to echo the major
development direction in environmental protection of the Central
People’s Government. EDLC and EDLC modules have therefore
been developed to provide a total solution for industrial power
management and energy-storage applications. The development
of these new lines of products have now reached out to a wide
spectrum of applications in the new energy and energy saving
related industries and areas; diverging from new energy vehicles,
smart grid, wind turbine to energy regeneration system for
rail transportation and port crane. The Group believes that the
development of electronics and new energy related industries will
continue to be overwhelming in the upcoming years. As such, the
Group has always equipped itself to keep in step with the latest
technologies which can drive the market.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express gratitude to all our employees for their loyalty and
dedication and the continuing support from our customers,
suppliers, banks and shareholders.

Kee Chor Lin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2018

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER W RO

RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS
e Revenue increased by 29.3% to HK$1,275,923,000 for the
Year, as compared with HK$987,027,000 for last year

e Gross profit margin significantly improved to 21.9% for the
Year, as compared with 16.6% for last year

° EBITDA increased to HK$152,276,000, representing an
EBITDA margin of 11.9% for the Year, as compared with
10.3% for last year

. Profit for the Year was HK$45,205,000, as compared with a
loss of HK$13,102,000 for last year

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s revenue for the Year increased by 29.3% to
HK$1,275,923,000 (2016: HK$987,027,000), as compared with
that of last year. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable
to a successful change in the Group’s business strategy by
focusing on diversified market sectors as well as the gradual
recovery of the global economy which had a positive impact to
the electronics components industry.

Benefiting from the economies of scale in production resulting
from the increase in revenue, gross profit for the Year rose sharply
to HK$280,046,000 (2016: HK$163,552,000), representing an
increase of 71.2%, as compared with that of last year. Gross profit
margin had also improved significantly to 21.9% from 16.6% of
last year.

During the Year, the Group had recognised a loss arising from
changes in the fair values of derivative financial instruments of
HK$2,898,000 (2016: profit of HK$2,198,000). The derivative
financial instruments concerned referred to certain long term
interest rate swap contracts entered into by the Group in 2009
and 2010 with the intention to hedge against the Group's future
borrowing costs. The Group had to account for the changes in
the fair values of these financial instruments in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss at the year end.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI EEER AT

HEERE
o REFEUALNN29.3%F1,275,923,000/8 7T
it = 81 5987,027,00075 7
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e EBITDAE in & 152,276,000 T » Bl FE
EBITDALL R A11.9% » ¥ EF8IA10.3%

o REEH A AA5,205,00058 7T ¢ M HL = BIER
BE51813,102,000/8 7T

py JE) L
REBRAFEZWAREF EF293% &
1,275,923,0007% 7t (2016 4F : 987,027,000/8 7T )
HREEREZ LI TENR I ER REER - R
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The Group’s EBITDA increased by 50.2% to HK$152,276,000
(2016: HK$101,368,000), representing an EBITDA margin of
11.9% (2016: 10.3%).

Following the sharp rise in gross profit, the Group had a
turnaround financial performance for the Year with a profit of
HK$45,205,000 in contrast with a loss of HK$13,102,000 for the
previous year. The Board did not recommend final dividend for the
Year (2016: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Market overview

In 2017, the global economy had been recovering at a good pace
and thus, led to a revitalisation of the electronics market and its
supply chain. Being one of the major global suppliers of electronic
components, the Group offers a broad range of products, namely
E-Caps, Polymer Caps, MLPC and EDLC, which are widely used
in various electronic products and energy saving applications.
Benefiting from the gradual recovery of the global economy
together with its adoption of new business strategies by focusing
on the development of potential emerging market sectors and
customers with market leadership, the Group had an excellent
recovery in sales momentum in the consumer electronic and
industrial sectors with an increase in revenue of 29.3% during the
Year.

Management Discussion and Analysis
AR ESEE

7K £ B EBITDA 1 A150.2% & 152,276,0007%5 7T (2016
F : 101,368,000% 7t ) * BVEBITDALL & & 11.9%
(20164F : 10.3%) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SR ECIS SR

Environmental protection has been one of the major concerns
of the Central People’s Government. According to the National
Energy Administration, it is estimated that the Central People’s
Government has planned to spend more than RMB2.5 trillion
in the 13th Five-Year Plan on renewable power sources, aiming
at the establishment of a sustainable and low-carbon energy
country. As one of the few global suppliers with the capability to
produce ESS products comprising EDLC and EDLC modules, and
related solutions for energy-saving and storage applications, the
Group has therefore been well positioned to capture the business
opportunities arising from this emerging market.

Operation review

Following the revitalisation of the electronics market caused by
the solid global economic growth together with its adjustment in
sales strategy, the Group was able to record a robust sales growth
of 29.3% during the Year. Furthermore, the Group's results had
been turnaround into net profit of HK$45,205,000 (2016: loss of
HK$13,102,000) for the Year mainly attributable to the increase
in revenue and improvement in gross profit margin resulting
from the enjoyment of economies of scale in production. During
the Year, the Group had put strong focus on the fast growing
industries such as new energy, automobile, consumer electronics
and LED lighting etc and this new business strategy proved to
be successful by capturing larger and more sizeable orders from
the leading customers in that field. The Group will continue to
go forward with this business direction and expect to have a
sustainable business growth in the upcoming future.

In view of the inevitable trend of the Central People’s
Government'’s pursue in environmental protection, the Group has
therefore devoted enormous research and development effort
in the development of ESS product series which provide a total
solution for the industrial power management and energy saving
and storage applications for the use in new energy vehicles,
smart grid, wind turbine and energy regeneration system for rail
transportation and port crane. During the Year, orders had already
been placed by various industry leaders to test the products
on site. As one of the very few suppliers with the capability to
produce ESS products and as a result, it is well positioned to
capture the business opportunities in this market sector.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI EEER AT
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During the Year, the Group had further increased its equity
shareholding in a non-wholly owned Taiwanese subsidiary,
Luminous Town Electric Co., Ltd. by 8.0% at a total consideration
of TWD53,350,000. As a result, the Group has currently an
effective shareholding in Luminous Town of approximately
66.89% as at 31 December 2017.

On 8 May 2017, Searange Investment Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, sold an investment property at China
Aerospace Centre, No. 143 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong at a consideration of HK$75,000,000. The disposal
would provide a good opportunity for the Group to realise
its investment at a gain, and to further enhance its financial
position with more working capital and other possible investment
opportunities.

On 19 June 2017, the Group entered into a non-legally binding
MOU with an independent third party whose shares are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in respect of a possible disposal of
assets held by its wholly-owned subsidiary used for the production
of aluminum foil in China in return for an issue of shares by the
latter party. Since the Group could not reach an agreement with
the counterparty on the major terms and conditions in relation to
the disposal of such assets, the MOU had therefore been mutually
agreed by both parties for a termination on 6 September 2017.
The Group is in the opinion that this termination would not affect
its normal business operations and financial position.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEET RN
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEET W R DM

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's cash and cash
equivalents amounted to HK$312,702,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$283,116,000 and time deposits with banks amounted to
HK$7,775,000), most of which were either denominated in United
States dollars, Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars. Total outstanding
bank borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$847,079,000
(31 December 2016: HK$809,748,000) which comprised mainly
bank loans and trade finance facilities. The bank borrowings with
maturities falling due within one year and in the second to the
fifth year amounted to HK$718,795,000 and HK$128,284,000
respectively (31 December 2016: HK$559,815,000 and
HK$249,933,000 respectively).

Total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2017 comprising bank loans and trade finance facilities were
HK$847,079,000 (31 December 2016: HK$809,748,000). Most
of these borrowings were either denominated in United States
dollars or Hong Kong dollars to which the interest rates applied
were primarily subject to floating interest rate.

As at 31 December 2017, the net gearing ratio (a ratio of the sum
of total bank borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and time
deposits with banks then divided by total equity) of the Group
was 37.7% (31 December 2016: 41.8%).

As at 31 December 2017, the net current assets of the Group
were HK$509,822,000 (31 December 2016: HK$480,048,000),
which comprised of current assets of HK$1,610,825,000 (31
December 2016: HK$1,345,713,000) and current liabilities of
HK$1,101,003,000 (31 December 2016: HK$865,665,000),
representing a current ratio of 1.46 (31 December 2016: 1.55).

The Group's financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars. However, most of the Group’s transactions were
conducted in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United States dollars
and Japanese Yen. The Group is aware of the potential foreign
exchange currency risk that may arise from the fluctuation of
exchange rates between Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United
States dollars and Japanese Yen. In order to mitigate these risks,
the Group had entered into foreign currency forward contracts to
manage its foreign currency exposure.
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OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

The global economy has already shown good signs of recovery
in 2017 and in particular, with encouraging sentiment prevailing
in the electronics market. Following the rapid economic growth
in 2017, the global and Chinese electronics market is expected
to stay booming in 2018. As such, the Group will continue to
penetrate into the global supply chain of those emerging market
sectors whilst remain its focus on the customers of international
leading electronic brands with an aim to boost both sales revenue
and profitability.

To cater for the potential sales growth ahead, the Group has
already embarked on the construction of a new manufacturing
facility in Qingyuan High-tech Industrial Development Zone of
Guangdong province in China. The construction of this new
production base is expected to be completed by the end of 2018
and will be used for the future expansion of the Group’s MLPC
business.

Meanwhile, the Group is delighted that several applications
of EDLC and EDLC modules have been well-received by the
market and entered into the stage of commercialisation. Since
the determination of the Central People’s Government in
environmental protection via energy saving and reduction of
carbon emission is unalterable, the Group is thus optimistic that it is
well positioned to capture the ample business opportunities arising
from these new energy saving and storage related products.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed 60 staff in Hong
Kong (31 December 2016: 62) and employed a total work force
of 3,254 (31 December 2016: 2,574) inclusive of all staff in
Mainland China and overseas offices. The Group’s remuneration
policy is built on the principle of equitability with incentive-
based, motivating, performance oriented and market-competitive
remuneration packages for its employees. Remuneration packages
are reviewed on a regular basis. Apart from salary, other staff
benefits include provident fund contributions, medical insurance
coverage and performance-based bonuses.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Board of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Kee Chor Lin (Mrs Chan), aged 69, is the co-founder of the
Group. She has been the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company since October 2008. Mrs Chan is the leader of the
Group for corporate development, overall planning, strategies
and policies making. She is at present a director of several major
operating subsidiaries of the Group and also a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mrs Chan is one of the well-known industrialists
in Hong Kong and possesses near 40 years of experience in the
business of electronic components. She has been awarded the
Asian Outstanding Leaders Award for Women issued by Asian
College of Knowledge Management in 2017. Mrs Chan is the
mother of Mr Chan Yu Ching, Eugene, the Managing Director
and an Executive Director of the Company and Ms Chan Lok Yan,
Lorraine, a member of the senior management of the Company.

Chan Yu Ching, Eugene, aged 42, joined the Group in 1998. He
has been an Executive Director of the Company since December
2007 and the Managing Director of the Company since October
2008. Mr Chan is responsible for overseeing the business
development, policies making and implementation of the Group.
He is also a director of certain major operating subsidiaries of
the Group and a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr Chan is currently a director of Zhu Hai Higrand
Electronics Technology Co. Ltd. in which its shares are listed on
the National Equities Exchange and Quotations in China. He holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Applied Science (majored in Electronic and
Electrical Engineering) from the University of British Columbia,
Canada. Mr Chan has over 20 years of experience in the industry
of electronic components and received the Young Industrialist
Awards of Hong Kong in 2008. He is the son of Ms Kee Chor Lin,
the Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company and the
brother of Ms Chan Lok Yan, Lorraine, a member of the senior
management of the Company.
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Chan Tat Cheong, Alan, aged 57, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since October 2016. He joined the
Group in May 2016 and is the Finance Director of the Group. Mr
Chan is primarily responsible for overseeing the Group’s business
development, finance and accounting, merger and acquisition,
and investor relations. He has over 30 years of experience in
the fields of accounting, auditing and financial management.
Mr Chan holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting and financial
analysis from the University of Newcastle Upon Tyne, the United
Kingdom. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and also a member of
the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Mr Chan was
previously an executive director and chief financial officer of Ka
Shui International Holdings Limited.

Wong Ching Ming, Stanley, aged 60, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since January 2011. He joined the Group
in 2003 and is also the Business Development Director of the
Group. He is primarily responsible for managing the global sales,
marketing strategies and operations of the Group. Mr Wong has
over 27 years of experience in sales and marketing fields and had
held a senior management position in an internationally well-
known information technology company. He holds a Bachelor of
Science (Aeronautical Engineering) degree and a Master of Science
degree from the Imperial College of Science, University of London.
Mr Wong is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Li Sau Hung, Eddy, GBS, JP, aged 63, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since October 1996. He
is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee, a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. Dr Li has over 30 years of experience in the
manufacturing industry. He is the president of Hong Kong
Economic & Trade Association Ltd. Dr Li holds a Master’s degree
in Business Administration and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in
Economics. He was awarded The Ten Outstanding Young Persons
in 1991 and the Young Industrialists of Hong Kong in 1993. Dr
Li is currently an independent non-executive director of each of
Chuang’s China Investments Limited and Oriental Watch Holdings
Limited. He was previously a member of the National Committee
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference from
1998 to 2018 and the president of The Chinese Manufactures’
Association of Hong Kong from 2015 to 2017.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management
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Lo Kwok Kwei, David, aged 58, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since November 1999. He is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member
of the Audit committee and the Nomination committee of the
Company. Mr Lo holds the degrees of Bachelor of Laws and
Bachelor of Jurisprudence from the University of New South
Wales, Australia. He was admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme
Court of New South Wales, Australia in 1984. Mr Lo has been a
member of The Law Society of Hong Kong since 1987. He has
been practising as a solicitor in Hong Kong for over 29 years
and is a partner of David Lo & Partners. Mr Lo is currently an
independent non-executive director of each of eSun Holdings
Limited and Futong Technology Development Holdings Limited.

Mar, Selwyn, aged 82, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since September 2004. He is also
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Mar graduated from
the London School of Economics, University of London. He is a
fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of the
United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr Mar has been active in commercial and industrial
undertakings over the past 30 years. He is currently a partner of
Nexia Charles Mar Fan & Co. and a director of Nexia Charles Mar
Fan Limited. Mr Mar is currently an independent non-executive
director of each of China Everbright International Limited,
Minmetals Land Limited and PanAsialum Holdings Company
Limited. He was previously an independent non-executive director
of China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited, Jiu Rong Holdings
Limited and Standard Bank Asia Limited. In respect of public
services, Mr Mar was the president of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (formerly known as the “Hong Kong
Society of Accountants”) in 1991, a member of the Appeals Panel
of the Securities and Futures Commission and a member of Board
of Governors of the Chinese International School. He is at present
an Honorary Fellow and Honorary Court Member of the Lingnan
University.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chan Lok Yan, Lorraine, aged 40, is the Business Control
Director of the Group. Ms Chan joined the Group in 2001
and is actively involving in the setting of the Group’s business
strategies, reengineering the Group's business processes and
the establishment of business control systems. She has extensive
experience in marketing, business operations and information
systems management. Ms Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from the University of Toronto, Canada. She is the daughter of
Ms Kee Chor Lin, the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company and the sister of Mr Chan Yu Ching, Eugene, the
Managing Director of the Company.

Hsu Dau Shin, aged 62, is the General Manager of the Group's
manufacturing facility in Dongguan. Mr Hsu joined the Group in
2014. He is responsible for the management and operation of
the manufacturing facility of the Group in Dongguan. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr Hsu was the chief executive officer of a well
known Taiwan electronic company and led it to be listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from the University of New Hampshire, United
States.

Lui Man Lung, Johnny, aged 47, is the Assistant Business
Development Director of the Group. Mr Lui joined the Group
in 1996 and is mainly responsible for the development of the
Group's business in the Greater China and Taiwan region. He has
over 23 years of experience in the sales and marketing fields. Mr
Lui holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from the
Lingnan University, Hong Kong.

Ng Sui Yin, aged 49, is the Company Secretary of the Company
and the Financial Controller of the Group. Mr Ng joined the Group
in 2015 and is responsible for managing the Group’s finance,
internal control and management, and regulatory compliance.
Prior to joining the Group, he had held senior positions in different
companies in Hong Kong. Mr Ng has over 20 years of experience
in the areas of finance, audit, tax, treasury management, business
development and bankruptcy. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of Q Technology (Group) Company Limited.
Mr Ng is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He holds
honours diploma in accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan
College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) and
a Master’s degree in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from City University of Hong Kong.
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Pan Su Qing, aged 56, is the Vice Chief Engineer of the Group’s
Research & Development Department. Ms Pan joined the Group
in 1996. She is responsible for product development, product
design, technical support and product cost management of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms Pan had worked in the
research & development department of a well-known state-
owned National 4321 Factory and engaged in the development
of new aluminum electrolytic capacitor products for commercial
customers and military uses. She graduated from the Nan Chang
Radio Technological School, majored in electronics component
and material in 1983.

Peng Shu Hong, aged 43, is the General Manager of the Group’s
aluminum foil manufacturing facility. Mr Peng joined the Group in
1997 with the responsibility of managing the production, quality
control and research & development. He has over 18 years of
experience in operation management field.

Wai Ching Han, Doris, aged 58, is the Operation Director of
the Group. Ms Wai joined the Group in 2001. She is responsible
for the Group’s human resources strategy and administration
management. Ms Wai had worked in several global corporations
and has over 25 years of experience in human resources and
administration management fields. She holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Business Administration (Human Resources Management) from
the RMIT University of Australia. Ms Wai is a professional member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management.

Wan Wah, aged 47, is the Assistant General Manager of the
Group. Ms Wan rendered her service from 1994 to 2013 and
re-joined the Group in 2015. She is mainly responsible for the
development of the Group’s business. Ms Wan has over 24
years of experience in the sales and marketing fields and has
successfully led sales teams in the development of new and
potential markets for the Group. She holds a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from the University of Sydney, Australia.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. The Company has adopted the code provisions as its
own code of corporate governance practices throughout the Year
with the exception of the following deviation:

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors should be appointed for
a specific term. Currently, all the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term
but are subject to the requirement of retirement by rotation at the
annual general meeting of the Company under Bye-law 87 of the
Bye-laws of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that corporate governance
practices of the Company were in line with the code provisions
as contained in the Corporate Governance Code throughout the
Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct regulating Directors’
dealings in securities of the Company. After having made specific
enquiries by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they
have fully complied with the Model Code throughout the Year.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The number of independent
non-executive director represents more than one-third of the
Board which comply with the requirement under Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules. Their names are identified in various corporate
communications and in all announcements. Biographical details
of the Directors and the relationship among the members of the
Board are disclosed under the section “Board of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 14 to 18 of this Annual Report.
The Board is supported by three board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

Board Composition

The Directors believe that the current composition of the Board
reflects the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Group and the
effective leadership. The Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company are experts in various business sectors. Under Rule
3.10 of the Listing Rules, at least one of the independent non-
executive directors has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Directors are of the opinion that the present structure of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company complies
with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules and can ensure independence
and objectivity and provide checks and balances to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders and the Company.
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Role of the Board

The Board, which is accountable to shareholders for the long-
term performance of the Company, assumes responsibility for its
leadership and control and responsible for promoting the success
of the Company. The Board also directs strategic objectives of the
Company to management and oversees their implementation and
monitors the operational and financial performance of the Group.
Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Group in order to achieve the strategic objectives set by the Board.

Chairman and Managing Director

Clear division of the roles of the Chairman and the Managing
Director is crucial to the effective running of the Board and the
development of the Group. Ms Kee Chor Lin (“Mrs Chan”) and
Mr Chan Yu Ching, Eugene are the Chairman and the Managing
Director of the Company respectively. Their roles and duties are
separate and distinct. Mrs Chan, as the Chairman, takes up the
challenging role of leading the Board to develop and formulate
strategic business development plans whilst Mr Chan Yu Ching,
Eugene, as the Managing Director, implements the policies and
is answerable to the Board for the operations and management
of the Group. Mrs Chan is the mother of Mr Chan Yu Ching,
Eugene.

Board Processes

The Chairman is responsible for drawing up and approving the
agenda for each Board meeting in consultation with all Directors
and the Company Secretary.

Notice of at least 14 days is given of all regular Board meetings
and all Directors are invited to include matters in the agenda.
The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for each Board meeting. The agenda and accompanying
board papers are then sent in full to all Directors at least 3 days
in advance or within reasonable time prior to the relevant Board
meetings.

The minutes of the Board meetings recorded in sufficient detail
the matters considered by the Board. The minutes of all Board
meetings and all other committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are available upon prior appointment for
inspection by any Directors, auditors or any relevant eligible parties
who are entitled to have access to such information.

Directors should declare any conflicts of interest at the Board
meetings and to abstain from voting and be excluded from
counting as quorum in that meeting whenever they have potential
or actual interests in the matters to be discussed and approved at
that meeting and the Board has determined to be material.
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Induction and Training for Directors

Every newly appointed Director of the Company will receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on appointment
to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and business and is fully aware of his responsibilities
under statue and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and
other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies. The Company Secretary also provides the
latest development and changes in the Listing Rules and other
relevant legal and regulatory requirements to the Board from time
to time.

Besides, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director. A specific in-house training seminar was organised
for Directors in March 2017 to update the Board the latest
development and knowledge on value-added tax reform in China.
They also took part in corporate visits and attended seminars
organised by other listed companies or professional organisations
on relevant topics to further enhance their capabilities to carry out
director’s duties.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Appointment of Directors

Pursuant to Bye-law 86(1) of the Bye-laws of the Company, the
Directors shall be elected or appointed in the first place at the
statutory meeting of the members and thereafter at the annual
general meeting. However, the Board shall have the power
from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or, subject to
authorisation by the members in general meeting, as an addition
to the existing Board subject to Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws of
the Company.

Re-election of Directors

Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws of the Company provides that any
Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Pursuant to Bye-
law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years at the annual general meeting.
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Removal of Directors

Under Bye-law 86(4) of the Bye-laws of the Company, the
members may, at any general meeting and by an ordinary
resolution, remove a Director at any time before the expiration of
his period of office provided that the notice of any such meeting
convened for the purpose of removing a Director shall contain
a statement of the intention so to do and be served on such
Director not less than 14 days before the meeting and at such
meeting, such Director shall be entitled to be heard on the motion
for his removal.

Board Diversity

The Company adopted the Board Diversity Policy on 1 August
2013. It aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board of the Company. To achieve a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company encourages increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing an appropriate composition of the Board, the diversity
of the Board has been considered from a number of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The following chart shows the diversity profile of the Board:
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Responsibilities of Directors

The Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to and the
management of the Board. Executive Directors take an active
interest in the affairs of the Company with a good understanding
of the business, and play important roles in the day-to-day
management of business of the Company, whilst Independent
Non-executive Directors participate in the Board meetings and
bring their independent views and judgments on various issues.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has been
appointed with a formal letter of appointment setting out the
terms and conditions of their respective appointment. Prior to
their respective appointment, each of them has submitted a
written confirmation to the Company and the Stock Exchange
confirming their independence and has undertaken to inform the
Company and the Stock Exchange as soon as practicable if there
is any subsequent change of circumstances which may affect their
independence.

Independent Non-executive Directors provide the Group with
a wide range of skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and
qualifications through their regular attendance at various
committee meetings. They bring independent opinion and
judgment on the strategy and policies to ensure that the interests
of all shareholders are taken into account. The Company reviews
annually and obtains confirmation of independence from each of
them during their respective terms of appointment. During the
Year, the Company received written confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors his independence with
reference to Rule 3.13 of the regarding Listing Rules. Based on
the confirmations, the Company considers that all of them are
independent, in compliance with the Listing Rules requirements.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

As mentioned above, the Company has made specific enquiries
to all Directors and all of them confirmed that they had fully
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
during the Year.

Directors and Officers’ Indemnity

The Company continues to subscribe for an insurance policy to
indemnify the Directors and other officers from any losses, claims,
damages, liabilities and expenses, including without limitation, any
proceedings brought against them, arising from the performance
of his duty pursuant to his appointment under his respective
service agreement entered into with the Company. The current
policy has been renewed during the Year and shall be under
regular review.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and to make appropriate
recommendations to the Board;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

Directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the Model Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the operations of the Group, the Board delegated
certain responsibilities to the senior management team of the
Company, including the day-to-day operations of the Group. Such
senior management team is accounted for their performance to
the Board.

During the Year, the Executive Directors frequently met and
discussed with the senior management team in order to maintain
an effective feedback system and enable the Group to react to
changes or problems effectively and efficiently. The Board reviews
its arrangement on delegation of responsibilities and authority
regularly to ensure that such delegations are appropriate in view
of the Company’s prevailing circumstances and that appropriate
reporting system is in place. Each Director is free to seek advice
from and has access to the Company’s senior management team
independently.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently has three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. All the committees are empowered by the Board
under their own terms of reference which have been posted on
the websites of HKEXnews and the Company and are available
for inspection by the shareholders of the Company upon request
made to the Company Secretary.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises three members. All of them are
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely:

Mar, Selwyn (Chairman)
Li Sau Hung, Eddy
Lo Kwok Kwei, David

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has
extensive commercial experience and the Audit Committee has
a suitable mix of expertise in various businesses, financial and
legal sectors and that the composition and establishment of the
Committee complies with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules.
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The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for assisting the
Board in providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the
financial process and internal control system of the Group. It has
the responsibilities and powers set forth in the terms of reference.
The committee members shall meet at least twice every year to
consider the interim and final results prepared by the Board.

During the Year, the Audit Committee had held four meetings,
including a meeting with external auditor for special audit
planning. The attendance records of Directors attending the Audit
Committee meetings are set out on pages 26 and 29 of this
Annual Report. The following is a summary of work performed by
the Audit Committee during the Year:

1. reviewed the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 and for the interim period ended 30 June
2017 before submission to the Board for approval,

2. reviewed and made recommendations to the Board the
appointment of KPMG as the external auditor of the
Company;

3. reviewed the external auditor's engagement fee;

4. reviewed the effectiveness of internal control and risk
management systems of the Group; and

5. reviewed the annual audit plan for 2018.

The Audit Committee held a meeting with external auditor for the
special purpose of audit planning, which meeting also welcomed
the attendance of any Director who had either expertise, or
special interest, in accounting, financial and auditing matters. The
attendance records of this audit planning is set out below:

Directors

Executive Director HITES

Chan Tat Cheong, Alan fRiE &
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Li Sau Hung, Eddy F5K1E

Lo Kwok Kwei, David S

Mar, Selwyn BHRE

ERZBETRAERMDESTERAKEMBEF R
NEEEHIRERERBLER - BRZESHAR
REEPTRECEELES - RREKBATFET
ELWMREH  UWEBRESFERUZIPHREEE

=4
5 -

RAFEER  BREZE8GBRTHREGHE - BRE K
BHNSAZ BB RT 2 BRI BRI SR - EFHER
BLZEEER ZRED IR AFRE26 R F 298 -
NTREZZEENAFERZ TIFHE

1. ERXREFEEMHNEMEZE2016F12A31H
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
including one Executive Director and two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely:

Lo Kwok Kwei, David (Chairman)
Kee Chor Lin
Li Sau Hung, Eddy

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for (i) determining
the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and
senior management, including but without limitation benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments (including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment); (i) making recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive directors; and (iii) establishing a
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration.
The Board consults the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and provides sufficient resources to enable it to discharge its
duties.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee had held a
meeting and the attendance records of Directors attending the
Remuneration Committee meeting are set out on page 29 of
this Annual Report. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were revised and adopted by the Board on 14 March
2018. The following is a summary of work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during the Year:

1. reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management; and

2.  made recommendation to the Board the directors’ fee for
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of
Executive Directors and senior management whose names appear
in the section “Board of Directors and Senior Management” for
the Year:

5,000,001-7,000,000
3,000,001-5,000,000
1,000,001-3,000,000
1-1,000,000

Total #2£¢
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, including
two Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely:

Li Sau Hung, Eddy (Chairman)
Kee Chor Lin

Chan Yu Ching, Eugene

Lo Kwok Kwei, David

Mar, Selwyn

The Nomination Committee is responsible for (i) assisting the Board
to run effectively and the Company can go through a formal,
fair and transparent process of reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the balance and effectiveness of the
Board in the light of the Board Diversity Policy identifying the skills
needed and appointing those who can provide them to the Board;
(i) leading the process for the appointment of Directors; and (iii)
identifying and nominating suitable candidates for appointment to
the Board. The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee had a meeting and
the attendance records of Directors attending the Nomination
Committee meeting are set out on page 29 of this Annual Report.
The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were revised
and adopted by the Board on 3 November 2017. The following
is @ summary of work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the Year:

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,;
2. reviewed the succession planning for the Board; and
3. reviewed and considered the amendments to the terms

of reference of the Nomination Committee and made
recommendation to the Board on the amendment.
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TEERRE
Attendance Records of Directors Attending Board EESeR EEZEEgERBRRBFX

Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and Annual SEEHERDHE

General Meeting

The attendance records of Directors during the Year are as BBZERAEERNZ HEDZSEOT
follows:

Number of Meetings attended/held
g/ BERRY

Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual

Board Committee Committee Committee General

Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting

Directors EZEel ENZEEeE FWZEeeR ReZEee REBEAS

Executive Directors BITES

Kee Chor Lin' g 44 3/4 17 ”n "

Chan Yu Ching, Eugene ' R 414 3/4 - 1 111

Chan Tat Cheong, Alan 2 BiEg? 404 4/4 - - n

Wong Ching Ming, Stanley T 4/4 - - - 1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHTES

Li Sau Hung, Eddy Z5ME 44 4/4 17 ”n "

Lo Kwok Kwei, David EEE 4/4 4/4 1 n 1"

Mar, Selwyn BRR 4/4 4/4 - 17N 11

Notes: Bifat -

1. MsKee Chor Lin and Mr Chan Yu Ching, Eugene attended the Audit 1. X BL+REFEACEEERZEERNEEE
Committee meetings as management representatives as requested RESHHEEREE S -
by the Audit Committee.

2. Mr Chan Tat Cheong, Alan attended all the Audit Committee 2 [hESAL4AEERZECERUNKEEEHEES

meetings as the Finance Director requested by the Audit Committee. REBEEH -
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT BERZE
Directors’ Responsibilities in Financial Reporting EENHRHRRZEFE

The Board is committed to providing a balanced, clear and ZZem HYUAREBFEEE KRARFISELA
comprehensible assessment of the financial performance, position  IF &M A2 ML - EEeEREZETE2S 2B
and prospects of the Group. The Board, assisted by the Audit T W EEBAEEYHEREERF - BEE S SERA
Committee, oversees the financial reporting process of the Group.  EEBFEREEFE LR EREMER 2 528 -
The Audit Committee monitors the integrity of the financial

statements and annual and interim reports and accounts of the

Group.
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All Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group, which shall give a true
and fair view of the financial status of the Group. During the Year,
the Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to event or condition that might cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors prepared the financial statements of the Company on a
going concern basis.

The Company is committed to announce its interim and annual
results as soon as reasonably practicable after the end of the
relevant period and the financial year respectively as required
by the Listing Rules and discloses all such information as
would enable the shareholders of the Company to assess the
performance, financial position and prospects of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities

The responsibilities of external auditor of the Company
with respect to financial reporting are set out in the section
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 53 to 61 of this Annual
Report.

Auditor's Remuneration

The Audit Committee reflected their views to the Board that
the remuneration payable to the Company’s external auditor
was reasonable and fair in all circumstances and there had been
no major disagreement between the external auditor and the
management of the Company during the Year.

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditor,
KPMG, during the Year is set out as follows:

Services rendered

Audit services ZER
Non-audit services IERZEBRTS
Total 45T

PRtz IR %

PREFAVERHEAKEUBHRER AT FEE
BERAFHRRAEER ZHBEARR - RAFER - &
FU BT AT LA AR RBIFEL LR NBRER
S EHRMREBRTAERE - At - E2E
B BREEEREARNB 2B RE -

ARBFHENEHARMMRFEERREER ST
B TERE EMRABRED B AMEF R RFRER
B RBBEAEAHER  UEARBRRFGAE
B2 RE - BB RAR -

ZEE 2 BT
ANBINEZEAN A B SRS 2 BTN AT HRE
S3EEF61 B[ B AZHANRE | —& -

BB BTN &

ERZBECRNEFERY - RRENAARSNEZ
Bz MeHBATAIE - MASE RSN SN R
AR EREWEBABR DU

RAFEE /R A AT R BT RE R E
BA e RsImT

Fees paid/
payable
EN/EA#ME

HK$°000
TR
1,500
680

2,180

Note:

1. The fee paid for non-audit services included review of interim
financial information, work performed on the preliminary
announcement of results of the Group and tax compliance services.

Hit -

1. XFERBRGBZBReRRMTHRMBER - gtA
KBTS EERMMETZ TIERBRE AR -
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board recognises internal audit in assisting the Company to
protect its assets. The internal auditor is neither affiliated with the
employees nor external auditor of the Company in order to ensure
its objectivity, creditability and independence. It reports to the
Audit Committee directly. During the Year, the internal auditor
performed internal audit reviews and the scope of review includes:

1. scoped and planned internal audit activities, including the risk
management system, and agreed with the Audit Committee
and the Board on the scope of review;

2. reviewed of the design of internal control system of the in-
scoped areas by identifying the key controls in place and
determined whether there were significant gaps in the
design of the controls;

3. sample tested the operating effectiveness of the key controls
identified; and

4. reported and made recommendations to the Audit
Committee on the internal control weaknesses identified in
order to enhance their design and operating effectiveness.

The internal auditor submitted the internal audit review reports to
the Audit Committee for review and based on which, the Board
and the Audit Committee were of the view that the key areas of
the Company’s internal control and risk management systems had
been reasonably maintained and considered sound and effective
for the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives and ensuring
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
remain sound and effective. The Audit Committee assists the
Board in fulfilling its responsibility. The tasks of risk management
and internal control of the Company during the Year had
been performed by management. Management provided a
confirmation to the Board that the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company remained sound and effective
throughout the Year.

Risk Management Philosophy

The Board recognises that risk taking is unavoidable as it is part
of the Company’s business. With appropriate risk management
and continuous risk monitoring policies in place, risk taking
may bring value to the Company. The Board believes that an
appropriate level of risks are acceptable after prudent assessment
of their impact and likelihood. Risks can neither be absolutely
eliminated nor controlled. The Company can protect its assets
and shareholders’ interests and create value simultaneously
through appropriate risks management and control measures.
The Board also acknowledges that risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve-business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board has the responsibility to oversee, evaluate and
determine the nature and extent of the risks faced by the Group
and to review and monitor the Group's approach in addressing
these risks at least annually. In addition, the Board oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in
reviewing the Group’s financial, operational and compliance
controls and reviewing the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

Management assists the Board in the implementation of the
Group's policies, procedures and limits within the Board'’s
approved risk appetite by identifying and assessing the risks faced
and monitoring the design and operation of the relevant internal
control measures to mitigate and control these risks.

Risk Assessment Process

Risk Assessment Approach

A risk management program was carried out during the Year to
ensure all material risks to which the Group exposed are properly
identified, assessed, managed, monitored and reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board.

Risk Identification

Risk identification is based on questionnaires completed by senior
management from different departments. Risks are preliminary
identified by senior management from the risk universe which is
a collection of risks built on environmental analysis and external
benchmarking that can impact the Group at the entity or specific
business process level. The risk universe covers both internal and
external risks in six major areas, namely external risks, strategic
risks, operational risks, financial risks, legal and compliance risks
and people risks. Key risk factors are then identified by integrating
the results of the questionnaire.
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Risk Evaluation and Risk Prioritization

Risk evaluation is the second step to assess the relative impact and
the likelihood of the identified key risk factors to the Group. These
identified key risk factors are further assessed by a scale rating
process assessed by the senior management.

Risk prioritisation is a mapping exercise. A risk map is used to
prioritise the identified key risk factors according to their assessed
impact and likelihood.

Risk Reporting, Managing and Monitoring

Risk reporting and risk monitoring are essential and integral parts
of risk management. A risk assessment report was submitted
to the Audit Committee and to the Board. Senior management
reviewed and assessed the adequacy of existing controls in
accordance with the Board’s advice and suggestions; determined
and implemented treatment plans where risks mitigants are
actionable and continuously monitored the development of
current risks and the emergence of new risks throughout the Year.

Management conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems for the
Year. Management has reported major findings and areas for
improvement to the Audit Committee. All recommendations from
management were adopted by the Group and were implemented
within a reasonable period of time. The Group therefore
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
were effective throughout the Year.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The handling and dissemination of inside information of the
Group is strictly controlled and measures adopted by the Group
including but not limited by the following ways:

1. restrict access to inside information to employees on a need-
to-know basis;

2. send reminder to employees who are in possession of inside
information to ensure that they are fully conversant with
their obligations to preserve confidentiality;

3. ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements are in place
when the Group enters into significant negotiations or
dealings with third party; and

4. inside information is handled and communicated by
designated persons to outside third party.
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The Board and the senior management review the safety measures
regularly to ensure inside information is properly handled and
disseminated.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING
THE COMPANY

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's reporting currency is Hong Kong dollar and most
of the business transactions are denominated in other currencies
including United States dollar, Renminbi and Japanese Yen.
Hence, exchange rate movements can affect the profit margin of
the Group. The Group enters forward currency contracts to hedge
against the currency risks arising from Group’s operations and
its funding sources, with reference to cash flow forecasts, capital
expenditure commitment and business budget. The Group does
not speculate on foreign currencies.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from long credit period for customers and short
credit period provided by suppliers. Customers are unwilling or
unable to fulfill their payment obligations that leads the Group to
incur financial losses. The Group's credit control function manages
the credit risks by assessing the credit limits and credit terms to be
granted to customers and setting up the internal control system
of credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to recover
overdue debts, if any. The Group also enters into credit insurance
contracts to mitigate the credit risks arising from the collection of
accounts receivables balances.

Competition Risk

Competition risk arises from the emergence of a number of
competitors in the electronic components manufacturing industry.
Price cut from competitors intensifies the risk. The Group believes
that the provision of quality products and after sales service
to customers are the only way to gain and maintain customer
confidence and loyalty.

Customers’ Financial Health Risk

The majority of the Group’s customers are electronic products
manufacturers in China. Delay in payments for trade receivables
settlement is common, thus resulting in bad debts. Slow recovery
of trade receivables indicates higher likelihood of customers’
financial health risk. The senior management works with the
finance department closely to monitor customers’ financial health.
In addition, it is hedged by the implementation of credit insurance
policies.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

Recognising the importance of maintaining on-going
communication with shareholders, the Board establishes a
shareholders’ communication policy and reviews it regularly to
ensure its effectiveness. To facilitate the timely, transparent and
effective communication with shareholders, the Board provides
different communication channels for shareholders and investors
including annual general meetings and other general meetings.

The annual general meeting provides a forum for the Company’s
shareholders to raise comments, offer suggestions, and exchange
views with the Board. The notice of annual general meeting is
distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting. The Chairman of the Board, the Chairmen
of all Board Committees and external auditor shall attend each
annual general meeting or any general meeting to answer
questions from the shareholders on the performance of the
Company so as to allow them to fully understand the Company’s
operations, management and development.

During the Year, the Board held an annual general meeting on
9 May 2017. The voting results of annual general meeting were
published on the websites of HKEXnews and the Company and
the results are available for inspection by the shareholders of the
Company upon request made to the Company Secretary. The
attendance records of Directors at the meeting are set out on
page 29 of this Annual Report.

Furthermore, the official website of the Company contains timely
updated company news, corporate information, announcements,
interim and annual reports of the Group, all of which are available
for download with a view of making easy access to corporate
information for shareholders and potential investors. Circulars,
interim and annual reports are sent to shareholders in a timely
manner and they are also available on the websites of HKEXnews
and the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Convening Special General Meeting and Putting
Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting
Shareholders holdings, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
under such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months. If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the Company, and may consist of several documents in
like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason
of the failure of the Directors to duly convene a meeting shall
be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company, and any sum so
repaid shall be retained by the Company out of any sums due
or to become due from the Company by way of fees or other
remuneration in respect of their services to such Directors as were
in default.

During the Year, no special general meeting was convened, and
no relevant proposal was received by the Company.

Enquiries to the Board
Enquiries can be put to the Board through the investor relations
department of the Company at Unit 03, 6/F., Harbour Centre
Tower 2, 8 Hok Cheung Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
or email to ir@manyue.com.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. The
Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the Managing
Director. From time to time, the Company Secretary advises the
Board on governance matters and ensures the board procedures,
applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. The Company
Secretary has undertaken at least 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Year.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to protect the environment. The Group
has established an environmental management system that
conforms to global standards and was granted with 1SO14001
accreditation in 2004. The quality control department monitors
product quality and the use of certain chemical substances.

Besides, the implementation of RoHS directives in August 2005
in European Union members’ states has impacted the electronic
industry. The Group installed new equipments and established a
comprehensive set of policies and procedures to ensure that the
Group's products are fully compliant with the RoHS requirements
for the European Union and any equivalent or relevant
requirement for the rest of the world. The Group had also made
it mandatory for all vendors and business partners to comply with
the RoHS requirements.

During the Year, the Group has received the following awards:

1. Energywise Certificate of the Hong Kong Green Organisation
Certification; and

2. "Innovative Technology” Achievement Award issued by
Hong Kong Federation of Innovative Technologies and
Manufacturing Industries.
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The Directors are pleased to present this Directors’ Report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the
Year.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating
segment is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant
to Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company, particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the financial year 2017 as well as indication
of likely future development in the business of the Group are
set out in the sections “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to
7, "Operation review” on pages 10 to 11, “Principal Risks and
Uncertainties facing the Company” on page 34 of this Annual
Report respectively. An analysis using financial key performance
indicators, a discussion of the Group’s environmental policies
and performance, and its compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group as well as
an account of the key relationships with its stakeholders are set
out in the sections “Five-Year Financial Summary” on page 209,
“Segment Information” on pages 123 to 126, “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 47 to 52, “Environmental
Protection” on page 37 and “Major Customers and Suppliers”
of this Directors’ Report on page 46 respectively. The above
discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 62 of this Annual
Report.

DIVIDEND
The Board did not recommend final dividend for the Year
(2016: nil).
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out in the section “Five-
Year Financial Summary” on page 209 of this Annual Report.
This summary does not form part of the consolidated financial
statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in the fixed assets of the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the Year are set out in Notes 33 and 34 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and that of
the Company during the Year are set out in Notes 40 and 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted
to HK$80,001,000 (2016: HK$86,217,000). In addition,
the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$165,458,000 (2016: HK$165,458,000), may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

MBERE
AEEBEAENRER M BERABHER
RAFRE200E 2 [ HFMBME]— 66 - ZMEL
FEARBRRZ —#5 ©

BE&E
AEERAFE BT EERDFERAG A B
R8P0 «

PR AN K% B B fE
RRBIRAREE 2 A MEEIER BB RIS 4R
B IS ERERMITE33 X344 ©

BERRE

ARl R EADRIE B R A DY ERE B ST B
BUE AR B AR IR B BCR IR 5 A L ) 3% 65 3 A2 16
7o

]
REBRARARRANEE 2 EESBFBENGEY
TEmRARMEE40 %411 o

IR S

R2017F 128318 - BREBRZFE1981F QA
(BETAR) Z G E - ARRIZAIHDIRFEEB
80,001,000/ 7T (20164F : 86,217,000/87T) © LN -
AN A 2 B B BR /4 165,458,000 7T (2016 4F
165,458,000/ 7T ) A] AZS R AR FRAL IS T DK ©

Annual Report 2017 &%

39



40

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this Directors’
Report, the Board comprised Ms Kee Chor Lin, Mr Chan Yu Ching,
Eugene, Mr Chan Tat Cheong, Alan, Mr Wong Ching Ming,
Stanley, Dr Li Sau Hung, Eddy, Mr Lo Kwok Kwei, David and Mr
Mar, Selwyn.

Under the existing Bye-laws of the Company, one third of
the Directors shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years and re-election at each annual general meeting. In
accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company,
Ms Kee Chor Lin, Mr Wong Ching Ming, Stanley and Mr Lo
Kwok Kwei, David will retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2018 annual
general meeting of the Company. None of the Directors offering
themselves for re-election has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company received annual confirmation from all Independent
Non-executive Directors of their independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considered all the
Independent Non-executive Directors as independent.

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of
the Company are set out in the section “Board of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 14 to 18 of this Annual Report.

OTHER CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
Since the publication date of the 2017 interim report of the
Company and up to the date of this Directors’ Report, there were
changes in Directors’ information which are reported as follow:

1. Dr Li Sau Hung, Eddy was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Chuang’s China Investments
Limited with effect from 1 December 2017. He resigned from
the office of independent non-executive director of Midas
International Holdings Limited with effect from 26 January
2018. Also, Dr Li ceased to be a member of the National
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and the president of The Chinese Manufacture’s
Association of Hong Kong.

2. Mr Lo Kwok Kwei, David was appointed as an independent

non-executive director of Futong Technology Development
Holdings Limited with effect from 5 February 2018.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole of any substantial
part of the Company’s businesses were entered into or existed
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interests, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart
from the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group's business at any time during the Year and up to the date
of this Directors’ Report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Directors and other officers of the Company shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all losses or liabilities which may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of office
or otherwise in relation thereto pursuant to the Bye-laws of the
Company. The Group has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers
throughout the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at the date of this Director’s Report, the interests and short
positions of the Directors or chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, were as follows:
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EEERE

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the ~ MARR T L@ LRI 2158
Company:

Capacity, nature of interest and
number of shares and underlying shares held

54 BEMEURAEROREBROEE

Approximate

percentage of

the Company’

issued

share capital

Interest in Interest in EERDT

Directors Capacity Nature of interest shares share options ERTREZ

E=s 4 RHME R BRERED BAEAL

Kee Chor Lin ! Interest of controlled ~ Corporate 209,689,667 - 44.09%
e corporation NG

G NGl 2

Kee Chor Lin Beneficial owner Personal 51,006,334 - 10.73%
iR EafEAA fEA

260,696,001 - 54.82%

Chan Yu Ching, Eugene Beneficial owner Personal 4,716,666 - 0.99%
RTE BEafEAA fEA

Wong Ching Ming, Stanley  Beneficial owner Personal - 500,000 0.11%
FEH ERfEA fEA

Note: Bz -
1. These shares are held by Man Yue Holdings Inc., a company wholly 1. 3ZZH HEMan Yue Holdings Inc#7% + M A EIHA
and beneficially owned by Ms Kee Chor Lin, the Chairman of the N EFREEL L2 EEREA -
Company.

Save as disclosed above and as disclosed under the section BRI XEEELGRIESEERONESZEN]—
“Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures” as at the &iffEEEI  RAESeRELNH - fiEEEqFH
date of this Directors’ Report, none of the Directors or chief ST A BRAR TS EEMBESEE 2 J&H 18
executive had registered an interest or short position in the shares, R eiES T HEABRIED S R EIEHF352{8%
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its =R iREZEESFAIME S ITME AN 7] &5 2 #E
associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant — zsi KA °

to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at the date of this Directors’ Report, the interests and short
positions of persons, other than Directors or chief executive of the
Company, being 5% or more in the interest in the issued share
capital of the Company as recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, are
set out as below:

Long positions:

Capacity and nature of interest

BRSNS

Personal/Beneficial owner
BA EmEEA

Man Yue Holdings Inc.

Directors’ Report

EEEHmE

TERFEREMATRRE RAEBRD 2
BENXR

RAEBEEEREAY  REESMAEEGIEXVES
336GHRTERIFEZHABRMEE  BREFIER
AREBITHRABRIN  RARREBITRAEE% K
A LSRR Z AT ¢

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s
issued share capital
AR TS BITRE
ZEBHNBEDL

Number of
ordinary shares held
g ERYE

209,689,667 44.09%

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this Directors’ Report,
no person, other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme") on 26 May 2006 for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations and the same was revised on 27 May
2010. The life of such Share Option Scheme was expired on
25 May 2016. Subject to the exercise period, all options (to the
extent not already exercised) granted prior to the expiry of the
Share Option Scheme shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme. Further
details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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o~ HERDREF 2 ERIORR | —HAHEER
ARBRBITBRABZ#ERIN  RAEEGHRER
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EEEHS

As at the date of this Directors’ Report, 1,980,000 (2016: RAZESHREAH - BIEERELTEE1,980,000
2,080,000) share options remained outstanding under the Share {7 (20164 : 2,080,00017 ) BSR4 14 AR 171 - Lt i&
Option Scheme and the details of the movements of the said  RiTEEERE 2 EEFHISMT -

outstanding share options were as follows:

Exercise
As at Lapsed As at Date of price of
1 January during 31 December grant of share options 2
Name and category 2017 the Year 2017 share options Exercise period BRETHEE?
of participants 20175 RAEE 20175 4 of share options ' HKS$ per share
SEENERER 1A1H P 128318 BRERD BRETES BRET
Director
Bz
Wong Ching Ming, Stanley 250,000 - 250,000 15.9.2010 15.9.2011 to0 14.9.2020 2.262
A 201094158 201149A 156 %202059A4 148
250,000 - 250,000 15.9.2010 15.9.2012 to0 14.9.2020 2.262
2010F9F158 2012497 15A£2020F9 7 14H
500,000 - 500,000
Other employees
HitfES
In aggregate 796,000 (50,000) 746,000 15.9.2010 15.9.2011 t0 14.9.2020 2.262
aft 2010693158 2011498156 %202069 F14R
In aggregate 784,000 (50,000) 734,000 15.9.2010 15.9.2012 to0 14.9.2020 2.262
A 2010F9A158 2012497 15A£2020F9 7 14H
1,580,000 (100,000) 1,480,000
2,080,000 (100,000) 1,980,000
Notes: B

1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant 1. BEREZBEHHERLAMRERTEAMERILE -
until the commencement of the exercise period.

2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in 2. BERIEZ T B AEKRBAIREETT - SRARQFIRR
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Az AR E By i ¢ i A o
Company's share capital.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” and “Share Option Scheme” above, at no
time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date
of this Directors’ Report, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS OF HEAD OFFICE AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
The address of head office and principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong was changed to Unit 03, 6/F., Harbour
Centre Tower 2, 8 Hok Cheung Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong with effect from 11 May 2017.

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION

During the Year and up to the date of this Directors’ Report, the
Company conducted a discloseable transaction under the Listing
Rules:

On 8 May 2017, Searange Investment Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, sold an investment property at China
Aerospace Centre, No. 143 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong at a consideration of HK$75,000,000. The disposal
would provide a good opportunity for the Group to realise
its investment at a gain, and to further enhance its financial
position with more working capital and other possible investment
opportunities.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the Year, less than 30% of the Group's sales were
attributable to the Group'’s five largest customers.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 35.8% (2016: 38.0%) of the total purchases during
the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to approximately 11.5% (2016: 14.5%).

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the share capital of any of the first five largest
customers and suppliers of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this Directors’ Report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Annual Report for the Year has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee of the Company. Particulars of the Audit Committee
and its composition are set out in the section “Board Committees”
on pages 25 to 26 of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the financial years ended
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 were audited by
KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the 2018 annual general meeting. A resolution for
the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at that meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Kee Chor Lin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2018
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Board of Directors is pleased to present this Environmental,
Social and Governance Report for the Year. Unless otherwise
specified, the environmental data covers the Group's production
facilities in Dongguan only, excluding its offices or production
facilities in other locations due to their relatively small
environmental footprint.

CORPORATE VISIONS ON ESG

The Group has obtained both the ISO14001, an environmental
management system, and ISO9001, a quality management
system, certifications. It also implements the RBA Code of Conduct
(formerly known as “EICC Code of Conduct”) which focuses on
the management system related to labour, ethics, health and
safety and the environment. All the products of the Group comply
with RoHS requirements. On the other hand, the Group is not
only committed to satisfying RoHS requirements for the European
Union and equivalent requirements worldwide, compliance with
RoHS requirements is also a requirement for all business partners
which work with the Group.

Development on using new energy as well as energy saving
continues to be an important agenda and concerns for the
international climate summits as well as the Central People’s
Government. The Group will continue to provide a complete
solution for energy saving and storage application.

ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group values its stakeholders. Shareholders, customers,
suppliers, regulators and employers are its main stakeholders.
The Group has on-going dialogues with shareholders, analysts
and investors. Annual general meeting is held every year and the
Group encourages shareholders to attend shareholders’ meetings
and vote at the meetings. Product brochures are prepared to
introduce new products to customers. Business visits and supplier
evaluation are conducted to ensure suppliers comply with
applicable laws. The Group collects employees’ opinion regularly.
The Group is committed to ensure compliance with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations of Hong Kong and worldwide.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Protecting the environment and conserving the resources are
important responsibilities for large-scale companies. The Group
strives to achieve environmental sustainability in every production
step. The Group aims to not only comply with environmental
laws and regulations but endeavours to prevent pollution, save
resources and reduce waste, as well as to enhance environmental
awareness.
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The following table presents the ESG performance summary of ~ FTER#HF2017FAREERE - 4 REAREHME -
the Group in 2017:

Indicators (unit) IR (BENL)
Emissions BER
Nitrogen oxides emissions (kilograms) REfEEmE(RT) 641
Sulphur oxides emissions (kilograms) maEEEsE(2T) 2
Particulates emissions (kilograms) BOPRFHEME(RT) 26
GHG emissions BERBEHK
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) (tCO,e) BERBEESINE (SE K&2)(FtCo,EE 42,469
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1) (tCO,e) BERBEIEME(EEN) (FCOEE 431
Total GHG emissions (Scope 2) (tCO,e) REREBINE (BE2) (FtCO &2 42,038
Waste BEEREY
Hazardous waste produced (tonnes) EENEEEY(HE) 16
Non-hazardous waste produced (tonnes) EXREEEY () 69
Energy consumption BEIRH#E
Energy consumption (million-Watt-hour) BEREE(ABRE) 46,923
Diesel consumption (litres) SORERE(FH) 54,000
LPG consumption (kilograms) AL A RRERE(AT) 1,672
Water consumption KAE
Water consumption (litres) KAEGH) 408,005
Water intensity per floor area of production facility A4 EREEREEEXKZE(FHFHK)

(litre/m?2) 4
Packing material consumption BEMBAE
Paper (tonnes) 4R (1) 728
Plastic (tonnes) 882 () 416
Wood (tonnes) ARHA (188) 584

CONTROL OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES IN
PRODUCTS

Manufacturing of high technology electronic components is
one of the Group's key businesses, the use of heavy metals or
chemical substances is unavoidable. Hence, control of hazardous
substances in products is a major concern of the Group. RoHS
compliance is a requirement for all suppliers and business partners
of the Group. Suppliers must submit national or internationally
recognised testing reports and materials safety data sheet to the
Group for review or verification to ensure that the materials they
supply comply with the relevant environmental rules or regulations
which are free from prohibited substances or the use of chemical

EmPREENE 2ZH

HESMRETLHRAREETERHZ — BAR
RHEERELB/ICENE - HEHERTEEY
B ASE—EAREESR - ARBEREHEREE
BRI LBBTROHSHE © R BARKERS
BB RS SR E MR 2 2 8IRR - AR EH
REZ MO EEERERIISER - T2ER/Y
B EZ2RFEMERCBYE -

substances at a safety level. SR
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ENERGY SAVING

Maximisation of energy efficiency is one of the ways to protect
our planet. The Group has adopted green office practices to
reduce natural resource consumption and the impact on the
environment. Teleconference and video conference are widely used
to avoid unnecessary travel and hence reduce carbon footprints,
whilst maintaining the benefits of “face-to-face” meetings. Recto-
verso printing is encouraged with an aim to attain a paperless
office. In addition, the Group reviews eco-friendly measures to
enhance operational efficiency regularly.

ENERGY RECYCLING

Water is essential in daily operations. Throughout the production
process, the Group minimises water usage and arranges for a
qualified company to recycle waste water. Besides, the Group has
installed two water circulating vacuum pumps to recycle effluent
in the production plant. The water circulating vacuum pumps
operate 24 hours a day to continuously recycle waste water.

STRENGTHENING ENVIRONMENTAL AWARENESS
ISO14001, the Environmental Management System, has been
certified at the Group. The management system encourages
the Group to continually improve environmental performance,
identifies the significant environmental aspects in the operations
and establishes relevant measurements to eliminate or reduce
it. The Group has invested lots of resources to implement the
management system. Training programmes are conducted
regularly for the departmental representatives to ensure effective
running of the management system in the Group and therefore
enhance the environmental awareness of the employees.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS

Retention of employees is crucial for operating a prosperous entity.
The Group has established a “EICC human resources procedure”.
The Group has stringent and transparent procedures for recruiting
talents and has developed competitive remuneration packages.
The remuneration policy is based on the principles of equitability
and fairness. Remuneration packages are reviewed on a regular
basis by the Group. And the Group also provides provident fund
contribution and medical insurance coverage the employees.

Child labour and forced labour are two of the main labour issues
in the world. They are closely linked together. The Group has
established the "EICC forced labour management procedure”.
The Group does not employ child or forced labour and ensures
all applicants for employment are over the age for completing
compulsory education or the minimum age for employment and
complies with the requirements of any applicable local laws.
Enslavement and labour trafficking are also prohibited. Employees’
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RIE - HERERHRSE

identity or immigration documents are not held by the Company
unless it is required by law. The Group has established a channel
for employees to report any suspected cases by putting a message
in the Employees’ suggestion box and General Manager’s mail
box.

In addition to child labour and forced labour, the Group
commits to provide a workplace free of harassment and
unlawful discrimination. The Company has established the “EICC
antidiscrimination procedure” and employs talents regardless
of color, age, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity and
expression, race, pregnancy, political affiliation and religion.
The Group believes that everyone is unique and has his or her
own strength in different aspects and the Group endeavour to
promote the awareness of anti-discrimination at the workplace.
Investigation will be conducted and led by senior management of
the Group if suspected case is reported.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group fully understands that career development for
employees is one of the critical elements for maintaining long-
term relationship between the employees and the Group.

The Group establishes trainings plan every year. Training courses
on topics including but not limited to management systems such as
ISO9001, 1SO4001 and ISO/TS16949, job requirements, customer
requirements, product safety and statistical process control are
organised to enhance the knowledge and skills of employees to
meet the challenges in the workplace. The Group also provides
trainings for its directors and senior management to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills in order to discharge their duties
more efficiently.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group pays attention to occupational health and safety.
Safety in the workplace and supply of protective equipments are
the key issues. Compliance with the relevant local laws is the first
step for the Group. Protective equipments such as masks and
goggles are provided to employees who have physical contact
with chemical substances to protect themselves. The Group offers
physical examination to employees in three phases including pre-
employment, during employment period and also after resignation
in order to protect employees’ health.
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Enhancing safety awareness of employees is also important. The
Group conducts health and safety trainings to new employees
based on their job duties. In addition, the Group provides ongoing
safety trainings which cover topics including but not limited to
job hazard, protective measure, job safety agenda, correct usage
of personal protective equipment and relevant health and safety
laws.

Apart from the workplace, the Group also cares about sanitation,
food and housing of employees. The Group provides clear and
safe dormitories to employers with adequate living area to enjoy
their own privacy. The Group also provides sanitary food to
minimise the chance of food poisoning. All food is of a certain
nutritional quality.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY AND SUPPLY CHAIN
MANAGEMENT

Product quality is a critical factor for the Group to staying
competitive in the market. The Group strives to provide
satisfactory products and services to customers and zero defect is
our long term goal. The Group values our customers. A product
briefing regarding product details, usage of products and relevant
safety issues will be given by technical professionals to new
customers. Moreover, the Group’s customer service team is fully
responsible for taking care of the customers including technical
support, complaints or any comments concerning the services and
products of the Company. To fully understand customers’ needs,
customer satisfaction survey will be conducted regularly. For the
non-conformed products, the Group has established a “Product
return procedure” to identify the cause of failure to improve and
meet customers’ standard and a specific timeframe for response to
questions and/or complaints was set to respond to the customer.

With the aim of reducing greenhouse gas emissions, local
suppliers are given purchasing priority if they fulfill the Company’s
requirements.

ZERO TOLERANCE POLICY ON CORRUPTION

Raw material is one of the important elements that affects
product quality. All business dealings between the Group and
suppliers are transparently performed to uphold business integrity
and honesty. The Group has a zero tolerance policy to prohibit any
and all forms of bribery, corruption, extortion and embezzlement.
Furthermore, the Company conducts supplier evaluations regularly
in three main areas: quality, environment and production process
to ensure the supplier’s performance is satisfactory.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - 1 ERERBHRE

Integrity and honesty of employees is important to the Group. ZAEBE+HEFREEFENHE 2RI - AEEDR
The Group has adopted the whistle-blowing policy in 2010 and 2010 FREVRBRINE @ Wi —EBBRIZ - UERE
has established a communication process for employees to report ~ BEHEBZEIHRE 2 B R TWBERTHHETER
any suspected non-compliance cases in confidence without fear — fE% - EE & Je F ST I SRR R G 2 AWIE -

of retaliation. The Board also reviews the effectiveness of such

reporting system regularly.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT HESEH

The Group is committed to serve the community and recognises ~ AEBHROREREAE - BEBERITZCERNREE
that positive contribution to the community is the responsibility At RIELBEREE - REBFERRZE TG
of a good corporate citizen. The Group contributes a funding BEE @ USHEREATHEREKS - REFFREK
to local tax authority every year in Dongguan to support career  JS#4E AitEEH EEL -

opportunities of disabled people. The Group will continue to

contribute to the community in the future.

52 MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BERRIEEBAR AT



Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG!

TO THE MEMBERS OF MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Man
Yue Technology Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 62 to 208, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZE MRS ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

BEEFETSER
MRETFRERERMANERNE - RSBRMAHE
AR A MBREARRERZER - XFFERE
BB ERG AV BRI ABRRETRIE
MEM IS ELEREHEBZER -

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Valuation of inventories

FEfME

Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 4(m) on page 108.

FEE
The Key Audit Matter
BRESHE

At the reporting date the Group held significant
quantities of inventories, which principally comprised
electronic capacitors, with different products in different
phases of their manufacturing life cycles. The ability of
the Group to sell these inventories in the future may be
adversely affected by changes in competitors’ pricing
strategies and the introduction of new products and
technology.

RBERH - BEEERARERE I2RERF  £E
ZEHHK%EQTH EmITRE - BERERRHEZFFEN

k& [ 5 5 7 (B SRS N E o B BT Rt 1 2 21 A)
?&% °

Management performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to the inventory
ageing report, projections of expected future sales of
goods and management'’s experience and judgement.
Based on this review, a write-down of inventories will be
made when the estimated net realisable value of an item
of inventory falls below its carrying amount.

EREEANGFERKEES  ARRKHEEZTRANRER

BBy HERERFEZREE - REZESZ 78
AR E AT 2 R EENREER L -
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T B B 2R M1 25 )% E 1088 it a(m) s @5HEE ©

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN ET A EEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of inventories
included the following:

BAHEFREREZETIEFREA TSR

e assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
inventory ageing report were classified within the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items in the report with underlying documentation,
including purchase invoices and goods received
notes;

o BEAREZBLLBHETTFREE EAEXF(RE
ﬁéﬁ%%%&ﬁuﬁl*‘%%ﬁ) AHEFERER RSP RIE
BEREAEEOREARR

e assessing the Group’s inventory write-down policy
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

BER

IEFHRERTE - AHE BEEBEZFEMIER

A

e  evaluating the Group’s inventory write-down policy
by comparing management’s forecast markdowns
for inventories to historical data or actual sales
subsequent to the reporting date for the current and
prior year,

o EBURENNMBEFEEERE FEREKTIRAE
BEAMRELHBEIERER  FHE EXKEZEE
MBI



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Valuation of inventories

FEME

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZEMERE (E)

BEFTEE(E)

Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 4(m) on page 108.

BRIk A TR 225 R 2 108 R F et 4(m) 2 E7T UK °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

The Group may sell aged inventories at a markdown
from the original price to avoid an accumulation of slow-
moving inventories. Accordingly, the actual future selling
prices of some items of slow-moving inventories may fall
below their cost.

EREAMEHEREFS  NWEL2RERHEEFE - Bt
ETHREFEZERRREEAEERERA o

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter because of the significant judgement exercised by
management in determining appropriate inventory write-
downs, which involves estimating the duration of product
life cycles, predicting the amounts of inventories which
will be sold in the future and the markdowns necessary
to sell such inventories on a discounted basis in future
years all of which are inherently uncertain.

BMEFEREIRARENFR  AREEEEETEE
MEFEMIE R TFRITEEAHE - ME TP REFERESD
Bz HERRE - BARRDENTFERE RNVRRBER
BHEZSHFEMTIELNITH - ZERRIHFERES THE

FEME ©

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RMMEFNAEEZSE

assessing whether the inventory write-downs at the
reporting date were calculated on a basis consistent
with the Group’s inventory write-down policy by
recalculating the inventory write-downs based on
expected selling prices;

BRI EEENEFEME - AN RERHZ
FEMHERERE BEREFEMHEBER -2 2%

e .

enquiring of management at the operations level
about any expected changes in plans for markdowns
or disposals of inventories on hand and comparing
their representations with actual sales transactions
subsequent to the reporting date.

AEEERERARABTNEEEFFE 82 EM

BEHEY  YhEBFERAERREARREERSZ
ERELE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZE MRS ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BREFTSEE(E)

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and equipment and prepaid land premium

MR - BERRBUR T BHERNRZEERE

Refer to notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 4(d) on page 84 to 86.
FERHEGE I BIREMN T 18K 19K 84286 H F Mfit4(d).Z &5 % °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

The Group held significant amount of property, plant
and equipment and prepaid land premium amounting to
HK$602 million and HK$69 million respectively as at 31
December 2017.

R2017F12A31H © EXEEDRIFBEREYE  BE&K
BUAR L ETENFR6.02EB T M69BH BB T °

Management assessed impairment indicators for the
Group s property, plant and equipment and prepaid land
premium; and performed impairment assessments using
the value in use model and compared the aggregate
carrying values of the property, plant and equipment and
prepaid land premium allocated to each cash-generating
unit (“CGU") with the net present values of the respective
discounted cash flow forecasts to determine the amount
of impairment which should be recognised for the year, if
any.

BEEENE EREYE  BELRRBARTHAEENR
ZREPRILEBERHEERAETREN L LR iR
ERRCEABN((REELEM D Z2WE - BERREA
REHERNR ARAERSQMRRERERZEH
BFE  NEERAFEER ZRESE(IMEA)
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

RMHEFNAEEZSE

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
property, plant and equipment and prepaid land premium
included the following:

HEHEYE - BE KR EA R L HETRNRZE
ZEEFREATRIA

G|

e evaluating management’s identification of CGUs and
the amounts of property, plant and equipment and
prepaid land premium allocated to each CGU;

s HMEEHREHRSEABUZERRIEEZREESE
B zWE  BERREARTHEEEN R BEE

e evaluating the methodology adopted by
management in its impairment assessments with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

s  Z2ERTEHRERNFHEEREREETRER G
FRERAEIIE

e assessing and challenging the Group's impairment
assessment model, which included assessing the
impairment indicators defined by the Group,
evaluating the discounted cash flow forecasts for
each CGU and considering whether these supported
the carrying value of the relevant assets;

o M BEREZAEEFGEEARELER - BT
i EREFREZREDR  HESREELBEML 2R
RBReRERANERZERRRESHREEZRR
EE




Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZEMERE (E)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) RARETEE(E)

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and equipment and prepaid land premium

FEME - BERRBUR T BHERNRZEERE

Refer to notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 4(d) on page 84 to 86.
FEREGE B BIREM T 18K 19 % 84286 B F Mfit4(d).Z S5 % °

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRENEE BRAMET N AEREZEE
We identified the assessment of potential impairment of e critically examining the key assumptions, including
property, plant and equipment and prepaid land premium forecast revenue, future growth rates, future
as a key audit matter because significant management margins, future cost growth rates and the discount
judgement is involved in determining whether there are rates, adopted by management in its preparation of
indicators of impairment and because estimating the the discounted cash flow forecasts by referring to
recoverable amounts and forecasting the future cash industry and other available third party information,
flows of these assets involves inherent uncertainty and the recent financial performance of the Group's
could be subject to management bias. trading and manufacturing operations and
management’s budgets and plans for the operations
BPEWEE - BB MR @A KL B EFR N T2 B AR ERT in 2018 and beyond;

B AERETEE  AAECRAFERENRE S ME

REREHE  URZEEEZTRESERBAERRE o FERSFIEER  RIERATED - KFGEE - KK

SREFEEETHETNE  XTERERIMAR - FIEE  RRKAERERMER - ERERIUMER
SREBEARERZEEE - W2BTEREMATES
ZEZHER - BEBEIREEERIRMBE
BUAREEER2018F R Bz EEEL 2 TEE KT

£l

e evaluating the discount rates applied by management
in the discounted cash flow forecasts with reference
to available financial information of other companies
in the relevant industry and considering country and
company specific risk premiums;

o KB2ERBITEANHMARZAESHBER  FHEE
EENEMRRSRERATEAZERE - REENA
BRI kbl Ko 2 R SE RO (B
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZE MRS ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BREFTSEE(E)

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and equipment and prepaid land premium

MR - BERRBUR T BHERNRZEERE

Refer to notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 4(d) on page 84 to 86.
FERHEGE I BIREMN T 18K 19K 84286 H F Mfit4(d).Z &5 % °

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is

a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI EEER AT

performing a sensitivity analysis for the key variables
in the discounted cash flow forecasts, which
included assessing the effect of reasonably possible
changes in future revenue, future cost growth rates
and the discount rates, to evaluate the impact on the
conclusions reached by management and to assess
whether there were any indicators of management
bias.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B2 SRS ()
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZE MRS ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI EEER AT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Sylvene Fong.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

14 March 2018

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

= N 7

o A2
,%/T\/E\ (=N

For the Year Ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
B 2201741231 A 1FFE (L ETIT)

2017 2016
201745 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TAL
Revenue KA 6,7 1,275,923 987,027
Cost of sales SHERA (995,877) (823,475)
Gross profit E5 280,046 163,552
Other income Hlg A 7 9,771 13,928
Other net (losses)/gains HinH(ER) ek 7 (49) 29,630
Selling and distribution costs HERDEER (69,563) (51,108)
Administrative expenses THER (143,593) (133,744)
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment loss W B FEES R H A FE MR B R E
on trade and other receivables BENED(BE) 943 (9,979)
Operating profit RERF 8 77,555 12,279
Changes in fair values of derivative TEEBMTAERARE
financial instruments 28 10 (2,898) 2,198
Finance costs By H 11 (28,582) (29,897)
Finance income B A 12 4,667 4,750
Share of results of joint ventures JERA G s 2 11,457 8,856
Share of results of an associate i el L NE e - (2,646)
Profit/(loss) before tax BBiATRR (FE) 62,199 (4,460)
Income tax Fr{S# 15 (16,994) (8,642)
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERR(FE) 45,205 (13,102)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: EET/ (B18) -
- Equity holders of the Company —ARNRIRIERE A 48,177 (14,905)
— Non-controlling interests — IR R R RS (2,972) 1,803
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF(FE) 45,205 (13,102)

Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to ~ RAFREFHA

equity holders of the Company EEEREA(E8) 16
— Basic —EK 10.13 HK centsi&{l]  (3.13) HK centsy& 1l
- Diluted — 5 10.13 HK centsi&{ll  (3.13) HK centsi&1Ll

The notes on pages 69 to 208 form part of these consolidated éﬁé%@i%z%fﬁizw&ﬁ&tw
=

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
reBmkHEMREEAR

For the Year Ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BZ2017FF 12431 H1FF/E (LUEITTST)

2017 2016
20174 20164F
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FHT
Profit/(loss) for the year REZHN,(FE) 45,205 (13,102)
Other comprehensive income: Hh2EUA - 15(c)
[tem that will not be reclassified HEgTesdoEsEs
subsequently to profit or loss ZIEE
— Assets revaluation surplus, —BRFIBR B E
net of tax EHAH 4,605 (1,386)
— Remeasurement of net defined —HRBIBRENSE
benefit assets, net of tax AREBMEE 6 771
ltems that may be reclassified HgrnEmosB2En
subsequently to profit or loss ZIEE
— Changes in fair value of available- —AHHEREARE
for-sale investments pd ) = 254
— Currency translation differences —[ERZERE 133,783 (135,847)
Other comprehensive income REENHRTIER
for the year, net of tax ECESETON 138394 (136,208)
Total comprehensive income AEEZHEBALRE
for the year 183,599 (149,310)
Total comprehensive income EMEEIRALREE
attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company — A RBBESHEA 181,811 (149,095)
— Non-controlling interests — JEVR AR A R A A 1,788 (215)
183,599 (149,310)

. The notes on pages-69-to208 *Wd BN FEEOEE208H 2T RUFHREWBIHRETZ—

financial statements. BB o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BZE2017F12A31 HIFFE (KETIIR)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid land premium

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Investments in joint ventures

Prepayments on purchases of
property, plant and equipment

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Loans to a joint venture

Other prepayments

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Due from joint ventures

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Net defined benefit retirement assets

Tax recoverable

Time deposits with banks

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Current liabilities
Trade and bills payables
Other payables and accrued liabilities
Due to joint ventures
Derivative financial instruments
Tax payable
Bank loans
Dividends payable

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

ME - BE&E

TR ETAN R

BEMFE

BIVEE

RAEELEZRE

BEWE - BFE K&
Z TR

AR RERBZEATIRR
ZEMEE

BT —RAEREEZER

Hip AN IR

BB EE

FRBEERE

RBEE

&

FE W B SRR

BNRRIE - e REAM
FEM IR

FEW A & E T FIR

AARERBEATIRRZ
TREE

RERBIERKEIEEFEE

AR EITIE
RITEHFR
RAe kR EEY

mEBEERE

REBAE

BN B SRR N TS
HibENFUARETRE
e aEahEZ TR
TESRTA

FENTIR

RITEN

FEFTRS

mEaERE

mEBEEFE

BERERRBAE
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18
19
20
22
24
18

21
24

31

25
26

26
24

21

28
28

29

24
27

30

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
602,264 625,220
68,718 65,699
136,522 150,396
2,254 2,401
116,371 96,461
66,428 56,570
23,374 14,462
108,903 100,077
965 1,768
16,463 16,400
1,142,262 1,129,454
535,553 456,560
640,594 480,920
96,894 86,715
22,609 26,782
36 45
971 879
1,466 2,921
= 7,775
312,702 283,116
1,610,825 1,345,713
225,069 183,419
105,320 93,429
39,465 19,751
3,680 3,875
8,631 5,333
718,795 559,815
43 43
1,101,003 865,665
509,822 480,048
1,652,084

1,609,502




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e BRI R (&)

2017 PAONNS)
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHT
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Bank loans SRITER 30 128,284 249,933
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIT A 27 2,476 4,119
Provision for long service payments RERB S B E 77 188
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEEE 31 34,677 32,084
Deferred income RIEYA 32 11,031 10,603
Total non-current liabilities JEREAERE 176,545 296,927
NET ASSETS BEEFEE 1,475,539 1,312,575
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARKFE
Share capital R& X 33 47,555 47,555
Reserves i 40 1,368,952 1,194,855
Equity attributable to equity RATREZEA
holders of the Company bR 1,416,507 1,242,410
Non-controlling interests IR AR RS 59,032 70,165
TOTAL EQUITY EReE 1,475,539 1,312,575

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 14 720183 A 148 K EE S f L IEHEE )5 -
March 2018.

Kee Chor Lin Chan Tat Cheong, Alan
LEE RES
Director Director
BE £

. The notes on pages-69-to208 *Wd BN FEEOEE208H 2T RUFHREWBIHRETZ—
g

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

nVT\

SREEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BFE2017F12H31HIFFE

Balance at 1 January 2016

(Loss)/profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
- Assets revaluation deficit, net of tax
- Remeasurement of net defined benefit
assefs, net of tax
Items that may be reclassified suosequently
to profit or loss
- Changes in fair value of an available-for-sale
investment
- Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2016

Acquisition of a subsidiary
Shares repurchased

Balance at 31 December 2016

Balance at 1 January 2017
Adjustment on initial application of HKFRS 9

Adjusted balance on 1 January 2017

Profitloss) for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
- Assets revaluation surplus, net of tax
- Remeasurement of net defined benefit
assets, net of tax
Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
- Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2017

Acquisition of non-controlling interest
without a change in control

Balance at 31 December 2017

Note

WI6E1R1RZES

RER(EE)/ &)
Ef2EMA
ERTeENIEERG
R
-MEHER AR ENEY 40
-RERER:T &
RERNEETE 40
ERTRERAE
ﬁ,amZIEE
-IRHERENE
bz 40
-EfEE )

HEWI6E1A3BILFE
JEARAEE

hE-EHELE @
ERERG 40

WIEF1ANB LR
WIEIAAZER
ERERERIHAE AR 92
WIEIMBZEREES

RERRH/ (BR)
EOREMA
ERAEEHIBERE
AR
-HRRRREEER RS 40
-MRH B SR ERERNE
i35 40
ERUERNRERE
AR
-EiEE 40

HENTENANBLFEL
2ARNEE

W kEnRRER
(EhiELERY)

WTENA3NAZER

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
AARRBIEEARSE

Non-controlling

interests

FERERER
HK$'009

Share capital Reserves Total
Rx i g
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

I Tm BT

Total equity
REAE
HKS'000

| 134435 1,391,978 ) 139,260
- (14,905) (14,905) 1803 (13,10
- (1,386) (1,386) - (1,386)
- m m - m
- 254 254 - 254
- (133,829 (133,829 2,018 (135,847)
- (149,095) (149,095) (215) (149,310)
- - - 66,098 66,098
(69) (404) (473) - (473
(69) (404) (473) 66,098 65,625
47,55 1,194,855 1,282,410 70,165 1312575
47,55 1,194,855 1282410 70,165 1312575
- (7,14) (7,14) - (7,714)
47,55 1,187,141 1,234,69% 70,165 1,304,861
= 4817 817 (2.972) 45,205
- 4,605 4,605 = 4,605
= b b = b
= 129023 129023 4760 133,783
= 181,811 181,811 1788 183,599
- - - (12921) (12921)
= = = (12.921) (12.921)
47,555 1,368,952 1416,507 59,032 1475,539

The notes on pages 69 to 208 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Fair value gain on investment properties
Write-off of other payables
Share of results of joint ventures
Share of results of an associate
Dividend income
Finance income
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of prepaid land premium
Amortisation of intangible assets
Deferred income recognised as income
Write-down of inventories
Reversal of write-down of inventories
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment loss
on trade and other receivables
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative
financial instruments

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in net defined

benefit retirement assets
Decrease in amounts due from joint ventures
Decrease in amount due from an associate

Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to joint ventures

Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables
Increase in other payables and accrued liabilities
Decrease in provision for long service payments

Cash used in operations
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Mainland China and overseas taxes paid

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BExBoRERE
BRBiAICaA) /iR
E
it
REMFz D rEkE
Rt EFTURME
BUECELRIER
EE—RBERRz %S
BEHA
BB
HEME - FERE
BB/ ()
nE  BERREBRE
THREBRNFEH
B AR
BRPAREZRYA
FEHR
FERAD

JEUE SRR &H@TEHMI,EWE

B/ (B

Qﬁﬁﬂéﬁﬁmﬁlﬁﬁz%ﬂﬁF

ZAREMR) /BB
PHESBTAZRERLNE
B8/ ()

FEOEM),/ D

EWE HEFEM

BNUHE  ZeREMEKTE
(%) B

RERMBAHEEFR

(), >

RRAELEFTERD

G NG
FERREREFBEM/ (D)

ENESRREREEN/ (R

Eth VRN BT BB

RERBRERD

BEMARE
ENEENEH
ERTEIAEINMIE

BEXBRERTFE

Co Co Co Co Co Co ©o

MERENER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BEL32017F 1231 HIFF/E

2017 2016
20175 20165
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THL
62,199 (4,460)
28,582 29,897
(15,696) (10,756)
(2,808) (6,594)
(11,457) (8,856)
= 2,646
(1,157) -
(4,667) (4,750)
518 (6,212)
59,630 73,499
1,533 1,547
332 885
(304) (307)
3,946 2,440
(6,085) (3,644)
(943) 9,979
(8,549) 6
2,898 (2,198)
107,972 73,122
(43,424) 5,514
(141,398) (75,492)
(4,078) 6,532
(18) 29
2,570 8,236

= 3,651
19,714 (29)
28,389 (38,660)
10,912 5,978
(111) (405)
(19,472) (11,524)
(276) (2,552)
(12,029) (8,676)
(31,777) (22,752)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

RERSREREA)

2017 2016
20175 20165
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Cash flows from investing activities REEH RERE
Prepayments on purchases of property, BENE  BEREELZ

plant and equipment Sl (15,319) (1,001)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BELRE (25,866) (9,642)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash KE-AMBAT  IRRE - 58,118
Acquisition of non-controlling interest eI R

without a change in control (g EEE) (12,921) -
Payment for purchases of an available-for-sale BEWHEERE

investment 23 = (1,579)
Dividend received Bl S 1,157 -
Interest received BHAIE 4,667 4,750
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENZE  BERRE

plant and equipment PSR 2,501 10,869
Proceeds from disposal of an investment property  HE— IE& ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%?ﬂ 20 74,209 -
Increase in loans to joint ventures BFABGE BN (3,701) (7,733)
Decrease in time deposits with banks BITESRFTAD 7,775 4,161
Net cash inflow from investing activities RETHZRALRARE 32,502 57,943
Cash flows from financing activities HEEHZRERE
Proceeds from new bank loans FERTERMEIE 28 581,961 481,529
Repayment of bank loans BRRTER 28 (545,418) (507,070)
Re-purchase of shares BERR = (473)
Payment for interest rate swaps fappiksat 28 (4,736) (5,572)
Interest paid EAFE 11 (28,582) (29,897)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BERH2RERA/ (R B8

financing activities 3,225 (61,483)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBEZEYZEN/ (HD) B8

cash equivalents 3,950 (26,292)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEEREE 28 25,636 (38,389)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FivBHEREEZEY 28 283,116 347,797
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EXZEERBELEEN 28 312,702 283,116

The notes on pages 69 to 208 form part of these consolidated  # R £69% F208H ~ R Ea s nos il L S A —
=

financial statements.

68  MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRRHHEEAERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
are the manufacturing and the trading of electronic
components and raw materials.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on the Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board on 14 March 2018.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which
collective term include all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

e R ERAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HZI) - GLOETTIT)

—BREH
AARRENBARZ EEEHANEREES
F IR o

AATABRBREFMKNLZERAT - EiEfl
PEFR I IE AClarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °

BRI RN R EE e -

BEEEAN  EFAPBRRINVETZEY -
ILFRA M ®RERN2018F3 A 14AEES S/
JFETIES

muEE

(a) &HEH
HWEGREVERREBREBSHAAE
(BB gmAg ) BHoMmEERES
s mEER ([ HBFHRESER]) (b
SIEBEMERG 2 ERT BV BREE
A - BB GFEA( BB ER ) k#
) BB AR RAEBBAFEN 2
BRERFER - W FEWHERERITETES
BAERSBRARESR ETHRZEA
WERIGSGRTE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBRRME ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of Preparation of the Financial

Statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 comprise the company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
and the Group's interest in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

investment property (see note 4(g));

—  other leasehold land and buildings, where the
leasehold land is classified as being held under a
finance lease (see note 4(f));

—  defined benefit retirement assets;

—  financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (see note 4 (j)); and

—  derivative financial instruments (see note 4(l)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 5.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI EEER AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group. None of these impact on the accounting policies of
the Group. However, additional disclosure has been included
in note 28 to satisfy the new disclosure requirements
introduced by the amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of cash
flows: Disclosure initiative, which require entities to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period except for early adoption of HKFRS 9
Financial instruments.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The Group has early adopted HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
issued in July 2014 with a date of initial application of 1
January 2017. The requirements of HKFRS 9 represent a
significant change from HKAS 39 Financial instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

The nature and effects of the key changes to the Group'’s
accounting policies resulting from its adoption of HKFRS 9
are summarised below.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group adopted
consequential amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements which requires impairment of
financial assets to be presented in a separate line item in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Previously, the Group’s approach was to include the
impairment of trade receivables in administrative expenses.
Additionally, the Group adopted consequential amendments
to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures that are applied
to disclosures about 2017 but generally have not been
applied to comparative information.

A U RR M ()

BT BREE

FR G AEERHE TR AREA S HRH
BREM BBV HERELANERTA  WHFEFT
HAEEEFTBRBEZE - AT - BIMEED
MAMRE28 AT R BB G A ERIE 757 (IBFTAS)
[REMER  REABZBR] ZETERE
BIRHS U BWMRERE LW AR ETHE
FREEHIREER  SRRDREFRSE

BIEFRMBBMBHRELEUN TR SR TE]
S NEEWERBRAG S R MR ER 2
fIFRT R R R

ERVBHREERFEIF ERMTA ]
REBBIRFHMN2014F7 AEG 2 EAWH
REFAFFI M TR ZEANEREMRA
HI/20179F1 A1 H - BAEMBRELRFEIR 2
REHBFBGALERNEIN©RMIA - A
AHEIEHERKE -

SO A B S R R E S B
RIEORTIEL T ERBZ HHRYE -

RN RB BBV EMEERNE N - MAKER
MEBEHEREIRIPBRE 229 |2 &8
BAIAR RESHMEEZREFTRNESZLEE
WARAERELHB 2 - AEBEBEZZE
S BRITIRE B H 27 U E SRR 2R
18 o tboh - AEBETRERNEBUBRSERNS
THRIEBMTA - RE | ZRECTA  XEAR
2017 2 W FE - HERE W EERANLLERER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

3 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Classification of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9
is generally based on the business model in which a
financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics. HKFRS 9 eliminates the previous HKAS
39 categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables
and available for sale. Under HKFRS 9, derivatives
embedded in contracts where the host is a financial
asset in the scope of the standard are never separated.
Instead, the hybrid financial instrument as a whole is
assessed for classification.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has not had a significant
effect on the Group’s accounting policies for financial
liabilities.

Impairment of Financial Assets

HKFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in HKAS 39
with an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. The new
impairment model applies to financial assets measured
at amortised cost, contract assets and debt investments
at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instrument.
Under HKFRS 9, credit losses are recognised earlier than
under HKAS 39.

Transition

The general principle of HKFRS 9 is to apply the
standard retrospectively in accordance with HKAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors. For the new classification and measurement
requirements, the Group has elected for the exception
from the requirement to restate comparative information
as set out in the transitional provisions. As a result,
the comparative information provided continues to be
accounted for in accordance with the Group’s previous
accounting policy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

3 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 BIEEREE (&)
(CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) EEMEHREERFEE SR THE |(E)
(ii) Transition (Continued) (i) BE (&)
Changes in accounting policies resulting from the SN 3P - ANEE B B E AR E R A
adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014) have been applied BB TERELR BT (20145 ) MELE
retrospectively, as described below. ZERTBUREE) -

Differences in the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised in retained
earnings as at 1 January 2017. Also, the available-
for-sale investments revaluation reserve was
transferred to retained earnings as a result of
adopting HKFRS 9. Accordingly, the information
presented for 2016 does not generally reflect the
requirements of HKFRS 9 and therefore is not
comparable to the information presented for 2017
under HKFRS 9.

As an exception, the following assessments
have been made on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at the date of initial
application.

e  The determination of the business model
within which a financial asset is held.

e The designation and revocation of previous
designations of certain financial assets and
financial liabilities as measured at FVTPL.

— ERMEBHEREERFEG M E
EZCRHEERSHABERASES
ER2017F1B1BERSE BT+ #
oo LA - EIRRE B IS RS AR
FosR - A EREEHFEHBDE
BERB AT - At $82016F 27
AR R ERRE S B RS
AIZEOSR 2 M E - Al AR B &S
B RE R EORAM2017F 2 2
BRI -

- RR#%  AEECRBEREXER
AR EZ ZEREREL AT
filr e

s HEERAZEMEEZEBR
2 o
o HEEMBEERREECETER

BEREBABENAAERESR
WFIARETE -

Annual Report 2017 G 4R

73



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

3 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EFEREH(E)
(CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) BRI EEREE SR TE ()
(iii) Transition (Continued) (i) BEGE)
The following table summarises the impact, net of TRBLURE BB RS R F R
tax, of transition to HKFRS 9 on reserves and retained R2017F 1 A1 BRBERELRRERF 2
earnings at 1 January 2017. TE o

Impact of
adopting
HKFRS 9 at

1 January 2017
M2017E1H18

BRI
e
ERLEE 2
HK$'000
FHT

Available-for-sale investments AHHEREEGRHE
revaluation reserve

Closing balance under HKAS 39 REEESTTEAERET

(31 December 2016) ZHAR4542(2016F12A318) 1,879
Reclassification of available-for-sale investments #8157 7 B 7% iR &5 22 R 25 955 1 Al 4

revaluation reserve under HKFRS 9 HERESESHFEEEFHE (1,879)

Opening balance under HKFRS 9 (1 January 2017) RIEFBHHBRE LR FESFEF

ZHEERR(2017F1A18) -

Retained earnings REBF
Closing balance under HKAS 39 RIBBBEFERIFEINRET

(31 December 2016) BAR 482 (20164912 A318) 792,985
Recognition of expected credit losses RIEBR BT R ELEREHR

under HKFRS 9 RIEHMEEEE (7,714)
Reclassification of available-for-sale investments  iR{EE BB RS E RIS 95 #5 Al i

revaluation reserve under HKFRS 9 HERESHRHEENHHA 1,879

Opening balance under HKFRS 9 (1 January 2017) RiEE B ISR EERIEFETE
ZEIMEEER(2017F1 A18) 787,150
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

3 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

BTBEREE (F)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) EEPMEMEENFIE ST AE |(E)

(iv) Classification of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities on the Date of Initial Application of
HKFRS 9
The following table shows the original measurement
categories under HKAS 39 and the new measurement
categories under HKFRS 9 for each class of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities as at 1 January

(iv) TREERSRAEREXERTEY
BHRELRFSFAH 208

TRETEESECREERSRBE
R201761 A1 BIRBES ST ERIF39%
BEZRAFENERBER BV KRS
HAFIRET ZHTEDHE -

2017.

Financial assets

Original
dassification

under HKAS 39
REEBETEA
FIFEELRRAE

New

classification

under HKFRS 9
BEEBHEREES
ELLH bk ]

Original carrying
amount under amount under
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
BEZESHEN REFRNEREEL
FIFEBEREEE HONEEZHREE
HK$'000 HK$'000

New carrying

BT T

SREE

Loans to a joint venture 24 Loans and receivables Amortised cost 100,077 100,077
BF-HAEREIER EFRIERsE s

Unlisted equity securities 21 Available-for-sale FVTPL 1177 1177
¥ LmhaES e UARERERNGE

Insurance policy investments 21 Available-for-sale FVTPL 13,285 13,285
RBRE HEE AR ERBENIR

Trade receivables 26 Loans and receivables Amortised cost 480,920 473,206
EREHER EFRIERsE s

Deposits and other receivables 26 Loans and receivables Amortised cost 18,550 18,550
e REM YR BRRRENEE B A

Due from joint ventures 24 Loans and receivables Amortised cost 26,782 26,782
A ERE A ERREYEE BRI

Listed equity securities 21 FVTPL FVTPL 45 45
TikAES DR BRERNGE AR ERERASIER

Time deposits with banks 28 Loans and receivables Amortised cost 7,775 7,775
FEEER ERRRENEE B A

Cash and cash equivalents 28 Loans and receivables Amortised cost 283,116 283,116
ReRREZEY ERREYGE B

Total financial assets 931,727 924,013

TREERE

/ |
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

3 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 BIEEREE (&)
(CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) EEPMEMEENFIE ST HE |(E)
(iv) Classification of Financial Assets and Financial (iv) cRiEERSRABENRERERSTEEH
Liabilities on the Date of Initial Application of HREEQFSEAR o E(E)

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Original carrying New carrying

amount under amount under

Original New HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
dassification classification REBEEHEN REFEMEREEA

under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 305 EEvRIkEE HIRECZNEEE
BEESEIEN REFRUBREEN HK$'000 HK$'000
FIFEECFEIE  RIREBEZNOE FAT S

Financial liabilities

SRAE
Trade and bills payables 29 Other financial Qther financial (183,419) (183,419)
ENESERREE liabilities liabilities
EhepaR Ehesas
Other payables and accrual liabilties 29 Other financial Other financial (93,429) (93,429)
EtENFERETAE liabilities liabilites
EftemeR Ehesas
Due to Joint venture 24 Other financial Qther financial (19,751) (19,751)
ENAELEFE liabilities liahilities
EhepaR Ehesas
Interest rate swaps 27 FVTPL FVTPL (7,994) (7,994)
Fiz e DAL ERBENIE LA ERNEERSIE
Bank loans 30 Other financial Other financial (809,748) (809,748)
HITER liabilities liabilities
Eemak EeHaR
Dividends payables Other financial Other financial (43) @3)
ERRE liabilities liabilities
Ehepak EhemaRE
Total financial liabilities (1,114,384) (1,114,384)
SRERER
The application of HKFRS 9 resulted in the FERE BN MELENFORGH ERMEEMN
reclassification set out in the table above and explained DR BELT -
below.
The unlisted equity securities and insurance policy BIEEBGERFE395 @ IELTRAFESFK
investments were categorised as available-for-sale under R &S AR HHE - ZE51EB IRER SN

HKAS 39. These have been classified as measured a
FVTPL under HKFRS 9. S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

3 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

BTBEREE (F)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) EEPMEMEENFIE ST AE |(E)
(iv) Classification of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities on the Date of Initial Application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)
The following table reconciles the carrying amounts of
financial assets under HKAS 39 to the carrying amounts
under HKFRS 9 on transition to HKFRS 9 on 1 January

(iv) TREERSRAEREXERTEY
B/RELERFF A 22 E(H)

TRAR2017E1 1B BEEEETBR
EHBENE - SRMEERERSGHE
BIZ395R B 2 BRAEE IR IE B S B 53R

2017.

HKAS 39
carrying amount
at 31 December
2016
R2016%512A31R

BEEREH
ER|E30%
B REE
HK$'000
TAT

SENFISRETE 2 REE M HR -

HKFRS 9

carrying amount

at 1 January

2017

R2017%151A

Reclassification Remeasurement %8| 505
ENAR EfitE  EEzREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TR TR

Financial assets tREE
Amortised cost L
Loans to a joint venture BT-HeEREER 100,077 - - 100,077
Trade receivables: EHEAERT -
Opening balance ki 480,920 - - -
Remeasurement EifitE - - (7.714) -
Closing balance HRER - - - 473,206
Deposits and other receivables e RAMENGE 18,550 - - 18,550
Due from joint ventures ERAELEIFE 26,782 - - 26,782
Time deposits with banks BIEEER 7,775 - - 7,775
Cash and cash equivalents BeRRESED 283,116 - - 283,116
Total amortised cost Bk AeE 917,220 - (7.714) 909,506
Available-for-sale THHE
Unlisted equity securities: FrmRAES
Opening balance i 1177 - - -
To FVTPL BRIDAERERMIER - (1,177) - -
Closing balance BRE - - - -
Insurance policy investments: RIBRE -
Opening balance i 13,285 - - -
To FVTPL ERIDAENMERRIER - (13,285) - -
Closing balance BRE - - - -
Total available-for-sale HHESE 14,462 (14,462) - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

3 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

ETBEREE (F)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

ERVBREERFESHSHMT A J(H)

(iv) Classification of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities on the Date of Initial Application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv) TREERSRAEREXERTEY
BHELAEIH AL 22 E(F)

HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
carrying amount carrying amount
at 31 December at 1 January
2016 2017
12016512318 ®2017%181A
REE B REEBEE
#8|%30% Reclassification Remeasurement  #H&ER %ok
ErvREE g EfiitE  EeoBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B7 A7 T A7
FVTPL NARERBEASIR
Listed equity securities kAR 4 - - 45
Unlisted equity securities: FEmRAES
Opening balance Higs - - - -
From available-for-sale gaainE - 1177 - -
Closing balance PR - - - 1171
Insurance policy investments: RIBRE -
Opening balance B - - - -
From avalable-for-sale gnmftne - 13,285 - -
Closing balance ki - - - 13,285
Total FVTPL NRREREREMIEEE 45 14,462 - 14,507
Financial liabilities tHER
FVTPL RRRERERASIR
Interest rate swaps FliH (7,994) - - (7,.994)
Total FVTPL NRRERBREMIEEE (7,994) - - (7,994)
Other financial liabilities EfeHas
Trade and bills payables ERERENRZE (183,419) - - (183,419)
Other payables and accrual liabilities AHERZERESEE (93,429) - - (93,429)
Due to joint venture ERAE0EHE (19,751) - - (19,751)
Bank loans FIER (809,748) - - (809,748)
Dividends payables JERRE (43) - - 43)
Total other finandial liabilities HeRakeeE (1,106,390) - - (1,106,390) ———

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ERREEBAR AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

4 IEETHRME

(a) Subsidiaries and Non-controlling Interests

O PEVER T EET T

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

REIRE
MBARBASEERZHEZER - F
AEERASEZERMAREAZOR
R BENZEREOR  WHENE
BEEZERZENZELFR®HE - K
SENZEHZER - REEAEERESA
AN > REEERAREREMET
FA 2 B -

KK R AR E B HI R 4 =12 5 HE
RILBRSZE AT AR BEHRE - FER
RAEMER  RZEBAERAREMHE
BARRRRSEE 2 RE B NG R
R MBHMREZHEE - KEAQA
MR FEL 2 REH RS EEARED
R - AIRER SRR RARRELE

FRIE R B R A a5 FE T P BB 2 R P 3 3F
BARREEREZEGID - MAEE
3 4 A B R M R 2 45 B A E (AT ER
SMERR - EMERAEE BB AL ST E
HRAHEERABEELANEE -3
BEBEHME  AEEEENAARE
HIRN B AR 2 Al BRI FEET R
B DARTEIRIEAR AR A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PR M ()

=
wa

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Subsidiaries and Non-controlling Interests

(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented
as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position in accordance with notes 4(j)
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note
4(j)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or joint venture (see
note 4(b)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR R M (&)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4 FESTHHRMEGE)

(b) Joint Ventures (b) &L

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal Group that is classified as held
for sale) (see note 4(e)). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in
the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes 4
(d) and (k)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group'’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest
in the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest
is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture.

/\%TE%E—IE;ZTJF Fit - AEEZA
REEEMALTESH EBES ZUIAL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=
wa

PR M ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Joint Ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint venture are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when joint control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 4(d)).

In the company’s statement of financial position,
investments in joint venture are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 4(d)), unless classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal Group that is
classified as held for sale) (see note 4(e)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4 FESTHHRMEGE)

(/) Goodwill () BE

Goodwill Represents the Excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or Groups of
cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 4(d)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

PR ()R B () < B

() FEEREZATE  REKRETZ
RSB A EB AR AW
WS AR A E=EAF

(i) W BE T AT RR A R B R A
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ZREREEN c EREELEMRRES
EEBMAR - YEEFREIRE(RME
4(d)) -

REALERSEL B2 TABIEEA
BELBHEBENEERZIBER -

Annual Report 2017 G 4R

83



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4 FESFHBERBE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets (d) FERMEERE
(i) Internal and external sources of information are () AEBeRSEREPRRBTT AL L

reviewed at the end of each reporting period to SNFERI B ATEE TONEEB R H
identify indications that the following assets may RABELDR - SBAERZBES
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an B(EERERINZEEIBEFERE
impairment loss previously recognised no longer oA

exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than - YE BEEARERERSHE
properties carried at revalued amounts); FIBR Z WIEEBRIN)
- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified - DERBEBRLHEREZHEE
as being held under an operating lease; T2 IBAFE
-  intangible assets; - BVEE:
- goodwill; and - BER
- investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures —  BBMRERP  ARFRMER
in the Company’s statement of financial AINBEDEZIRE -
position.
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable P ERIZET R - BIEE 2 7] 0 8
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, BB o o e - KAFHAZ
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and EREENBEERFRFHIERE
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the EmNE  TweEdATMRETR 198
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or BFEEHA Y E EEE -

not there is any indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
(Continued)

0]

(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
(Continued)

(i) (Continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(ii) Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
the Group is required to prepare an interim
financial report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first
six months of the financial year. At the end of
the interim period, the group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see notes 4(d)(i) and (k)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Non-Current Assets Held-For-Sale

(f)

Non-current assets are classified as held-for-sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered
highly probable. The non-current assets are stated at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates) and
investment properties, even if held-for-sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the policies
set out elsewhere in Note 4.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The land classified as being held under finance leases
and buildings (see note 4(i)) held for own use are
stated at their revalued amount, being their fair value
at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets
does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of reporting
period.

The other items of plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 4(d)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of lands and
buildings held for own use are generally dealt with
in other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation reserve.
The only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the
revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a deficit
on revaluation in respect of that.same asset had
previously been charged to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBRRME ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see note 4(x)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the revaluation reserve to retained profits and is
not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

—  Leasehold land classified as held under finance
leases is depreciated over the unexpired term of
lease.

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

—  Machinery and equipment 5-12 years
—  Furniture and fixture 5 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
—  Leasehold improvements 5-12 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

(9)

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
Construction in progress represents factory buildings,
office premises and workers’ dormitories and related
infrastructure projects under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 4(i)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment

property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction or
development at the end of the reporting period and
their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value
or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income
from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 4(u).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as
if it were held under a finance lease (see note 4(i)), and
the same accounting policies are applied to that interest
as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for
as described in note 4(i).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBRRME ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4 FESTHHRMEGE)

(h) Intangible Assets (Other Than Goodwill) (h) EREE (BERRIM)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and
the group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised development costs
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 4(d)). Other development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses
(see note 4(d)). Expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the
date they are available for use and their estimated useful
lives are as follows:

—  Brand name 20 years
- Computer software 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that
the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is
reviewed annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful
life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for prospectively from the date of change
and in accordance with the policy for amortisation of
intangible assets with finite lives as set out above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Leased Assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

0]

Classification of Assets Leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the group are classified as operating leases,
with the following exceptions:

property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property is classified as investment
property on a property-by-property basis
and, if classified as investment property, is
accounted for as if held under a finance lease
(see note 4(g));and

land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the lease
is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Leased Assets (Continued)

(ii) Operating Lease Charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property
is classified as an investment property (see note
4(g)).

(j) Financial Instruments

0]

Recognition and Initial Measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are
initially recognised when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially recognised when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value
plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j). Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii) Classification and Subsequent Measurement

Financial assets - Policy applicable from 1
January 2017

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified
as measured at: amortised cost; FVOCI - debt
investment; FVOCI — equity investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition unless the Group changes
its business model for managing financial assets
in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

— it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

— its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4 FESHHEHMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(i) Financial Instruments (Continued)

() SBMIEE

(i) Classification and Subsequent Measurement (i) 7ERBETE(E)

(Continued)

Financial assets — Policy applicable from 1
January 2017 (Continued)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

— it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

— its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii) Classification and Subsequent Measurement

(Continued)

Financial assets — Policy applicable from 1

January 2017 (Continued)

Financial assets: Business model assessment —
Policy applicable from 1 January 2017. The Group
makes an assessment of the objective of the
business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the
way the business is managed and information
is provided to management. The information

considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for

the portfolio and the operation of those
policies in practice. These include whether
management’s strategy focuses on earning
contractual interest income, maintaining
a particular interest rate profile, matching
the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected
cash outflows or realising cash flows through
the sale of the assets;

how the performance of the portfolio is
evaluated and reported to the Group’s
management;

the risks that affect the performance of the
business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those
risks are managed;

how managers of the business are
compensated — e.g. whether compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed
or the contractual cash flows collected; and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of
financial assets in prior periods, the reasons
for such sales and expectations about future
sales activity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4 FESHHEHMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(i) Financial Instruments (Continued)

() SBMIEE

(i) Classification and Subsequent Measurement (i) PERBETTE(E)

(Continued)

Financial assets — Policy applicable from 1
January 2017 (Continued)

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in
transactions that do not qualify for derecognition
are not considered sales for this purpose,
consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition
of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are
managed and whose performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual
cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest — Policy applicable from 1 January 2017.

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’
is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.qg. liquidity
risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit
margin.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4 FESTHHRMEGE)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued) () =sRTE(GE)

(ii) Classification and Subsequent Measurement

(Continued)

Financial assets — Policy applicable from 1

(i)

2 EREETE(F)

SRMEE-H2017F1A188EH

January 2017 (Continued) B (1)
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows EEEHNRERERTEAINMNAR
are solely payments of principal and interest, the 2 RMER  AEEEETAEZE

Group considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that
could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers:

contingent events that would change the
amount or timing of cash flows;

—  terms that may adjust the contractual coupon
rate, including variable rate features;

—  prepayment and extension features; and

—  terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash
flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely
payments of principal and interest criterion if
the prepayment amount substantially represents
unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include
reasonable additional compensation for early
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a
financial asset acquired at a significant discount or
premium to its contractual par amount, a feature
that permits or requires prepayment at an amount
that substantially represents the contractual par
amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest (which may also include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination) is
treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair
value of the prepayment feature.is-insignificant at
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBRRME ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()]

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii) Classification and Subsequent Measurement

(Continued)

Financial assets — Policy applicable from 1
January 2017 (Continued)

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and
gains and losses — Policy applicable from 1 January
2017.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Net gains and losses, including any interest
or. dividend income, are recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognitlon is
recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit
or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit
or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI
and are never reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4 TEETBESE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
() Financial Instruments (Continued) () &MIA(E)
(ii) Classification and Subsequent Measurement (i) PERBETE(E)

(Continued)

Financial assets — Policy applicable before 1 SREE-N2017FE181850ER
January 2017 ZHBE
The Group classified its financial assets into one of REBBHSRMEENDEATIE
the following categories: B
-~ loans and receivables; —  EBERREWREIE
—  held to maturity; - BRI
- available for sale; and - AMEHE &
- at FVTPL, and within this category as: — AR EMERERTIER - Wt
DETIR
—  held for trading; — BEEE:
- derivative hedging instruments; or — PTHE¥HIE o
- designated as at FVTPL. —  EBEARRERNERATIER
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j). Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii) Classification and Subsequent Measurement

(Continued)

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement
and gains and losses - Policy applicable
before 1 January 2017

Financial assets at FVTPL
Measured at fair value and changes therein,
including any interest or dividend income, were
recognised in profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity financial assets
Measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Loans and financial assets
Measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Measured at fair value and changes therein, other
than impairment losses, interest income and
foreign currency differences on debt instruments,
were recognised in OCl and accumulated in
the fair value reserve. When these assets were
derecognised, the gain or loss accumulated in
equity was reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent
measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-
for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities
at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4 FESTHHRMEGE)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued) () =sRTE(GE)

(iii) Derecognition (iii) #ILFERR

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby
it transfers assets recognised in its statement
of financial position, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the

TREE
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WERER XA —EREERESD
BEENBEMARBARDRR K
B3 - RAKE L BB IERE T
BRAEMy R LB - BEREE
TREETHIEE  RULERASHE
= o

REBITUR S - BRNREMBIR
RERAZEE  ERECERDHE
EMB SRR &R - Rt
EERT  BEREET SRR LE

transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred e
assets are not derecognised.
Financial liabilities cHas

The Group derecognises a financial liability when
its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecognises
a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantially different, in which case a new
financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the
difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4 FESHHEHMEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(i) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off
the amounts and it intends either to settle them
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

(k) Impairment of Financial Assets
(i) Policy Applicable from 1 January 2017

Financial instruments

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on:

—  financial assets measured at amortised cost;
and

—  debt investments measured at FVOCI.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount

equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following,

which are measured as 12-month ECL:

— loans to a joint venture and amounts due
from joint ventures are determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date; and

— deposits and other receivables and bank
balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of
default occurring over the expected life of
the financial instrument) has not increased

significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k) Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

0]

Policy Applicable from 1 January 2017
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 180 days past due and without any
business relationship.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when:

—  the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or

—  the financial asset is more than 180 days past
due.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result
from default events that are possible within the
12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual-period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k) Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

0]

Policy Applicable from 1 January 2017
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of
the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired.
A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable data:

—  significant financial difficulty of the borrower
or issuer;

—  breach of contract such as a default or being
more than 180 days past due;

—  the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

— it is probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k) Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

0]

(i)

Policy Applicable from 1 January 2017
(Continued)

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the
statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured
at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
However, financial assets that are written off could
still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery
of amounts due.

Policy applicable before 1 January 2017

Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets not classified as at FVTPL, were
assessed at each reporting date to determine
whether there was objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence that financial assets were
impaired included:

—  default or delinquency by a debtor;

—  restructuring of an amount due to the Group
on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

— indications that a debtor or issuer would
enter bankruptcy;

— adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers or issuers;

—  the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties; or

— __observable data indicating that there was a
measurable decrease in the expected cash
flows from a group of financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=
wa

PR M ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(k) Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

(ii) Policy Applicable before 1 January 2017

(Continued)

Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)
For an investment in an equity instrument,
objective evidence of impairment included a
significant or prolonged decline in its fair value
below its cost.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
The Group considered evidence of impairment
for these assets at both an individual asset and a
collective level. All individually significant assets
were individually assessed for impairment. Those
found not to be impaired were then collectively
assessed for any impairment that had been
incurred but not yet individually identified.
Assets that were not individually significant were
collectively assessed for impairment. Collective
assessment was carried out by grouping together
assets with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group used
historical information on the timing of recoveries
and the amount of loss incurred, and made
an adjustment if current economic and credit
conditions were such that the actual losses were
likely to be greater or lesser than suggested by
historical trends.

An impairment loss was calculated as the
difference between an asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. Losses were recognised in profit
or loss and reflected in an allowance account.
When the Group considered that there were no
realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the
relevant amounts were written off. If the amount
of impairment loss subsequently decreased and
the decrease was related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
then the previously recognised impairment loss
was reversed through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4 FESTHHRMEGE)

(k) Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

(k) E@EEREGE)

(ii) Policy Applicable before 1 January 2017
(Continued)

(i) BE2017F1B1BRERAZBE(E)

Non-derivative financial assets (Continued) FTEEBEE(F)
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESHEE

Impairment tosses on available-for-sale financial
assets were recognised by reclassifying the losses
accumulated in the fair value reserve to profit or
loss. The amount reclassified was the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in profit or loss. If the fair value
of an impaired available-for-sale debt security
subsequently increased and the increase was
related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, then the
impairment loss was reversed through profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
for an investment in an equity instrument classified
as available-for-sale were not reversed through
profit or loss.

() Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such
as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps
to manage its risks associated with interest rate and
foreign currency fluctuations. Derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeaseurement to
fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
taken directly to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBRRME ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Inventories

(n)

(o)

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturity of three months or
less, and bank overdrafts. In consolidated and company
statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Trade and Bills Payables and Other Payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for
goods that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Provision

Provision is recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event; it is probable that a future outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated.

Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Income Tax

The tax expense for the Year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(i) CurrentIncome Tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associate operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate-on-the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBRRME ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s)

Income Tax (Continued)

(ii) Deferred Income Tax

(a)

(b)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of reporting date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and an associate,
except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it
is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t)

(u)

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. Where the grant relates to the prepaid
land premium, the fair value is included in non-
current liabilities as deferred income. Deferred income
is credited to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term of the
associated assets.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably.

Income from the sale of goods is recognised when
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to customers
and title has passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Rental income from investment property is recognised
in the consolidated income statement of profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBRRME ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v) Employee Benefits

0]

Share Option Scheme

The Group operates the Share Option Scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined by using a binomial model,
further details of which are given in Note 34 to
the financial statements. In valuing the granting
of share options, no account is taken of any
performance conditions, other than conditions
linked to the price of the shares of the Company
("market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/
or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the
date on which the relevant employees become
fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”).
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at each end of reporting date
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is
reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v) Employee Benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Pension Schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.

Defined Benefit Retirement Plan Obligations
The Group's net obligation in respect of defined
benefit retirement plans is calculated separately
for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine the present
value and the fair value of any plan assets is
deducted. The calculation is performed by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method. When the calculation results in a benefit
to the group, the recognised asset is limited to
the present value of economic benefits available
in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions.to-the plan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(v) Employee Benefits (Continued)

(iii) Defined Benefit Retirement Plan Obligations

(Continued)

Service cost and net interest expense (income)
on the net defined benefit liability (asset) are
recognised in profit or loss and allocated by
function as part of “cost of sales”, “distribution
costs” or “administrative expenses”. Current
service cost is measured as the increase in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from employee service in the current
period. When the benefits of a plan are changed,
or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of
the changed benefit related to past service by
employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss at the
earlier of when the plan amendment or curtailment
occurs and when related restructuring costs or
termination benefits are recognised. Net interest
expense (income) for the period is determined by
applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
reporting period to the net defined benefit liability
(asset). The discount rate is the yield at the end
of the reporting period on high quality corporate
bonds that have maturity dates approximating the
terms of the group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit
retirement plans are recognised in other
comprehensive income and reflected immediately
in retained earnings. Remeasurements comprise
actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any
change in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w) Borrowings

(x)

(y)

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised as borrowing costs over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are recognised as a liability when they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(z) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group,
which is considered as the Group’s executive team,
comprising all executive directors and headed by the
managing director. The chief operating decision-maker
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments based on the
entity-wide financial information.

(aa) Foreign Currency Translation

0]

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
which is the Company’s functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4 FESHBRMEGE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(aa) Foreign Currency Translation (Continued) (aa) SR E (&)
(ii) Transactions and balances (Continued) (i) XZEALERE)
Changes in the fair value of monetary securities DR HEHEUINEHE 2 EHIE
denominated in foreign currency classified as BHEAAEES  REFEHEKNAE

available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available for
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(aa) Foreign Currency Translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement

of financial position;

(b) income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the

dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive

income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4 FESTHHRMEGE)

(ab) Financial guarantee

(ab) A #E 4R

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due, in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and
other bodies on behalf of subsidiaries to secure loans,
overdrafts and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
financial statements at fair value on the date the
guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Company’s liabilities under such guarantees are
measured at the higher of the initial amount, less
amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the amount required
to settle the guarantee. These estimates are determined
based on experience of similar transactions and history
of past losses, supplemented by the judgement of
management. The fee income earned is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee. Any
increase in the liability relating to guarantees is reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBRRME ()

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4 FESTHEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(ac) Repurchase of shares

Where any group company purchases the Company'’s
equity share capital, the considerations paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs, is deducted
from equity attributable to the Company’s equity
holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where
such shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration
received (net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs) is included in equity attributable to
the Company’s equity holders.

5 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Notes 35 and 39 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to defined benefit retirement
obligations and financial instruments respectively. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Fair Values of Properties

The fair values of investment properties, land and
buildings are determined at the end of each reporting
period by independent professional valuers. The fair
values of certain land and buildings in Mainland China
are determined on a depreciated replacement cost
basis. This methodology is based on an estimate of the
market value for the existing use of the land, plus the
current cost of replacement of the existing structures
less deductions for physical deterioration and all relevant
forms of obsolescence and optimisation. The fair values
of the remaining land and buildings and investment
properties are determined on an open market value
basis by reference to comparable market transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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5 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5 EXEEMEE R ()

(i) W% - BERRBZALAFHR

(ii) Useful Lives and Impairment of Property,

Plant and Equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charges where useful lives are less than previously
estimated. It will dispose technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives.
Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable
lives and therefore depreciation expense in future
periods.

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment is
recognised as the amount by which the carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 4(f). The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use, which are based on the best
information available to reflect the amount obtainable
at each reporting date, from the disposal of the asset in
an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable,
willing parties, after deducting the costs of disposal.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

Current and Deferred Taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes in each of
these jurisdictions. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred tax assets and liabilities in the periods in which
such determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition of
deferred tax assets and taxation in the periods in which
such estimates have been changed.

Write-Down on Inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable
value based on an assessment of the realisability of
inventories. Write-down on inventories is recorded
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The identification
of write-down requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and write-down of
inventories in the periods in which such estimate
has been changed. In accordance with the Group’s
assessment, a reversal of write-down of inventories
of HK$2,433,000 was recorded by the Group in the
current year.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI EEER AT

5

BREEHEE R (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(v)

(vi)

The

Impairment of Receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of the receivables. Provisions are applied to receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of impairment of receivables requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of receivables and the
impairment loss of receivable is recognised in the
years in which such estimates have been changed. A
reversal of impairment provision on trade receivables
of HK$943,000 was made by the Group in the current
year.

Impairment Assessment of the Investments in
Joint Ventures

The Group tests annually whether investments in joint
ventures have suffered any impairment, in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Notes 4(b) and
(d). The recoverable amounts of investments in joint
ventures have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations or market valuations. These calculations
require the use of judgement and estimates, in
particular of future revenue or cash flow. Management
believes that any reasonable possible deviation from any
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amounts of cash-generating units to exceed
their recoverable amounts.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Group's executive team, comprising all executive

directors and headed by the managing director of the
Company, is considered as the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (“CODM"). The CODM reviews the performance of
the Group on a regular basis.

A U RR M ()

5 EXEEMEE R ()

(v) BWRREREIE

7R 5 AR 4 S e WG TR A MR B 1 2 B R A
FHRREMIERERE EEEMXE
B CBURAESRARE N TR - RIFHEE
Wk TR B s o 3R WS IRR B R E R A
B R fhE o MIEBA RN REMEE - AlE
MERRBTERMATRE L FERRZ
JRE o R AR T A K B W R B 18 » AR
SERARFEE D E 5 U IRRE B
943,000/ T ©

(vi) REERERE ZREFE

R EAb) R (d) it 2 &5t BGR - A%
BEFENEECEZRERTHBRMEM
MEETAR c REEEEREZATER
CHERBEEAEBEFEXTSHEE
E o REFTEREZERAM AR LH
RARKERHERE - EEER/EM
ZEBRRZABVRFEEHSTEEERS
EEBUZ @RAEBRER KL -

D EPER
MAARZEHTEFER T M EFRERRE
ZAEEHTERRRAEIBLBRAEA(EE
BEREAL) - EBEEBREAT IR LD
2R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6 TDEBER(E)
As substantial business operations of the Group relate to F A ZR £2 (B A 2B (9 275 A4 B B s © S TR 58
the manufacturing, selling and distribution of electronic BRTHAE  MASEEELE RS AREM

components, the CODM makes decisions about resources A1 B E R S B B R BT >
allocation and performance assessment based on the entity- . i A Frlr
RE o Bt - AEBRBE—EAE AT 2HOEP °

wide financial information. Accordingly, there is only one sk e | b s et
single reportable segment for the Group. Set out below is a EREERRATEIIE 2 ERRRIEEH R

summary list of key performance indicators reviewed by the FlgE

CODM on a regular basis:

2017 AONIS)

20175 20164

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Revenue WA 1,275,923 987,027
Gross profit EF 280,046 163,552
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE(%) 21.9% 16.6%
EBITDA" EBITDA® 152,276 101,368
EBITDA margin (%) EBITDALL % (%) 11.9% 10.3%
Operating expenses” 4 1 35 FR ) 212,213 194,831
Operating expenses/revenue (%) 42 B AU A B R (%) 16.6% 19.7%
Profit/(loss) for the year REZHF, (EE) 45,205 (13,102)
Net profit/(loss) margin (%) WF, CREE) E (%) 3.5% (1.3%)
Total assets BEMAE 2,753,087 2,475,167

Equity attributable to equity holders RARERB AEERER
of the Company (the “Equity”) ([HEz=]) 1,416,507 1,242,410
Inventories (finished goods only) FE(EEEKM) 157,081 164,258
Inventory turnover days (finished GFEREXS(ERERKSR)

goods only) 58 73
Trade receivables FEWE ZEEFN 640,594 480,920
Trade receivables turnover days FEWE 5 BR R E K& 183 178
Trade and bills payables JERTE SRR R RE 225,069 183,419
Trade and bills payables turnover days BN E FERER M E R EEKE 82 81
Total interest-bearing debt STEEBEE 847,079 809,748
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEED 312,702 283,116
Time deposits with banks SRITEHFER - 7,775
Net debt EEF5E 534,377 518,857
Net gearing ratio (%) F BB E(%) 37.7% 41.8%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6 DHER(E)

Notes: Vo

() EBITDA represents the earnings before interest expense, tax, (i)  EBITDAJEARFTFIEXZH - BiTE - WEREHENA
depreciation and amortisation. A o

(i) Operating expenses represent the expenditure that the Group iy KEBREASEBECEE—REBMEEZH
incurs as a result of performing its normal business operations, X BEEE  AHER  THEBERURER
including selling and distribution costs, administrative expenses BHEX LA ERZIEREEB 2 BE (5
and reversal of/(provision for) impairment loss on trade and #) o

other receivables..

The following table presents the revenue from external TRIBAEEZIBAEE D ZINAFFPIRA
customers and specified non-current assets of the Group MR TEIERDEE - REZHMIEN EREFPATE
by geographical locations. The geographical location of WME ° ZSFETEIERDEEZHMIENE JHiRE
customers is based on the geographical location of the E  BMELERENS  BEZEREM -
customers. The geographical location of the specified non- MEFEENEEMS @ TESER 2 LEDE K
current assets is based on the physical location of the asset, MRAEDE I EFME  SEMBME -

in the case of property plant and equipment, the location
of the operation to which they are allocated, in the case
of intangible assets and goodwill, and the location of
operations, in the case of interest in joint ventures.

Year ended 31 December
HBZ12A31BLLEE

2017 PAONIS)

20175 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHT

Revenue from external customers by  iRibIE {7 B &5 =2 ¥4

geographical locations BEERA
Hong Kong ) 83,093 122,278
Mainland China R A, 841,756 582,429
Taiwan =0 221,771 165,676
Southeast Asia e 15,815 23,590
Korea 457 4,398 4,955
United States EH 32,871 36,149
Europe BN 50,284 34,296
Other countries EH Bz 25,935 17,654

1,275,923 987,027
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

6 ZHEHERE)

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2017 2016
2016%F
HK$°000

TAT

20174
HK$’000
FHET

Non-current assets by physical RibBE D 2 RBEE

locations (excluding deferred tax (TEEUAAEBEFABEZ

assets and financial assets at fair SREERELHELEE)

value through profit or loss)
Hong Kong B 75,872 136,065
Mainland China B 1,026,230 962,328
Other countries BRI 323 199

1,102,425 1,098,592

7 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET
(LOSSES)/GAINS

(a) Revenue
Revenue of the Group’s represents the net value of
goods sold, after allowances for trade returns and
discounts.

The amount of each significant category of revenue is as
follows:

Manufacturing and trading of BEREEE LM
electronic components
Trading of raw materials BE R

g% C HWA R H b (B5E),KE

(@ WA

AERBZBAEMELEREHBRER
Ptk 2 #E -

EREZWAERIFELT ¢

2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FAET
1,275,416 986,498
507 529
1,275,923 987,027
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

7 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET 7
(LOSSES)/GAINS (CONTINUED)

WA~ B A R B (&5E8),
W 55 754 58 ()

(b) Other Income

(b) EfEA

2017 2016
20174 20165
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Scrap sales EERLEHE 768 340
Subsidies from Central People’s o A RBUF B
Government 1,603 1,395
Rental income generated from WEMEEEZBES WA
investment properties 3,539 4,852
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE KR
plant and equipment (F518) Mz (518) 6.212
Others HAit 4,379 1,129
9,771 13,928

(c) Other Net (Losses)/Gains

(o) HituF(EE), s

2017 PAONNS)

20174 2016%F

HK$'000 HK$’000

T FAT

Dividend income fig S A 1,157 -
Fair value gain on investment wEWMEZ R ENS

properties (Note 20) (H17#20) 15,696 10,756

Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain E N % (FE8) s (28,259) 12,280

Write-off of other payable (Note) Hoth JE A~ FOE S (A aE) 2,808 6,594
Fair value gain on financial assets AR ERERIIERZ

at fair value through profit or loss eRMEEANERE 8,549 -

(49) 29,630

Note:  As of 31 December 2017, other payable of MizF - 20179128318 - ARELETHZ
HK$2,808,000 (2016: HK$6,594,000) was fully BRI H - BCH M < 5)1E 2,808,000
written off as the obligation specified in the contract 770 (2016%F + 6,594,000/ 7T ) B 2B ER

has expired. sy o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

8 OPERATING PROFIT
The Group's operating profit is arrived at after charging/
(crediting) the following:

8 K&ni
AEE 2 @ERFEMG GEA) THIEE

2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Employee benefit expenses REBEHMMAX 9 252,811 225,001
Cost of inventories sold (including BHEFERA(BIE
raw materials and consumables B A2 R R RERED
used and changes in inventories AR ER SR ERGZ
of finished goods and work in FEEH)
progress) 25(b) 998,016 824,679
Auditor’s remuneration ZER NS
— Audit services —ZH AR 1,500 1,500
— Non-audit services — IR 680 430
Depreciation of property, M - BERRENE
plant and equipment 18 59,630 73,499
Amortisation of prepaid land TR E TR B
premium 19 1,533 1,547
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 6 22 332 885
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE - BE RRE
plant and equipment E1E, (W) 518 (6,212)
Lease payments under operating T REFEEEE
leases for land and buildings e 24,237 21,139
Write-down of inventories TFEMUR 25 3,946 2,440
Reversal of write-down of inventories 7% & fij5 &=l 25 (6,085) (3,644)
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment FEUE F 8RN E b
loss on trade and other receivables  FEUZkTE 7 R (EEIE
(B[, 26 (943) 9,979
Trade receivables written off HMisHEWE 58RI 26 (4) 1,252
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial AR ERERSIRZ
assets at fair value through profit CREEAABME),
or loss &8 (8,549) 6
Deferred income recognised as RIEU A FER BUA
income (304) (307)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

T& K

Wages and salaries

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

Expenses recognised in respect of
defined benefit retirement plan
(Note 35(a)(v))

Total employee benefit expenses

TR HFURRGT B

REENRA &R

R BTSRRI ()

9 EEFEAREX

HERARAERMBRNGEIZ
sz (f15£35(a)Wv)

2017 2016
201745 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
234,002 207,324
18,818 17,648
9) 29
252,811 225,001

10 CHANGES IN FAIR VALUES OF DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value (losses)/gains on

interest rate swaps (Note 27) (Hiiz27)

TTESRMTAQMAREZEE

2017 2016

20174 20164
HK$'000

HK$'000
FH T

Flxm Bz A E(ER) e

(2,898) 2,198

At 31 December 2017, the Group held certain interest
rate swap contracts entered into in 2009 and 2010 for a
contracted period of ten years each. These contracts were
entered into to stabilise the Group’s overall interest expense
for the periods covered by these contracts.

2017128318 » AEEFEE THR2009F
KR2010F I 2 M EIBHELH  ANFHEA
10F - ZEEGNNABTEALEEREHHANZ
BEEF S MEIAL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

11 FINANCE COSTS 11 B
2017 AONIS)
20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Interest expense on bank loans RITERZF BT 25,976 26,506
Others HAith 2,606 3,691
28,582 30,197
Less: Interest expenses capitalised W BERMERERIREZ
into construction in progress FEZH = (300)
28,582 29,897
12 FINANCE INCOME 12 B A
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH&xT T4
Interest income from loan to BT —HEEREZERZ
a joint venture (Note 24) MEWA B et24) 3,701 3,556
Interest income from term deposits and FEHERRRITESRZ
bank balances 2 U A 966 1,194

4,667 4,750
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A U RR M ()

13 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13 EEME
(a) Directors’ Emoluments (a) EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Appendix B R A+ SR BB A THEN S
16 to the Listing Rules and section 383(1) of the Hong 3BMNEHEEEEME T ¢

Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2017: BHZE2017F12A31ALFE ¢

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:
AEAREEZ(TRAXAARHNBARER BECAEK ML

Employer's

contribution

Estimated toa
money value  retirement

of other benefit

Discretionary benefits scheme
Fees Salary bonuses  Hftflgz  EEHER Total
He He RERAL GHEREE RAFHER @it
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TiEn TiEn TiEn

Chairman and Executive Director: IRRBTES:

Kee Chor Lin iRE - 4,725 1,870 157 18 6,770
Executive Directors: HTEE:

Chan Yu Ching, Eugene BFE - 3,900 850 196 18 4,964
Wong Ching Ming, Stanley THH - 1,080 - - 18 1,098
Chan Tat Cheong, Alan =22 - 2,100 - - 18 2,118

Independent Non-executive Directors: BUF#HTES

Mar, Selwyn S 400 - - - - 400
Li Sau Hung, Eddy 35%f 360 - - - - 360
Lo Kwok Kwei, David EEE 360 - - - - 360

1,120 11,805 2,720 353 72 16,070
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A IS RAR M ()

13 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2016:

13 EEME(E)

(a) EEEE(E)
HZE20165F12A31HIEFE -

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:

il
Employer's
contribution

Estimated toa

money value  retirement

of other benefit

Discretionary  benefits scheme

Fees Salary bonuses ETHEMA
we T B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL AT BT

Chairman and Executive Director: TERANTES:

Kee Chor Lin s - 4,725 - 173 18 4,916

Executive Directors: HiTEs:

Chan Yu Ching, Eugene BFE - 3,900 - 204 18 41
Wong Ching Ming, Stanley TR - 1,080 - - 18 1,098
Yeung Yuk Lun BEE(R2016F

(resigned on 12 April 2016) 4ANAEME) - 561 - - 6 567
Chan Tat Cheong, Alan REE (20168

(appointed as director 10A3BZfF

on 3 October 2016) BEE) - 1232 - - 12 1244

Independent Non-executive Directors: B UF#{18%
Mar, Selwyn EOE 400 - - - - 400
Li Sau Hung, Eddy e 360 - - - - 360
Lo Kwok Kwei, David iy 360 - - _ _ 360
1,120 11,498 - 377 72 13,067

(b) Information About Loans, Quasi-Loans

(b) BRALES - XEFEAEERESR

and Other Dealings in Favour of Directors,
Controlled Bodies Corporate by and
Connected Entities with Such Directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the year
(2016: Nil).

HESHBERRIBAZER
BERRHMRZ 2ER

FERBENES  SEBDAABERZ
LEECHEBRATHAZER  EE
REEMRZ S (201645 : £) -
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R BTSRRI ()

13 DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 13 EEME(E)

(c) Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, () EENRS  REREHNHDPZEKX
Arrangements or Contracts =
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts RATEEREER I ARG BEHPET
in relation to the Company’s business to which the N RNANETEEHEEEEESE A
Company was a party and in which a director of the WM ERAFERNEMEBNAFEZE
Company had a material interest, whether directly or KRG ~ LHEREH(20165F « ) ©
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year (2016: Nil).

14 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
The five highest paid individuals during the Year included REEANRA LR IEESBIFENA (20165 ¢
four (2016: four) directors, details of whose remuneration ME)ES - BREESESIN SHEHN Wi
are set out in Note 13 above. 1314 e

14 LEBESFHNES

FREH—R(20165F  —B)ReFHMEEH
Bz 80T

Details of the remuneration of the remaining one (2016: one)
highest paid individual during the year were as follows:

2017 2016
20175 20164

HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THET

Salaries and allowances e MoERL 910 878
Discretionary bonuses EEIEAT 18 -
Pension scheme contributions RS AT IR 18 18
946 896

The remuneration of the remaining one highest paid Hip— 2 GEeHiiEE c e @A TR -

individual is within the following band:

2017 2016
20175 20164

HK$'000 HK$°000
THET THET

Between HK$500,000 to HK$999,999 71F-500,000/8 7T % 999,999 7T 1 1

REEY E AT &= R B ST HBE
BIMAREBHIMARE B 7 BN ERERE
BE - AFEERN - ARRSFMERMERE
Sk [F B EEAH M (20165 © )

No remuneration has been paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the five individuals with highest remuneration
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the Year

(2016: Nil).
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4 AR

p E EEE )

I =Pz

15 INCOME TAX

(a) Taxation in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss Represents:

15 Fris®t
(a) HREB|IRZBIAE -

2017 2016

20174 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT FH&T

Current tax: BNEAFHIA

— Hong Kong -5 1,771 1,536
- Outside Hong Kong - BEAIN 15,339 6,261
(Over)/under-provision in prior years FF(EBER), /TR B (403) 2,389
16,707 10,186
Deferred tax (Note 31) RICRIB (A1 5E31) 287 (1,544)
Total tax charge for the year REFEHEFHIEZH 16,994 8,642

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the Year. Taxes on
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which
the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

In accordance with the relevant tax rules and regulations
in Mainland China, certain of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China enjoy tax exemptions.
All subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to income
taxes at applicable rates ranging from 15% to 25%.

Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and
Mainland China is charged at the appropriate current
rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED E#¥RHZEBER AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15 INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation Between Tax Expenses and
Accounting Profit at the Applicable Tax Rate
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax using the statutory rates for the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
effective tax rates is as follows:

R BTSRRI ()

15 FREH (&)

(b) BIRBAXEEFHRFRERB Rt
B2k
EAARRARERSBOMERBEEME
BIRREER EEBEAE ZBRBA
BN ZERRIAMN - BRERREE
ZBBERXHERIT

Profit/(loss) before tax BREATET, (E8)

Tax calculated at domestic tax 2R RME R B RO A
rates applicable to profits in ZEMRERGEY
the respective countries BB

Lower tax rate for specific local EHETHEZE Y
authority BER =

Income not subject to tax BARTUA

Expenses not deductible for tax TAMERBEE S I H

(Over)/under-provision in prior years & (%), 22

BitE

Recognition of tax losses not REFRHERLZ
recognised in prior year s EE

Utilisation of tax losses not previously ) bATE K FERT 15
recognised BB

Tax losses not recognised KRB EE

Tax charge at the Group's effective  ZAREBEBREFIRHE
rate AL

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 % HK$'000
FHT % FHT
62,199 (4,460)
16,106 (1,092)
(3,123) (572)
(6,639) (4,241)
2,239 2,448

(403) 2,389
(3,530) -

(121) (527)
12,465 10,237
16,994 27.3 8,642 (193.8)

The share of income tax attributable to joint ventures
amounting to HK$3,493,000 (2016: HK$2,795,000) is
included in “Share of results of joint ventures” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

B & & E TS BK %3,493,0007% 7T
(20164F : 2,795,000/ 7C) Dt AR A 1B2E
RZIEEREEEE] -
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A IS RAR M ()

15 INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 15 A% (&)
() Tax Effect Relating to Each Components of () HHEMEEWALBGEE2ZBIE
Other Comprehensive Income A&
Tax effect relating to each components of other EHE M 2R A S IEE 2 HEEEN
comprehensive income is as follows: T

2017 2016
20174 20164
Before After Before After
tax Tax tax tax Tax tax

BRBAT BE  BRBIR | ERARAD BB BRBR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THExr FEx FHEx | TExL TEem 1AL

Fair value gains/(losses): DhEkE
(B18)
- Land and buildings — T REF
(Note18) (B1:#18) 6,140 (1,535) 4,605 (2,099) 713 (1,386)
— An available-for-sale ——IEAfhE
investment B = = = 254 - 254
— Remeasurement of net —EMHERE
defined benefit assets BHEEFH 7 (1 6 929 (158) 771
Currency translation differences [& 3 =% 133,783 - 133,783 (135,847) - (135,847)
Other comprehensive income  E2mEUWA 139,930 (1,536) 138,394 (136,763) 555 (136,208)
Deferred tax (Note 31) BRI B (M7231) (1,536) 555
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

16 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 16 ERER(&H#E)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the EREARBRTBBEARRGRERSE AEIS
profit for the Year attributable to equity holders of the N4 JZ i 748,177,000 % 7T (2016 6 : B 18
Company of HK$48,177,000 (2016: loss of HK$14,905,000), 14,905,000 70 ) R AR FEANE HITH LB
and the weighted average number of 475,548,000 (2016: B% 2 N #E F ¥ 2 475,548,000 % (2016 4 -
475,557,000) ordinary shares in issue during the Year. 475,557,0008%) 5T & -

(i) Weighted Average Number of Ordinary (i) BFERZINEFLIE

Shares

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January MTATEE T SRR 475,548 476,239
Effect of shares repurchased RS 2 2 = (682)

Weighted average number of ordinary 7128318 %i@& 2 i

shares at 31 December 58 475,548 475,557
The diluted earnings per share is calculated by GRREER A T AR R A #5882 BT
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary TER R g R R E BT AR e
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive TR E -

potential ordinary shares.

The diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic HRARARARFERBZE2016512 4318
earnings per share as the Company’s share options IEFE 2 RATR AR Ty I e 2 B
outstanding during the Year and the year ended 31 AR - WEREE AP EGREARZ NG
December 2016 were anti-dilutive ordinary shares. [ e
17 DIVIDENDS 17 BE
The Board of Directors did not recommend final dividend for EZGTERREAFE 2 EAREBAKE(2016
the Year (2016: Nil). Fm|) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a) Reconciliation of Carrying Amount

Land

1
HKS'000
Thn

Buildings
BT
HKS$'000
TiEn

18

Machinery
and
equipment
BERRR
HKS$000
TR

M - BMERRE
(a) FREEZH R

Furniture
And Motor  Leasehold Construction
fixtures  vehicles improvements in progress E]
FRR%E R HENREE  ARIE EH
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TR TEn TER TEn TER

At 1 January 2017 201751718
Cost or valuation AAESGE
Accumulated depreciation  E3t47E

Net carmying amount FEE

Opening net carrying amount 4 4JEF 4

Additions HE

Transfer to investment ERERENE
properties (Note 20) (i20)

Disposals HE

Surplus on revaluation Bt RHIE15)
(Note 15)

Depreciation for the year  £ATEAE

Transfers £

Exchange realignment EH3E

Closing net carrying amount ~ F RBEE 5

At 31 December 2017: 017124318

Cost or valuation MAELIEE
Accumulated depreciation  Z3HTE

Closing net carrying amount ~ FXEEF4E

3721 200,128 1,185,161 34,614 14,563 127,828 7843 1,603,858
- - (849,958) (27,664) (11,676) (89,340) - (978,638)
3,721 200,128 335,203 6,950 2,887 38,488 7,843 625,220
3721 200,128 335,203 6,950 2,887 38,488 7,843 625,220
- 62 26,414 1,013 LIy 4,558 495 33,483
(33,721) (6,579) - - - - - (40,300)
- - (2,652) (72) (220) - (75) (3,019)
- 6,140 - - - - - 6,140
- (4,816) (45,825) (1,325) (705) (6,959) - (59,630)
- - 94 > = 3979 (4,073) -
- 13,616 23218 291 118 2,734 393 40,370
- 208551 336,452 6,857 3,021 42,800 4,583 602,264
- 208551 1,244,665 37,110 13,113 143,783 4583 1,651,805
- - (908213)  (30,253)  (10,092)  (100,983) - (1,049,541)
- 208551 336,452 6,857 3,021 42,800 4,583 602,264

During the Year, the Group transferred an owner-
occupied property located in Hong Kong to an

investment property (Note 20).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18 Y% - BMERRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Reconciliation of Carrying Amount (a) FREIEZ¥R(E)
(Continued)
Machinery
and  Furniture Motor  Leasehold  Construction
land  Buidings  equipment  And fixtures vehicles improvements in progress Total
;| BT B ] £ EEIE a)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr T T BT BT T AT ThT
At 1 January 2016 #201651 818
Cost or valuation RAESHE 391 23489 1,190,645 3452 15,896 133,300 3649 1635472
Accumulated depreciation  Z3HH7E - - (8005760 (8373 (13772) (81,682 - (924403
Net carrying amount FHFE 39N 223,489 390,069 6,149 2,124 51,618 3,649 711,069
Opening net carrying amount 4B F 5 391 223,489 390,069 6,149 2,124 51,618 3,649 711,069
Additions HE - - 6,588 2,531 1,108 1,852 4,59 16,675
Transfer to investment ERTHENE
properties (Note 20) (Hit0) (1,100) (900) - - - - - (2,000)
Acquisition of a E-HRERA
subsidiary (Note 42) W) - 39 20,230 - 358 - - 20,627
Disposals HE - - (4,400) (25) (89) (143) - (4,657)
Surplus/{defici) on EfRs/(Bi)
revaluation (Note 15) (i15) 1,849 (3,948) - - - - - (2,099)
Depreciation for the year FhifE (999) (5,236) (53,209) (1,391) (646) (12,018) - (73,499)
Transfers g - - - N 7 - - -
Exchange realignment EH A% - (13316) (24075 (307) 25 (2.821) (402)  (40,89)
Closing net carrying amount ~ F KBREFE 3,721 200128 335203 6,950 2,887 38,488 7,843 625,220
At 31 December 2016: 20165128318 :
Cost or valuation RAESEE B 200128 1,185,161 34614 14563 127,828 7843 1,6038%8
Accumulated depreciation  Z3f#E - - (849,958) (27,664) (11,676) (89,340) - (978,639)
Closing net carrying amount & RBEEF 5 37 200,128 335,203 6,950 2,887 38,488 7843 625,220

Annual Report 2017 &3k 139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18 Y% - BMERRE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Fair Value Measurement of Properties (b) MEZAAREFE
The following table presents the fair value of the TREIJAREEYERME RRIZET M
Group's properties measured at the end of the reporting HEAEZAAE  WIHBEBWERS
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three- ERIE 1R AR EFFEIFREIBAAE
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair EWHE - RABEHESHTI2REER
value measurement. The level into which a fair value MATABABB 2 IBEEREEUET
measurement is classified is determined with reference wm

to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only - BEEE: EERE1EBHEASE
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in E7ARE BN ERHEREE
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at LB EMERTIS CREHERE

the measurement date

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level - F2EME: ERE2EHAREE
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet ZRoRE A RaRIBZAHBE
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable WMABIE B REFEREATTERE
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which ABHR o TR B A BUE IR AR
market data are not available BHisERZ 8 AR

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using - FI3EMHE: FRERNTAUBEREA
significant unobservable inputs BT EC A ARE

Fair value hierarchy ARERBR

Fair value measurements categorised into

AREFEZDE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F—E E=E =8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET THET
Recurring fair value measurements BREMDRETE
Land and buildings T RIEF
31 December 2017 2017§12A31H - - 208,551
31 December 2016 2016512 A31H - - 233,849
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M ()

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

18 W% - WERZRE(E)

(b) MEzAREFEGHE)

(b) Fair Value Measurement of Properties

(Continued)
There were no transfers among level 1, 2 and 3 during
the Year.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

The Group’s remaining land and buildings were
revalued individually on 31 December 2017 by
Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer, at an aggregate value
of HK$208,551,000 (2016: HK$233,849,000). A
revaluation gain totalling HK$6,140,000 (2016: loss of
HK$2,099,000), resulting from the above valuations,
has been credited to the relevant asset revaluation
reserve. Had these land and buildings been carried
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, their carrying values would
have been approximately HK$142,255,000 (2016:
HK$142,590,000).

The Group’s management have discussion with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each interim
and annual reporting date.

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

Unobservable input

Valuation techniques and range
Land and buildings held for Depreciated replacement Construction cost
own use in Mainland China approach  per sq.m. ranged from

RMB1,600 to RMB2,800

KEEAN - F1E - F2EBNFEIEZETE
iz o

AEBEZBRASNHRERARERBRL
MEBRZEMHAREHER - BRAH
BARE -

AREFEBHBTEBELHEEFEHRBE LR
E¥LERGEMEAENGAMITERA
AIEMER207F12A31B2RBEAR
208,551,000% 7T (2016 4F : 233,849,000
BL) e Pl EELAEMEBEAH
6,140,000 7T (20164F : 182,099,000/
70) - BB IEBEESGEE - BEREZS
T RAIEFIRE L AR R I E RRE
518518k - RIEBRME(E R4 A142,255,000
BIC(201645F : 142,590,000/ 7)) °

REDBRFERSE AHRRMGER - &
SEEEERAERRRGESERENE
BMAETTRI# ©

BERFIBAAEFEZERM

AER
BEnNE  BARBLEE

RRERERRL EEE: BERABENA
THREF NEARE 6007
EARE28007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b) Fair Value Measurement of Properties

(Continued)

Level 3 fair values of land and buildings located
in Mainland China have been derived using the
depreciated replacement cost approach, which is based
on an estimate of the market value for the existing
use of the land, plus the current cost of replacement
of the existing structures less deductions for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence and
optimisation.

The movements during the year in the balance of these
level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

18 W% - WERZRE(E)

(b) ME2zAREFEGHE)

URPEARM s T RBTFZEIBRA
BENRFESERNEER - TEEEK
FOELAH IR A L3 2 TE 2 fhat RE
® AMEERABEYMIBRERA - B
BMERERBEBERALMARBIERA ZRE
KB Z 3R -

F3IWARMEH B2 BHEAFEZ BB
™~

Land and buildings

At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H
Additions NE
Surplus on revaluation HhAHK

Depreciation charged for the year ~ AFEEIFEFRS
Transfer to investment properties WS A EYE

(Note 20) (Kratz0)
Exchange realignment bE 5 A%
At 31 December 2017 20175124318

T REF
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
Bk Bl A 3t #et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET THET
40,300 193,549 233,849
= 62 62
- 6,140 6,140
- (4,816) (4,816)
(40,300) - (40,300)
- 13,616 13,616
- 208,551 208,551
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18 Y% - BERFZE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Fair Value Measurement of Properties (b) MEZDIAEBETEGE)

(Continued)

Land and buildings

+ith RiEF
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
BB R Bl A #BaEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET THET
At 1 January 2016 M20165F1H1H 41,300 216,160 257,460
Additions NE - - -
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation BHERS (B 2,215 (4,314) (2,099)
Depreciation charged for the year ~ ARFEEEFRL (1,215) (5,020) (6,235)
Transfer to investment properties B EE
(Note 20) (Hizt20) (2,000) - (2,000)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Ui — MM B AR - 39 39
Exchange realignment B 5 FEEE - (13,316) (13,316)
At 31 December 2016 120165612 A31H 40,300 193,549 233,849
Surplus or deficit on revaluation and exchange FRIEERME 2 EMRER B R
realignment of properties held for own use are BRI RIR WA B EEEIRER
recognised in other comprehensive income in KBNS TR o

“revaluation reserve” and “exchange fluctuation
reserve” respectively.

() Prepayment of Property, Plant and Equipment () W% BERRBEENRE
The amount of prepayment of property, plant and TERERE—FALYE  BEREREZ
equipment expected to be transferred to property, Y - BB K& TR 5105 66,428,0007%
plant and equipment after more than one year is JL(20164F : 56,570,000/ 7T) °

HK$66,428,000 (2016: HK$56,570,000).

Annual Report 2017 3% 143



144

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

19 PREPAID LAND PREMIUM

The movements in prepaid land premium during the year
were as follows:

19 THHEEFEMNAR
ERAETEN R ST -

2017 2016
20174 20165
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Carrying amount at 1 January MTATEZERE®RE 65,699 71,728
Amortisation during the year R Y (1,533) (1,547)
Exchange realignment IE 3% 4,552 (4,482)
Carrying amount at 31 December R12A31AZERE& 5 68,718 65,699

20 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20 REWF

2017 PAONNS)
20174 2016%F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHT T
At fair value RARE

At 1 January ®1A1H 150,396 141,530

Transfer from owner-occupied ERAXTEADE
property (Note 18) (H1i18) 40,300 2,000
Disposal HeE (74,209) -
Gain on fair value adjustment (Note 7(c)  RrEARZ WS (H77C) 15,696 10,756
Exchange realignment ME 3% 4,339 (3,890)
At 31 December M12A310 136,522 150,396

(@) Amounts Recognised in Profit and Loss for
Investment Properties

(a) MBREMENERZRBRZEH

2017 2016

20174 2016%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Rental income HeBA 3,539 4,852
Direct operating expenses from EEHSWAZMEZEEE

property that generated rental BRY
income (930) (519)
2,609 4,333

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED E#¥RHZEBER AT




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

20 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Fair Value Measurement of Properties

0]

Fair Value Hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

Recurring fair value REMDNAETE
measurements
Investment properties KEME
— Completed residential -BExRIEEDE
properties — Mainland — BN
China
— Completed commercial -BRIAmEYE
properties — HK —&E
— Under development - BRPEEDE
commercial property — — BN,

Mainland China

20 REWE(E)
(b) MEZQIAREFE

0]

DNRERER
TREJAKEYEN RS ARIRL
FUEESAEZARE  WIRBEE
M mEERE1FARAEFEFR
REMFERABEERDE - AAER
BERTISREERM TR EASRE
ZABRERBEZUEETEW T

- HIERE:EERFIERA
BURStEZ ARE  BIREtER
HIEREERBBEERMSZ

- E2BMHE: ERE2EE AR
BETBZAARE  AAFEE
Bz ERa AR RAER
EATAIBEGARE - TAE
S ABBIEREANETSER
ZEABIE

- H3BMHE: ERERTHER
BWABBIEZARE

Fair value measurements

at 31 December 2017 categorised into
R2017F12A31B AREFEZDE

Level 1

F1E
HK$'000
FTHET

Level 3
%3fE
HK$’'000
FHET

Level 2
%2fE
HK$’'000
FET

2,082

69,600

64,840

136,522
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

20 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 20 REWME(E)

(b) Fair Value Measurement of Properties (b) MEZQAAEBEFTEGE)
(Continued)

(i) Fair Value Hierarchy (Continued) (i) 2ArEERGE)

Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2016 categorised into
R2016F12 A31BRAEFEZHEE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
FE1E FE2fE S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FHIT FHIT
Recurring fair value REMAARETE
measurements
Investment properties EME
— Completed residential -BRIFEDE
properties — Mainland China — R A - - 1,946
— Completed commerecial -BRImEmE
properties — HK — &5 - - 89,200
— Under development —EREPEEYE
commercial property — — R A
Mainland China - - 59,250
- - 150,396
There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 KEEN - F1E - F2ERFEIE 2 HILE
during the Year. The Group'’s policy is to recognise o  AEBZBRANERERANE
transfers into and transfers out of fair value EBHRzEEE 2 EHhIARREBHER - #
hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or RAEES -
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
The Group obtains independent valuations for REEZRDEBF AR EREYEEEE
its investment properties at least annually. In the SAHE c RAFE - hEH KSR
current year, the valuations are performed by Ravia BHAARATHET  c EENEMEHMLE
Global Appraisal Advisory Limited. At the end of REEHREHEEMER LB
each reporting period, the directors update their EHE R YE - FEUEE
assessment of the fair value of each property, ZAREEFTBEETYE 2 EE -
taking into account the most recent independent
valuations. The directors determine a property’s
value within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates.
The Group management has discussion with REFREARFERSEBHARRMAER - K
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and SEEBEEMRGERKXIGERSREANE
valuation results when the valuation is performed EEA TR 5 ©

at each interim and annual reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

20 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 20 BEWHE(E)
(b) Fair Value Measurement of Properties (b) WEZAREBEEE)
(Continued)
(ii) Information about Level 3 Fair Value (i) EEFIBARETEZER
Measurements
Unobservable AIER
Valuation techniques  input and range [HERE  BABEREE

Investment properties Direct comparison  Premium on quality of BEIRENE ERUEE BFEE

in Hong Kong approach  the building ranged from BENT

0% t0 4% 0%Z4%

Investment property Residual  Gross development value RbElR % MBEELT  STAAARE

under development approach  per sq.m. of RMB8,800 EHRENE BARES 800

in Mainland China
There were no changes to the valuation techniques RAFERER - H{EF AN & E 0] &
during the Year. g o
For the completed investment properties, their RETTIREMENS HAnER
fair values are generally derived using the direct BHABEERLLERER - HELEE
comparison approach, which basically uses the EAR ENBAERTS RSz E
comparable sales transactions as available in the HEIHERSEBWERAAE © fHR
relevant market to derive the fair value of the RERGEHER  ERAEERKRE
properties. Where such information is not available LHEZER B

the directors consider information from a variety of
sources including:

() current prices in an active market for () TREBZMERERTSZIR
properties of different nature or recent prices TTERIFEUMENE T ERT
of similar properties in less active markets, BT HA B (B R o=
adjusted to reflect those differences; EIEHHARE)

(i) discounted cash flow projections based on (i) WIBRFRSREZ AISREFTM
reliable estimates of future cash flows; or EH ZBEIRIB SR80 5 5K

(iii) capitalised income projections based upon a (i) ARBEWE 2 EH TS AFEE A
property’s estimated net market income, and RIREMISBBED NG ZER
a capitalisation rate derived from an analysis LR MmiEL 2 EAR(L U ATE
of market evidence. Al e

I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

20 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 20 REWE(E)

(b) Fair Value Measurement of Properties
(Continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 Fair Value

Measurements (Continued)

For the under development investment property,
its fair value is derived using the residual approach.
This valuation method is essentially a means of
valuing the land by reference to its development
potential by deducting development costs, land
premium, together with developer’s profit and risk
from the estimated capital value of the proposed
development assuming completed as at the date
of valuation.

The movements during the year in the balance
of these level 3 fair value measurements are as
follows:

At 1 January 2017 K2017F181H

Transfer from owner-occupied ERAETEAME
property (Note 18) (H1zE18)

Gain on fair value adjustment DR EFRE W
(Note 7(c)) (K15 7(c)

Disposal HE

Exchange realignment [ H A

At 31 December 2017 72017412 H318

(b) MEZAARETEE)

(i) FEASEIEAAEFNEZER(E)

RERTEREVENS - EARERN
RFSRERRER - ZEETEEE
EREEERBABREERMEX
FRIVRBERAA - THAEIA R
REGAEAEBEZZNRER - @

SDEHERENH LIMETHE -

EREIBARBH B2 EBEDN

Investment properties

REM*
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
"E Fh ] A 3t et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET FTHET
89,200 61,196 150,396
40,300 - 40,300
14,309 1,387 15,696
(74,209) - (74,209)
- 4,339 4,339
69,600 66,922 136,522
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

20 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 20 REWME(E)

(b) Fair Value Measurement of Properties (b) MEZQAARBEFE(E)
(Continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 Fair Value (i) EEFIBAABFEZER(E)
Measurements (Continued)

Investment properties

BB
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
&5 FR A b, KT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHTT T TR
At 1 January 2016 201651 H1H 87,340 54,190 141,530
Transfer from owner-occupied EEREXFEAME
property (Note 18) (Hrax18) 2,000 - 2,000
(Loss)/gain on fair value NINEE kvl
adjustment (Note 7(c)) (B18) ke
(Wit 7(c) (140) 10,896 10,756
Exchange realignment PE H A - (3,890) (3,890)
At 31 December 2016 201612 A31H 89,200 61,196 150,396
Fair value adjustment of investment properties REMEZ AR ERBREEERR
is recognised in the line item “other net (losses)/ [EMF(EER), ks 1788 PR -

gains” on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

All the gains recognised in profit or loss for the RIERRAERE - TERFEAR
year arise from the properties held at the end of EMEEEZWRERIERER °

the reporting period.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future M2017F12A318 - AEBRER
minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable AIEEAE ST 2 R R ER S
operating leases as follows: e
2017 PAONNS)
20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FAT
Within 1 year 1R 864 1,899
After 1 year but within 5 years BB FERSER 652 -
1,516 1,899
e ——
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21 UAABREZNIIESSREE
PROFIT OR LOSS

2017 2016
20175 20164F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT FET
Non-current investments JERNERR &
Equity securities — available for sale MR FE FH — AR E = 1,177
Equity securities — at fair value MRARFESH — AR E
through profit or loss il 9,331 -
Insurance policy investments RRE
— available for sale — A HHE - 13,285
Insurance policy investments R &
— at fair value through profit or loss —UARERBERASIR 14,043 -
23,374 14,462
Current investments ENEfR &
Equity securities — at fair value RARFES - ARRE
through profit or loss WIEZERTIER 36 45
Information about the fair value measurement of the RRARERBRAVIERZ @MEEZ AREFNE
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is included FRRE B BRI FE39() ©

in note 39(f).
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22 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 1 January 2017, net of
accumulated amortisation

Amortisation provided
during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2017, net of
accumulated amortisation

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2016, net of
accumulated amortisation

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Amortisation provided
during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2016, net of
accumulated amortisation

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

R2017F1 818 -
Nkk RETEsE

FREHRE

I

20175128318 -
kR 25+

FRAE

RETEESH

BREFE

R20165F1 718 -
kR 25+

U BE — IR BB N &)

F RS

[E 5 3%

M20165%12H31H -
Bk RETEESE

FXANE
Rty

FRERE

22 BREE

Computer Brand
software Name Goodwill Total
B e M B BE st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET FHET THET
336 2,062 3 2,401
(101) (231) - (332)
- 185 - 185
235 2,016 3 2,254
3,885 2,371 3 6,259
(3.650) (355) - (4,005)
235 2,016 3 2,254
1,113 - - 1,113
- 2,165 3 2,168
(777) (108) - (885)
- 5 - 5
336 2,062 3 2,401
3,885 2,170 3 6,058
(3,549) (108) - (3,657)
336 2,062 3 2,401

Amortisation of HK$332,000 (2016: HK$885,000) is included
in the “administrative expenses” of the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

= A
o8

1 $5332,00078 7T (20164F : 885,000 7T ) 5T A
BRRITHREBA] -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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23 SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Accord Advance Limited

HERRARY

Dongguan Luminous Town
Electric Co., Ltd. *
BEENETERAT

Dongguan Manixon New Materials and
Components Company Limited *

REBMERMHTARAR

Forward Electronics (Dongguan) Company
Limited
BERET (RR) BRAA

Foshan Rifeng Electronic Co., Ltd.
HLIBEETARAT

Fu Tak (Qingyuan) Electronic Foil
Company Limited *
B (BR) ETHEABERAT

High Merit Group Limited

1

1

1

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

operations
EfREE

British Virgin Islands
ERRLER

Mainland China
HEAH

Mainland China
HEAH

Mainland China
HEAH

Mainland China
FE A

Mainland China
HE R

British Virgin Islands
EBRANE

23 MEAHE

FEMBATERAT
Percentage of equity
. attributable to the
l\llommal vaIue'of Company
issued and paid-up/ AAREERAES
registered capital
ERTRARRE A 206
mfE/EmEE 017% 20165
Ordinary US$10 100 100
LRR10%T
Registered 66.89 58.90
HK$11,550,000
HEMER
11,550,000/ T
Registered 100 100
US$9,590,000
HEMER
9,590,000%7T
Registered 100 100
RMB5,000,000
AR5,000,0007C
Registered 100 100
US$1,000,000
HMER
1,000,000%7T
Registered 100 -
RMB11,000,000
HMER
ARE11,000,0007
Ordinary US§$1 100 100

EERIET

Principal
activities
Investment holding

AR

Manufacture and
sale of electronic
components

RERHEE TN

Manufacture and
sale of electronic
components

HERHES Tl

Manufacture and
sale of electronic
components
BERHES TN

Manufacture and
sale of electronic
components

HERHEE TN

Manufacture and
sale of electronic
components

RERHEE TN

Investment holding

REER

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ERREEBAR AT




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

23 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

23 MEBAT(E)
FEWBARERET « (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

operations
EfRSE

Nominal value of
issued and paid-up/
registered capital
BETRBMRRA
HfE /e

Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
FAAEERTE L
Principal

2017 2016 activities
20175 201658 FEXH

Jiangxi Telexon Electronics 1 Mainland China Registered 100 100 Manufacture and
Company Limited * HREIRH, RMB40,000,000 sale of electronic
IAELEETFERAT FHRER components
AR #40,000,0007 HERHES Tl
Johnstone International Limited British Virgin Islands ~~ Ordinary US$1 100 100 Investment holding
NBERERARAR RERNES LERIET REER
Kunshan Hongzheng Electric Co., Ltd. * Mainland China Registered 66.89 5890  Manufacture,
RIEFETERAA HEIRH, US$5,300,000 processing and sale of
AR electronic components
5,300,000 B MIRHE
EFh
Long Trade (Macao Commercial Offshore) Macau Registered 100 100 Trading of
Limited i MOP100,000 raw materials
R85 (RFREREERE) ARAA HEMER BERMH
100,0002F 7T
Luminous Town Electric Co., Ltd. Taiwan Registered 66.89 58.90  Investment holding
BHETRNERAT = TW$668,308,610 RERK
HEMER
£7%668,308,6107T
Man Fat International Trading (Shanghai) 1 Mainland China Registered 100 100 Trading of electronic
Company Limited * HE R US$200,000 components
EEARES (LB) FRAF & 4200,000% T BES it
Man Jin Electronics (Shenzhen) 1 Mainland China Registered 100 100 Trading of electronic
Company Limited * HER HK$3,500,000 components
EBST (M) BRAF HMER BES it
3,500,000/ 7T

/ |
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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23 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Man Yue (China) Investment Limited *

B (E) REARAA

Man Yue Electronics Company Limited

EWETARLA

Man Yue Holdings (BVI) Limited

Man Yue Technology (China) Ltd *
EHRE (PE) BRAA)

Man Yue Technology Limited

Manixon Electronics Company Limited
ENEEFARAR

MLPC Electronics Company Limited
REESETERAT

MMS Electronics Company Limited
EREFERAA

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

operations
EMRSE

Mainland China
HEIAH

Hong Kong
e

British Virgin Islands
AERNES

Mainland China
HE R

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
ERRABEAR

Hong Kong

&b

Hong Kong
R

Hong Kong
&b

23 MIEAT(E)

Percentage of equity

. attributable to the
Nomlnal vaIue'of Company
issued and paid-up/ G T
registered capital
ERARMERE AU 2016
HfE/EfER 217% 20165
Registered 100 100
US$120,000,000
HMER
120,000,000%7¢
Ordinary HK$2, 100 100
Non-voting deferred
HK$3,000,000
vk
ERFRETR
3,000,000
Ordinary US$10,000 100 100
E&MR10,000%T
Registered 100 100
US$48,000,000
HMER
48,000,000 7T
Ordinary US$10 100 100
ERERI0ET
Ordinary HK$1 100 100
L@ BT
Ordinary HK$100 100 100
LRRI100ET
Ordinary HK$ 1 100 100
LERIBT

TEMBRRERNMT : (&)

Principal
activities
TRER
Investment holding
REAR

Trading of electronic
components
EEETILH

Investment holding
REAR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Trading of electronic
components
BEETIH

Trading of electronic
components
BES it

Trading of electronic
components
BEETH

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED E#¥RHZEBER AT




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

23 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

23 MEBAT(E)
FEWBARERET « (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued and paid-up/ KA TRERAE S
registered capital

ERARMRRE AU 206
HE/ ERER 20175 20165

operations
afREE

Principal
activities
TEXH

MMS Logistics Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Trading of electronic
B i1710,00087T components
EEETIH
Rifeng Qingyuan Electronic Co., Ltd. 1 Mainland China Registered 100 100 Manufacture and
L (BR) ETERAR AR HK$80,000,000 sale of raw materials
HMER BUERHERITR
80,000,000/ 7
Rihong (Yaan) Electronics Co., Ltd. * 1 Mainland China Registered 100 100 Manufacture and
B (%) ETERAR AR US$22,000,000 sale of raw materials
HMER BUERHERITR
22,000,000%7
Samxon Electronic Components Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Trading of electronic
—REFEHBRAT B LakAET components
EES Tl
BR=FET (RX) BRARA 1 Mainland China Registered 100 100 Manufacture and
hE A US$96,775,000 sale of electronic
FHRER components
96,775,000% 7 BERHES Tl
Searange Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Trading of equity
BRREEARAA B LRRET investments
EERARE
Splendid Skill Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$10 100 100 Investment holding
ERRNES L@R10%ET REBR
Stand New Enterprise Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
UHRERRAA B LRI REER

/ |
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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23 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Starzeon Electronics Company Limited
BEXETERAT

Starzeon Electronics (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. *

EERET (RR) ARAA

TradeUNIT Limited
BEARLT

Walters Electronics (Dongguan)
Company Limited *

#ETET (RR) ARAA

Walters Electronics (Qingyuan)
Company Limited
BETET (BR) ARAA

Wuxi Man Yue Electronics
Company Limited
EHERETERAF

X-CON Electronics Limited
X-CONETARAF

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

operations
EfRSE

Hong Kong
&b

Mainland China
FE R

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
ERRRERES

Mainland China
HEAH

Mainland China
HEAH

Mainland China
HEIAH

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
AERABRAR

23 MIEAT(E)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Nominal value of Company
issued and paid-up/ KATRERAE S
registered capital
ERTRAZRA Cul 2
HfE/EfER 2175 pI 3
Ordinary HK$1 100 100
L@ BT
Registered 100 100
US$15,000,000
AR
15,000,000 7T
Ordinary 100 100
HK$9,500,000
9,500,000 7
Registered 100 100
RMB5,000,000
HER
AR 5,000,007
Registered 100 100
US$30,000,000
HMER
30,000,000
Registered 100 100
US$30,000,000
30,000,000% 7T
Ordinary US$1 100 100
LERIET

TEMBRRERNMT : (&)

Principal
activities
Trading of

electronic components
EES Tl

Manufacture and
sale of electronic
components

RERHEE TN

Trading of
raw materials

BERMH

Manufacture and
sale of electronic
components

RERHEE Tl

Manufacture and
sale of electronic
components

RERHEE TN

Manufacture and
sale of electronic
components

HERHES Tl

Trading of electronic
components
BEETILH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

23 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

23 MEBAT(E)
FEWBARERET « (&)

(Continued)
Percentage of equity
Place of attributable to the
incorporation/ Nominal value of Company
registration and issued and paid-up/ KAATEERAB S
operations registered capital Principal
R/ ERARMERE 07 06 civities
SRS HE/ FHER 20175 20165 TEZEH
Xinjiang Join Yue Electronics New 1 Mainland China Registered 100 100 Manufacture and
Materials Company Ltd. hEA 1$$8,000,000 sale of law materials
MERHE IR ERAR HMER BUERHERITR
8,000,000% 7
Yuk Wah Electronics Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$80,000 100 100 Investment holding
FEEFERAA 3 LiR%80,000/8 T RERR
LT RN AR A 1 Mainland China Registered 75 75 Manufacture and
HE A, RMB10,000,000 sale of chemical
AR material
AE10,000,0007 BEREE 2NN
Notes: Voraa
1 The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned 1 S B AR THiRER B R E R TR AN R E
enterprises under the Mainland China law. B
2 Shares held directly by the Company. 2 ARREEREZR®G -
#  The company name in Chinese is translation of the registered # P AR EBAFMEXEEEE  EHE
English name for the purpose of identification. Bl o
* The company name in English is a direct translation of the * BYARAEAAMIh X2 EETE - 2H
registered Chinese name for the purpose of identification. =Pl o

All the subsidiaries of the Company are limited liability ARRFTEMBARYABRETAR

companies.

ERFBIARRIMNBRRINEERAIEREAR
FEEEIBRAEEEEFEER N 2B

NS

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the Year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

23 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 23
The following table lists out the information relating to
Luminous Town Electric Co., Ltd. (“Luminous Town"),
the only subsidiary of the Group which has a material
non-controlling interest (NCI). The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts before
any inter-company elimination.

8 2 B (4R
TRESIERAEEN 8 EAIEERBER
HOHERIRERER) 2 WBADERETRNE
RAF(HBA) 2 BR - FR2F2 B AR
BRI AARIL A 2% -

2017 AONIS)

20174 20164

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT T

NCI percentage IR RIER B DL 33.1% 41.1%
Current assets mENVEE 228,673 207,673
Non-current assets IEREEE 23,343 23,317
Current liabilities EAE 89,020 67,506
Non-current liabilities JERBEE 789 1,566
Net assets BEFE 162,207 161,918
Carrying amount of NC| FEIERAR R R AR T (B 53,707 66,548
Revenue WA 181,366 92,575
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(ER),&F (13,222) 5,387
Total comprehensive income 2EWAETE (5,328) (4,293)

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI DB T IEIERR AR B R RS

(E518), /%7 (4,378) 2,214

Cash flows from operating activities REEE RS TE (37.271) 22,228
Cash flows from investing activities KEETHZRERE (102) (1,111)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHCIRERE 28,616 (20,831)

24 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24 REELEZRE

2017 2016

20174 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT BT

Share of net assets (R &EESE 116,371 96,461
Loans to a joint venture BT —HEELEIER 108,903 100,077
Due from joint ventures FEU A S E 7 IE 22,609 26,782
Due to joint ventures FER A B2 RKIA (39,465) (19,751)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

24 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 24 REENEIRE(E)

The loans to a joint venture, amounts due from and due to LT BeECECER  BREENEGERE

joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on FOETVEER - 2B BARERSKIRZSEE

demand or per trading credit terms except: HEE - M

(@) Loans amounting to HK$80,083,000 (2016: (a) A280,083,000/87C(20164F : 71,257,000
HK$71,257,000) are interest-bearing at a rate of 4.90% BID) ZE TR F R K490 (20164 -
(2016: 4.90%) per annum. 4 90[E)ETE °

(b) Included in amounts due to joint ventures are trade (b) ERNEECEZFERBERMNEERE
payables to joint ventures amounting to HK$39,465,000 7 FERTE 5 BE039,465,0000% 7T (20164F -
(2016: HK$19,751,000). 19,751,000/ 7T) °

Particulars of the joint ventures, all of which are held BEHBAREEEEZAEDEER T ¢

indirectly through subsidiaries, are as follows:

Particulars of Place of incorporation/ Percentage of
issued shares/ registration FHIREZEDY
registered capital and operations Owner-ship Voting Profit
BETREG/ RiAYe interest power sharing  Principal activities
EfEA 2 #E afREE FraREs REE BERR  TZEE
Ever Reliance Industrial Issued capital of Hong Kong 48 50 48 Investment holding
Investments Limited 100 shares of HK$1 &7 RERR
("Ever Reliance”) each
REIXREARAT 100REREEETZ
(I&ED) BETRA
Nan Tong Xin Cheng Registered capital of ~ Mainland China 49 33 49 Manufacture and
Electronics Company Ltd. ~ HK$6,080,000 HREIRH, sale of raw materials
HEMEETARAR HftEx SUEREE R
6,080,000/
Set out below are the summarised financial information of a NTEHIEZEECEREZUBEREE - &
material joint venture, Ever Reliance, which is accounted for AR EADR -

using the equity method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

24 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 24 REENEIRE(E)

2017 2016
201745 20164

HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TET

Summarised statement IR R E
of financial position

Non-current assets FERBEE 338,093 294,143
Current assets (excluding cash TEEE(TeERS RIS

and cash equivalents) ZEY) 57 935
Cash and cash equivalents Re RIBEEEY 710 12,823
Current financial liabilities nBeHaE(TeEENES

(excluding trade and other BR N ELAth B AT SR8 R B )

payables and provisions) (80,083) (71,257)
Other current liabilities HtonsaE(REENE S

(including trade and other BR R N L Ath B A FRTE N )

payables and provisions) (41,713) (29,030)
Non-current financial liabilities EInt ) et = = (30,600) (30,600)
Other non-current liabilities HibIEmeh Ak (12,362) (34,502)
Net assets BEEFE 174,102 142,512

2017 2016
20174 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T

Summarised statement of profit or loss B R HEM2EIMARBE
and other comprehensive income

Revenue WA 36,569 37,819
Depreciation e (404) (408)
Interest income B WA 1 122
Interest expense FEZH (3,701) (3,556)
Income tax FiS#i (5,838) (5,731)
Profit for the year RNEE R F 18,270 20,653
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Ememl A (E8) 13,320 (13,309)
Total comprehensive income 2EWAEE 31,590 7,344
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

24 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 24 REENEIRE(E)

Reconciled to the Group's interest in Ever Reliance HAEBENREZER
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Gross amounts of Ever Reliance’s net assets R{5 & & HE 1258 174,102 142,512
Group's effective interest REEZ B ER 48% 48%
Group's share of Ever Reliance’s net AEEREREZEEFER
assets and carrying amount in the RERE ISk 2 BREE
consolidated financial statements 83,569 68,406
The following table sets out the summarised financial TREIAEBE(LHEEREDBIERE)ENH
information of the Group’s shared portion of joint ventures B ERBE

excluding Ever Reliance:

2017 PAONNS)
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit/(loss) for the year FROER, (E518) 2,687 (1,057)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HEmeml A (E8) 2,060 (1,923)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EBRA(F518) 88 4,747 (2,980)
25 INVENTORIES 25 78
(a) Inventory in the consolidated statement of (a) FEMBRRERZEFESSE !

financial position comprise:

2017 PAONNS)

20174 20164

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T4

Raw materials R R 183,448 153,687
Work in progress TERIE 195,024 138,615
Finished goods BIPK 157,081 164,258
535,553 456,560
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A IS RAR M ()

25 INVENTORIES (CONTINUED) 25 F&E (&)

162

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in
profit or loss is as follows:

(b) BRAMIABFTABE2EESHE
oWWMT :

2017 PAONNS)

20174 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET BT

Carrying amount of inventories sold B HEFE 2 RAEE 998,016 824,679
Write-down of inventories TFEMUR 3,946 2,440
Reversal of write-down of inventories 77 & i & [al (6,085) (3,644)
Cost of sales HERA 995,877 823,475

26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

26 BWEZRRRHEMEYRRE

2017 2016
20174 20164

HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET THET

Trade receivables FEUNE SR 672,024 504,047
Provision for impairment of JEWE Z IR FOR B RS
trade receivables (31,430) (23,127)
640,594 480,920
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE « e R EAM
other receivables FE U F B 96,894 86,715
737,488 567,635

All of trade and other receivables are expected to recovered
within one year.

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally
90 days, extending up to 150 days for major customers.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a credit control department to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact
that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. Credit
risk was hedged mainly through credit insurance policies.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED E#¥RHZEBER AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Group categorises its trade receivables based on the
ageing. Future cash flow for each group of trade receivables
are estimated on the basis of historical loss experience,
adjusted to effects of current conditions of each customer
as well as forward looking information. For trade receivables
relating to accounts which are long overdue with significant
amounts or known insolvencies, they are assessed individually
for impairment provision.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables at the end of
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
provision for doubtful debts, is as follows:

1-3 months 12318 A
4-6 months 4% 6fE A
7-12 months 721218 A
Over 1 year HBE1F

R BTSRRI ()

26 EWESRMRHEtEYEE (&)

REE LRGBS 5 RFRE - IBER
REREFTSARBBERRZRHRERE
Y BFFPEFIMN 2 FE AT IEERELT
o fINac A BSBERAZRPACNES
B8 2 R E 5K R EREEERIFE -

RER - RBEE A MG E IR REREFER
ZEWE ZERFREAMANT

2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHBxT FH&T
98,039 364,201
107,682 92,176
424,093 9,220
10,780 15,323
640,594 480,920

ECLs as at 31 December 2016 and 2017

The Group uses allowance matrix to measure the ECLs of
trade receivables from customers.

Loss rates are calculated based on the ageing of trade
receivable. Loss rates also calculated separately for exposures
in different age groups on the basis of historical loss
experience over past ten years.

The following table provides information about the exposure
to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables from customers as
at 31 December 2016 and 2017.

A2016FE 22017128318 2= A
58
FEERARBRERTEARP ZEIKE SER
ZIEHREREIE

BRXRERKE ZEFREE - BREIR
ERE+FZELERER DM ETRKREKA
Bl Z R

TRIBEEBN2016F X2017F12A318EE
ElzEBkARE 2B SERGEBHER
&8 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS RAR M ()

26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 26 FEUWE 5 IRz R it fE=hiE (4)

ECLs as at 31 December 2016 and 2017 (Continued) 2016 2201712831 2FEHIEH

BE (&)

Gross
Weighted carrying

average amount
lossrate  REEEAE
Jill: 3% HK$'000

p=E TR

Current and within payment — BIER AR R A

Loss  Netcarrying
allowance amount

Rk REFE Credit

HK$'000 HK

$'000 impaired

TiEn FiEgn fERRE

terms 1.16% 525,361 (6,116) 519,245 NofE
1-3 months past due B Z3EA 1.20% 102,792 (1,233) 101,559 Nof
4-6 months past due BE4=6lEA 1.20% 7813 (94) 7,119 Nof
7-12 months past due AEIZ12EA 35.95% 4,662 (1,676) 2,986 YesE
Over 1 year past due kb 71.06% 31,396 (22,311) 9,085 Yesh
672,024 (31,430) 640,594
Movements in the provision for impairment EBWEZREZRERESD
of trade receivables
The movements in provision for impairment of trade EWE SRR 2 BEREBEZHNT - 20165F 2
receivables are as follows. Comparative amounts for 2016 RS FEIERBEE LG ERIEIRETE 2R
represent the allowance amount for impairment losses under BEEERESSE -
HKAS 39.

2017 AONNS)
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Balance at 1 January M1A1B 2 &8 23,127 9,138
Adjustment on initial application BREAESI RS %R
of HKFRS 9 FORFHE 7,714 -
Balance at 1 January per HKFRS 9 RIER BT 53R ERI 2957
ET21A184&8 30,841 9,138
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — M B AR = 6,018
Impairment losses recognised ERZRERRE 4,678 10,473
Amount written off as uncollectible AT IR Bl SR IE AR 4 (1,252)
Impairment losses reversed BREE 2 RERE (5,621) (494)
Exchange realignment ME W% 1,528 (756)
Balance at 31 December 12 A31 B 2 &% 31,430 23,127 ———————
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26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Movements in the provision for impairment

of trade receivables (Continued)

The significant changes in the gross carrying amounts
of trade receivables contributed to the increase in the
impairment loss allowance during 2017 was due to
the increase in sales revenue of the Group resulting in
increase in trade receivables of HK$167,977,000 and
increase in provision for impairment of trade receivables of
HK$8,303,000.

Comparative information under HKAS 39

As of 31 December 2016, trade receivables of
HK$26,264,000 were impaired, for which, provision of
HK$23,127,000 has been made. The individually impaired
trade receivables relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties, in default or delinquency in payments and only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

Current and within payment terms
Less than 1 month — 3 months past due

4-6 months past due pab Ve (EPE
7-12 months past due A7 = 1218 A
Over 1 year past due BHAER R F

BIEA RN SRR A
PRVEAZEH3EA

R BTSRRI ()

26 EWESRMRHEtEYEE (&)

BWE SRR RERESE (H)

2017 F R EBBREEMERZ BKE SRR
BEEEENIEEB IHRAEEHERAEL N -

SREIE FERFIEIN167,977,00078 7T JA K2 FE UL
& 5 0RFUR B B S IN8,303,000/8 7T ©

REFEBETEAFE395E 2 Lh B E B
M2016912 A31H 26,264,000 7T 2 JiE W
BHBRAERE  MASBEC UL IRERE
23,127,000/ 7T - AP ZEAREREKE S
IRFGEBIRE - HER AR EIEE - B
B YRR ATIE -

BEEE(E R IVE H R R AR E 2 FEWE ZERFEE
BT

2016
20164

HK$'000
FBTT

352,154
99,969
10,316

3,496
11,848

477,783
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26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 26 FEUWE 5 IRz R it fE=hiE (4)

166

Comparative information under HKAS 39 (Continued)
Receivables that were current and within payment terms
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
management believes that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

27 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

27

RIEEFBEEERFE39M 2 LBER ()
BDHA R M SRR P32 FERRRIR T 53 BB B 4
MR KBETRES -

B EERE 2 ERSREARRE A R F RS
B2 ZBBUEFPAR - RIEBELR - E1EE
RRBARZSERELRHERE  REAREER
BRUESAEE  MAERDRR AT 2B
[B] o

fTEE€mI A

2017 2016
20174 20164
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE aE BE af&
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T THET FET BT
Analysed into: DT

— Interest rate swaps ~ — F| 55 Hf - 6,156 - 7,994
- 6,156 - 7,994

Portion classified SEHEAREIBG
as current - (3,680) - (3,875)
Non-current portion JEF B ER (D - 2,476 - 4,119

At 31 December 2017, the Group held two (2016: two)
interest rate swap agreements in place with a notional
amount of HK$200,000,000 (2016: HK$200,000,000)
to manage certain exposure to changes in interest rate in
relation to bank loans.

The fair value of the Group’s investments in the interest rate
swap agreements at 31 December 2017 has been determined
on the basis of valuation carried out by an independent
qualified valuer, Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited
(2016: Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited), through the
application of the estimated price for the transfer of an asset
or liability between identified knowledgeable and willing
parties that reflects the respective interests of those parties

2017128318 ZXEBEFEMH (2016
& W{n ) E % A200,000,000% 7T (20164 :
200,000,000 70) 2 F| i EAE 4) - ABIEE
FERITE SR 2 TR E R

20176124310 - REBERFEEHE L&
&2 AREEBBYE B RMEERRZ RS
AR AT (20165 © I WBIET LB RER
RENERERANEREBEEE T ARIET
2w EREEERAEETHT 2 ER (2016
F o ANRER)IRTHEEETE -

(2016: the Black’s Model).
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27 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

The net changes in the fair value of interest rate swap
contracts which did not meet the criteria for hedge
accounting for accounting purposes amounting to
HK$2,898,000 were debited (2016: net changes in the
fair value of interest rate swap credited amounting to
HK$2,198,000) to the consolidated statements of profit or
loss during the Year.

28 TIME DEPOSIT WITH BANKS, CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

Be MIRTTRER

Cash and bank balances
Time deposits within 3 months
to maturity when placed

Cash and cash equivalents
Time deposits over 3 months

to maturity when placed TEHIFR

R MRS EHEEY
REARZIHAEB3EA 2

27

28

TTEERMT AR

REHEMNE  ARECREREBERPH
A EE AT RIBEEZ FEiE G LRAE
FRENZAREZEFEIN% 2,898,000 T
(2016%F : AT AFIEBHEHOZ A A BEEEFHE
2,198,000/ 7T) °

RITEHER  BERBEEEY

REARZIERAE3EAUAZ

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHBT
271,955 229,446
40,747 53,670
312,702 283,116
= 7,775
312,702 290,891

Cash at banks earns interest at floating bank deposit rates.
Short term time deposits range from one day to three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The cash and bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

As at the end of the reporting date, the amount of time
deposit, cash and cash equivalents denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") was HK$62,588,000 (2016: HK$109,360,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under the Regulations of the People’s Republic of China
on the Management of Foreign Exchange, the Group is
permitted to exchange the RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

RITR T BIRITERN DAL - FBHE
BEARTAREZARRS TR - FUNTI
REIEAZBEEL - WRBEEZEHERE
A RGIA S - R RRITAERTRILREE
W BEBREZRIT

REEHR - MARB(TARKDEEZEHE
P RE NREEEYRG62,588,0007%7C (2016
£ :109,360,000870) - AR TR B A AR
REMEE A - BRBEPEARKLMEINES
BIEOIRE - AEBEAE S REREETTINESE
B2 RITIARBZIAAHEME
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28 TIME DEPOSIT WITH BANKS, CASHAND CASH 28 $HR{TEHEE - B4 RESZEY

EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) (%&)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising RMEITEEE BB :

from financing activities:

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TRFANMAEBRETHEA 2 ABES > B
from financing activities, including both cash and non- HeNIERSEE - B EHELYARBIERS
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are MEBEL(FARKRREREFG) IR EREE
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows FEBRENEXREAMETBEREMNE -

will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow
statement as cash flows from financing activities.

Interest

rate swap Bank loans
FRi= 5 SRITER
HK$'000 HK$'000

T4 T
(Note 27) (Note 30)
(H17%27) (H72£30)

At 1 January 2017 7A2017F1818 7,994 809,748

Changes from financing cash flows: FERLREBSE :

Proceeds from new bank loans HRITE RS IE - 581,961

Repayment of bank loans BEiRITE R - (545,418)
Interest paid EAFLE - (28,582)
Payment for interest rate swaps R ZR S HE (4,736) -
Total changes from financing cash flows RIEIR & REE TR (4,736) 7,961

Change in fair value ARERE 2,898 -
Exchange adjustments EXAE - 788
Other changes: Hit# g :

Interest expenses (Note 11) MESZH (A1) - 28,582
Total other changes Hih#EhEsE - 28,582
At 31 December 2017 20175128318 6,156 847,079
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29 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

29 ENEZRIRERE

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FHT
Trade and bills payables FERTE SRR R RE 225,069 183,419
Receipt in advance TEU SR IE 6,463 8,078
Salary and welfare payables e & K AEH 25,725 22,693
Value-added tax payable FET IS ER 12,552 11,790
Other payables and accrual FEAT B Ath 7RIE K FE R T FOE 60,580 50,868
330,389 276,848

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled FEERNE SER R EMER ISR —F

or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
the end of reporting date, based on the invoice date, is as

NRERRBRARILEREE -

follows:

Trade payables: FERTE SRR
- 1-3 months -1Z318 A4
- 4-6 months -4% 618 A
—7-12 months -7Z212{8 A
— Over 1 year —HBBEF
Bills payables INES7

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHBT
172,177 141,491
31,645 21,968
3,795 3,381
2,528 10,438
210,145 177,278
14,924 6,141
225,069 183,419
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30 BANK LOANS 30 SBITER

2016
20164

HK$'000
FHET

Bank loans, unsecured, repayable: AT HAR(E 8 2 IR

170

IRITER
— Within one year or on demand, with ~1FAHIRENK
reference to the repayment schedule SIRERFREE 718,795 544,815
— Within one year or on demand, “1FERNFIREK
related to borrowings with EHEERZEZEE
breached covenants - 15,000
- In the second year -F2FR 82,619 224,218
— In the third to fifth years, inclusive —F3FE5F
(HEMFRELERN) 45,665 25,715
847,079 809,748
Portion classified as current liabilities S ATRHAaEIn (718,795) (559,815)
Non-current portion IEREN IR 128,284 249,933

As at 31 December 2017, unsecured bank loans of the Group
denominated in HK dollar, US dollar and other currencies
amounted to HK$563,550,000 (2016: HK$677,166,000),
HK$206,408,000 (2016: HK$126,800,000) and
HK$22,722,000 (2016: HK$5,782,000) respectively. The
weighted average interest rate of the unsecured bank loans
was 3.49% (2016: 3.29%) per annum. All bank loans bear
floating interest rates and are repayable by instalments up
to 2021. The carrying amounts of the Group's bank loans
approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2017, bank loans with current portion
and non-current portion amounted to HK$718,795,000
and HK$128,284,000 (2016: HK$559,815,000 and
HK$249,933,000), respectively. Man Yue Technology
Holdings Limited is required, to comply with certain restrictive
financial covenants, including, inter alia, interest coverage
ratios, net debt to EBITDA ratios and finance charge to
EBITDA ratios.

The Group breached the covenant requirements of certain
banking facilities in the year ended 31 December 2016,
HK$809,748,000 of such banking facilities has been utilised
as at 31 December 2016, of which HK$15,000,000 has
been reclassified from non-current liabilities to current
liabilities as a result of the breach. The Group has obtained
one-off waivers from strict compliance with the covenant
requirements in relation to all the outstanding bank
borrowings classified as non-current liabilities at the year
end.

As at 31 December 2017, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities has been breached. o
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R2017%F12831H » KEBUET - T
NEMEETEZERFRITERD A
563,550,000 & 7T ( 2016 £ : 677,166,000 /&
JL) * 206,408,000 7L (2016 4F : 126,800,000
B7L) 122,722,000 7T (20164 © 5,782,000/
T0) o ZEEEIFRITERZ NEFHER KA
3.49[E (20164 : 3.29/F) - FTERITERILF
R B - WAR2021FARTD HEE - &
EBRTERZERmMSBENALERS -

R2017F12 8318 » IR1TE R Z BIERER 5 B 3
ENEREF 5 5l A4718,795,0003# 7T 1 128,284,000
¥ 7T (20164 : 559,815,0005% 7T }2.249,933,000
BIL) c EMEIREEBRARBETHE TR
MR BE(EPaE)FEBER  FE
TSHTEBITDALL A K B 75 5 ST $TEBITDALL K ©

HZE2016F12A31HIEFE  AEBERE
TFRTEME 2 ZHERT - K2016F 128318
2B % Z 4R 17 b £ 809,748,000/8 7T+ H b
15,000,000/ THE R A BT MHAIERBEE
ENHEAERBDERE AEEREREHFIED
HEAIERBBE 2 REBRITEERSHEER
BFHFERTE 2 — KR -

R2017F12A310 * AEEEERBHCDIR
BRE 225 o
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R BTSRRI ()

31 DEFERRED TAX 31 EERIE
(a) The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
during the Year were as follows:
Deferred tax assets

(a) FAZBELCHELEREELEHMT
ELEREEE

Tax losses
available for

Provisions for
trade receivables
and write-down

for inventories

offsetting
against future
taxable profits
RN ESH

B E S &%
BERFE
B EiR Hit A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TAT TET TAT

BRI ZHE Others Total

At 1 January 2016 120161718 122 11,536 2,673 14,331

Acquisition of a subsidiary  YtEE — RN E AR

(Note 42) (Hiz#42) - 2,599 - 2,599
Credited to profitorloss ~ FRRBZEA

during the year (Note 15)  (ff£15) 1,047 3,581 565 5,193
Exchange realignment [E 3 % - (643) 7 (636)
At 31 December 2016 R20165F128318 1

and 1 January 2017 20171818 1,169 17,073 3,245 21,487

Credited/(charged) to FRPMEREA (R)

profit or loss during (Bizt15)

the year (Note 15) 151 2,149 (2,435) (135)
Charged to reserve during  AEFERTEIEE

the year arising on BRENERENR

remeasurement of net

defined benefit assets - - (1 (1)
Exchange realignment f 5t 7% - 760 597 1,357
At 31 December 2017 2017512 A31H 1,320 19,982 1,406 22,708
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31 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 31 EEBIE(E)
(a) The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities (a) FAZELHBEEHABEEHNOT
during the Year were as follows: (Continued) ()
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEEE
Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related
Revaluation depreciation
of properties BHifEZ Total
BEfE BERTERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THIT THT
At 1 January 2016 M2016F1 7818 34,649 1,241 35,890
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss during RN B/ (GTA) 3,773 (124) 3,649
the year (Note 15) (H15t15)
Credited to reserve during the year arising EE &+t REFEHFA (713) - (713)
on revaluation of land BB 15)
and buildings (Note 15)
Exchange realignment i 5, % (1,655) - (1,655)
At 31 December 2016 and 2016127318 K& 36,054 1,117 37171
1 January 2017 20171718
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss during F B2 1% /(5T 1) 102 50 152
the year (Note 15) (H1i215)
Debited to reserve during the year arising FEfh+i FEFEHER 1,535 - 1,535
on revaluation of land RN (7t 15)
and buildings (Note 15)
Exchange realignment fE 5 A% 2,064 - 2,064
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A31H 39,755 1,167 40,922
(b) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement (b) #HREMBMRREKZEER

of financial position

2017 2016
20175 20164

HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET THATT

Net deferred tax assets recognised RIGE AR RERZ

in the consolidated statement of RIERIBEEFE
financial position 16,463 16,400
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised R4RA MR KRPIER 2
in the consolidated statement of BEEBHIEBERE
financial position (34,677) (32,084)
(18,214) (15,684)
—
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31 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

(9]

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

The Group had unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$132,544,000 (2016: HK$67,746,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. The Group also has unrecognised tax
losses arising in Mainland China of HK$49,844,000
(2016: HK$109,041,000) that will expire in one to five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits. The
Group has tax losses not recognised amounting to
HK$182,388,000 (2016: HK$176,787,000). Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised amounting to
HK$34,331,000 (2016: HK$38,438,000) in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised
Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China, a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from
1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate ranges from 5% to 10%.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to approximately
HK$207,752,000 (2016: HK$165,489,000). The
corresponding deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised, given that the Company is able to
control the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and
it is probable that these retained profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

32 DEFERRED INCOME

The deferred income amounting to HK$11,031,000 (2016:
HK$10,603,000) of non-cash subsidies in relation to parcels
of land located in Wuxi was granted by the Jiangsu Province
Xishan Economic Development Management Committee
in 2004. The subsidy was in the form of a reduction of the
consideration for the acquisition of a parcel of land in Wuxi,
Mainland China, paid by the Group. The.purpose of the
subsidies is for industrial development in these areas.

A U RR M ()

31 EEFIE(E)

(o)

(d)

AERZIELERIEEE
AEEBBERRBEASZAERHRIEEIR
132,544,000 7 Jt (2016 & : 67,746,000
B) o AERSHANENEREEZA
A2 RRERTRT) o REETTHRKA
Bl b 2 o W 3R 5 7% 5 18.49,844,00078 7T
(20164 : 109,041,000/87C) * KR —%2 1
FREm - AT R R ERBURF
REBEE ARMER DI E18 182,388,000/ 7T
(2016%F : 176,787,000/ ) - BN %
BEDEEANEE —BRERNHEESESE
Z WA 7 B A FERR R s A AT A AR 0%
EHRBBB AT A » RE KL% E
EERER 2 IEIER I8 & & /34,331,000%
70(2016%F : 38,438,000/ 7T) °

RERZIELEREEE
RIEPEARLFBECEMSRE - R
B2 INERERBRIMEE BT IR 2K
BARUIR10% 2 FENH - RIEMHTE 52008
FI1AVERAER - EAMR2007F12 A31
ALAVEE S 28N o i B R B SN 1
BEMBRIZER CHERBEERR
& AJTIRERETEIR R c HAEE
MmE ' BARENTF5%ZE10% 72017
F12A318 - XEBZ KD REFNOE
207,752,000 7¢ (2016 4F : 165,489,000
BIL) c BERARAIREILHZSHBARZ
BB IR B ZFRE RN R AR AT 8
NEOR  BR R A BIEE IR E -

32 EZEWA
11,031,000 7 (20164 : 10,603,000 T ) 2
B A AESZIE T2 RSB - BiTE
BB EREREREZEER2004F R -
BFZEMP 2 AR AR S E BUE— R
R B R R 2 i S 2 R AE - BREEHED
THARZERIETEERE -
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33 SHARE CAPITAL 33 &
Ordinary Shares TER
2017 AONIS)
20174 20164
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
475,547,534 (2016: 475,547,534) 475,547,534% (20164 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 475,547,534% ) B IAEE
0108 L2 LB 47,555 47,555
A summary of the transactions involving the Company’s WRARNGRAZZZBENT ¢

share capital is as follows:

Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
2R 2R i)
REAEA BRA& Bk Bt
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR THET TET
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1A1R 476,239,534 47,624 165,862 213,486
Re-purchase of shares ORI (692,000) (69) (404) (473)

At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 #2016 128318

%2017%1A18 475,547,534 47,555 165,458 213,013
Re-purchase of shares Bl - - - -
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 475,547,534 47,555 165,458 213,013
Purchase of Own Shares BEA SRRSO
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company 2016512 A31BIEFE - RARIREAEE
repurchased its own shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong REFMBRARIEBEBHRHAT

Kong Limited as follows:

Purchase price per share

ERERAEA

Aggregate

Number Highest Lowest price paid

of shares B& 458 EENE

Month/Year repurchased HK$ HK$ HK$
£/R BREEE BT BT BT
January 2016 201614 692,000 0.70 0.68 473,560
Total st 692,000 473,560

The total amount paid on the repurchased shares of AR B

HK$473,560 was paid wholly out of retained profits. RE RN -
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34 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 26 May 2006, the Company adopted the Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible persons, including employees, directors and other
persons as specified under the scheme document, who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 26 May 2006
and will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of the shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of issued shares
from time to time provided that the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of issued shares on 26 May
2006.

Each grant of the share options to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, under the Share Option Scheme must comply with
the requirements of rule 17.04 of the Listing Rules and must
be subject to approval of the independent non-executive
directors to whom share options have not been granted.
In addition, any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, which would result in
the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all share
options already granted and to be granted to such person in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant in excess of 0.1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value in excess of
HK$5 million, is subject to prior approval from shareholders
in a general meeting.

RE MR R M (&)

34 [BRRAESTE

PR20065F5A26H - AR FRM— AR
B BEAHAKEZRNEEELAMZAE
AT (REFEIXHEHIAZES EFRHE
fib A1) FR L 420N J2 Bl 4R -

B A AE ST 2172200695 A 26 B Bt A 0 ez B
HEET10F HARI A 3K o

HE1 TR BRI IRAERT 8 SR AN A B (A H th B A A
STEIBHERITEZ A MATEEREM T
BIIZRMOEE ARSI EBBTREET
RR1D 4282 30% + HEEITERIRAE AR AT 81 K
RNA B E AR AR ST B9 1 2 P RE AR
MmA BT 2 R B2 - & HT15HBB200655 A
26 A BTN B Z210% ©

BEBEBRET ST ARARTES  ;=TBA
B FERFRFEEF 2 BB AR DERER
A EMARE7.041G7 HEWBLERERE
[t 2 WL IEITES A SN AR AFA]
FERRSNE T IEMITES NS 2 AFTHEA
FILERE - BEgEE%EL AR(eEZE)
2@ A BEATEZALTEDER RGER 2T
BEREMSETRETETZROBRARAFR
EEITAR D 48 £00.1% K B (B {E 155,000,000
T AEESIRERBREAS FEEME -
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34 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 34 BRRAESTEI(E)
The exercise price of the share options is determinable by BREZITFEERESETE  ETSERTY =
the Directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) ERZRSE (O)ARRIKRMOEE - ()VAQRK
the nominal value of the Company’s shares, (ii) the average PRBERHELNRRAEX S BB EA
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the MERMB 2 FHRTE - RGENADFBROR
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading BREZHHB(WEAR S BBMREBERE
days immediately preceding the date of offer, and (iii) the RATE 2 UWTHE -

closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the
share options, which must be a trading day.

The Group did not recognise any share option expense for REZE2016F &2017F 12 A31H ILREFE -
both years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017. No previous AEE B EERETERERY - EEFRY
year expense was reversed in the Year for forfeited share RAFERE RN BRIEELR S IBTERAEE -

option in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (a) BHZIEFREHNT -

Contractual
life of
options

Number of
instruments Vesting conditions Eﬁ%EZ
IAHAH SERERG CESLY

Options granted to directors:

MESR D ERE

—on 15 September 2010 250,000 One year from the date of grant 10 years
- 72010%9A 158 BB EE1F 10%F
—on 15 September 2010 250,000 Two year from the date of grant 10 years
- #20109A 15H B HERe2 4 106

Options granted to employees:

MEE R L ERE

—on 15 September 2010 746,000 One year from the date of grant 10 years
- #201069A 15H B H AR 106
—on 15 September 2010 734,000 Two year from the date of grant 10 years
- #20109A 15H B B ER2F 104F
Total share options granted 1,980,000

B ERERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

34 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

(b) The following share options were outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme during the year:

At 1 January W1A18
Forfeited during the year FREK
At 31 December MW12A318

R BTSRRI ()

34 BREFTEI(E)

(b) WER - BIRETEIT 2 RETTEERE

U
2017 2016
20174 20165
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price price
InREF 15 Number | JHEFT Number
TRE o options TTEE of options
HKS  mpm AKS mie
2.262 2,080,000 2.196 2,530,000
2.262 (100,000) 1.894  (450,000)
2.262 1,980,000 2.262 2,080,000

The exercise price and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at the end of reporting date are
as follows:

Exercise period!
T E

RIEBHIR - RETEBREITEEBRITE
HinT -

Exercise price?

THEE?

Number of options

BREHE
2017
20174

2016
20164

HKS$ per share
BRET

15-9-2011 to 14-9-2020 2011497 15H
2£202099AH14H 2.262 996,000 1,046,000
15-9-2012 to 14-9-2020 2012998 15H
2£202099AH14H 2.262 984,000 1,034,000
2.262 1,980,000 2,080,000
Notes: et -

! The vesting period of the share options is from the date
of grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

2 The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company'’s share capital.

- /

' BRE:FBHDEXHAPRERTTR
HARILA -

t IR T E S G E AR SATRIRAT -
AR FRA Z FAE AR B e R -
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A IS RAR M ()

34 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

(b) (Continued)

The options outstanding at 31 December 2017 had
an exercise price of HK$2.262 (2016: HK$2.262) and
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.71

years (2016: 3.71 years).

35 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a) Defined Benefit Retirement Plans

The Group’s subsidiary, Luminous Town Electric
Co., Limited, makes contribution to defined benefit
retirement plans. The plans are administered by trustees,
the majority of which are independent, with their assets
held separately from those of the group. The trustees
are required by the Trust Deed to act in the best interest
of the plan participants and are responsible for setting

investment policies of the plans.

The plans are funded by contributions from the
Group in accordance with an independent actuary’s
recommendation based on annual actuarial valuations.
The latest independent actuarial valuations of the plans
were at 31 December 2017 and were prepared by

Greatfine Wealth Management Consulting Inc.

The plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as
interest rate risk, investment risk and longevity risk.

Information about the plan is disclosed below:

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI EEER AT

34 fERRAERT (&)

(b)

(#&)
R2017F12 A31 B RITEEREZ1TEE
52.2627 70 (20164F : 2.262/87T) » N
TGS LR B2.71F (20164 ¢
3.714F) °

35 EERHKEF

(a)

RERBARNKETE
AEEZHBRAREREFRNERQA
A FRE AR MR & 5T BIE 3R - MERERT
B HAEEATE  R¥E0HEEEY - &
BERZMARNZEESARE - REER
2 - BEANBAT A B2 EARKER
w2 HRATE BARRNEZSEZ
BEHBE °

ZEEBHAERIB BB EER 2 HE
BHRREESHREAERHEES - %S5:tE
BRI BB FEEHE 2 BEIA2017F12
A318  HEREESEREBBROERA
AlfmE -

HEHBSAEEESBERR - WFF
AR BERRREBER - #2100
SRBELT




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

35 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 35 EERKEFN ()
(CONTINUED)
(a) Defined Benefit Retirement Plans (Continued) (a) REBAEKRESFEIE)
(i) The amounts recognised in the consolidated (i) REAYBHKARAERZESED
statement of financial position are as follows: T
2017 2016
20175 201645
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET
Present value of wholly or partly e
funded obligations EHFETZEE (1,631) (1,469)
Fair value of plan assets FEIBEZ ARE 2,602 2,348
971 879
A portion of the above liability is expected to be o LB EBEERE — EEL
settled after more than one year. However, it is o AT R AR R A S TR B ok
not practicable to segregate this amount from WEFIR M Y IRIGIA R EEBR LN
the amounts payable in the next twelve months, THEES  WRAX+—EAR
as future contributions will also relate to future 451t 4 BE R FE (T T S B R A 1T o
services rendered and future changes in actuarial NEEFESHER2018F A EBFRK
assumptions and market conditions. The group S et Bt RS 00078 TT ©

expects to pay HK$8,000 in contributions to
defined benefit retirement plans in 2018.
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A IS RAR M ()

35 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 35 EERKERI(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Defined Benefit Retirement Plans (Continued) (a) RAEBHNEKESETEI(E)
(ii) Plan assets consist of the following: (i) FrEIBERBENUTEE
2017 PAONNS)
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAR FER
— Central Trust Fund held R—RE&RITHE
in a Taiwanese bank ZHREFTES 2,602 2,348
2,602 2,348
(iii) Movements in the Present Value of the (iii) AEENETREBEZEH

Defined Benefit Obligation

2017 2016
20175 2016%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET T
At 1 January ®1A18 1,469 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — MK B A A - 2,344
Remeasurements: EX i
— Actuarial losses arising from - AR SEH R E S5
changes in demographic ZIEEEE
assumptions (13) -
— Actuarial (losses)/gains arising from - Bf #{& :8 & Eh3|
changes in financial assumptions ZAEE (B1R), M (7) 23
— Experience adjustment - RERIAE 9 (971)
(11) (948)
Current service cost & AR A AR = 28
Interest cost MERAR 14 41
Exchange realignment VE 3R 159 4
At 31 December W12A31H 1,631 1,469
The weighted average duration of the defined FRERNBEE 2 METFAERH2F (20164 :
benefit obligation is 2 years (2016: 2 years). 26F) o
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35 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Defined Benefit Retirement Plans (Continued)

(iv) Movements in Plan Assets

At 1 January

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Group's contributions paid to the
plans

Remeasurements experience
adjustment

Interest income

Exchange realignment

At 31 December

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

35 EERKERNE)

() SREBFBRAKEEE(HE)

(iv) TBIEEZ25

2017 2016

20174 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000

T T

R1A1H 2,348 -

Wi — IR B A R - 2,314
EEEZETE

2 B 9 8

EHEE

— B RE (4) (19)

FEUA 23 40

b W i 226 5

MW12A318 2,602 2,348

(v) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

are as follows:

Current service cost
Net interest on net defined
benefit assets

Total amounts recognised
in profit or loss

Actuarial gain

Total amounts recognised in
other comprehensive income

Total defined benefit income

(v) REsBEakEMEERARNER
ZEEWT

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHT
& BIARTE A AR - 28
RERNEEFR
R E 9) 1
RIBEPER 2 1858
. @ 29
FE W (7) (929)
AH AL 2 U A iERR
Zig @ (929)
REBMBALLE (16) (900)
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35 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 35 EERAKEFR(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Defined Benefit Retirement Plans (Continued) (a) RAEBHNEKESETEI(E)
(v) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (V) NizaBRREME2EWRARAER
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income ZEEEWNT ¢ ()

are as follows: (Continued)

The current service cost and the net interest on BRIREKANATCTEANEEFEZ
net defined benefit liability are recognised in the FREREREBRRZUTIEE
following line items in the consolidated statement R

of profit or loss:

2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Cost of sales SHE AN = -
Finance income B IEIRA 9) -
Administrative expenses 1THE A - 29
(9 29
(vi) Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as (Vi) EXBERE(AINEEEEYT) R
weighted averages) and sensitivity analysis are as BREDSHIAT ¢
follows:
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Discount rate BhIE R 0.70% 0.90%
Future salary increases R T EEHN 1.00% 1.00%
EEEEEEEE——— —. — ___:_‘—__— — ——
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Defined Benefit Retirement Plans (Continued)

(vi) Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as
weighted averages) and sensitivity analysis are as
follows: (Continued)

The below analysis shows how the defined benefit
obligation would have increased (decreased) as a
result of 0.5% change in the significant actuarial
assumptions:

BhIR R
RIKTEILNN

Discount rate
Future salary increases

R BTSRRI ()

35 EERKERNE)

(a) SRERFEMAKEEE(H)

(vi) EABERRANEFEETIR) R
BRESMOT : (&)

BT 547 51 R 52 2 48 ) % £ 10 ]
A FR0.5% 2 ZB T MO

L)

2017 2016

20174 20165
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
in 0.5% in 0.5% in 0.5% in 0.5%
#i0.5% ®A0.5% @ EHI0.5%  EDP0.5%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET FAT BT
(16) 21 (14) 16
20 (16) 15 (14)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the
assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions
are not correlated and therefore it does not take
into account the correlations between the actuarial
assumptions.

(b) Defined Contribution Retirement Plan

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The
MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions
to the plan vest immediately.

Subsidiaries in Mainland China participate in the
defined contribution retirement schemes operated by
the local authorities for employees in Mainland China.
Contributions to these schemes are charged to the

consolidated statement of profit or loss when in -

A EGURE DT I EREERR 2 &
PO TR 2 BR&R - WAL ARF RBE
SR HZ RERIE -

(b) EBEMTRAKESE S
AEETREBETEBHIELES T EEA
RIRBEBRBIED 2 ANEEEEPTEM
BZ A ARMAFRERFBASE 2B
BEpAasE BmRRRENE (R
TrtEl]) - @RS B IBUREAETE
ZEBHREREHE - REBESA
g EEXRHEEESEAHAKZKESHBK
AZ5%ETHI - LIRS AEBERA
30,0008 7T © $fkat &l fLE RS 57 o

hEALZ MHEARRTEALESSH
BT E B M2 SUE ARG B - %
Fat 2 HBRER A BEERHR ©
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A IS RAR M ()

36 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT
The Group leases certain of its office properties, factory
premises, and warehouses under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for office properties, factory premises,
and warehouses are negotiated for terms ranging from one
to twenty years.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

TR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

F2EFSF(BRERERMF)

36 REHNEAE
AEERBELBORIREETROZYE -
THYLRER - BATYE THPEREA
BT 2 ABMA—E-+HEFE -

R2017F12 A318 « NREBRE AT BUEL &
XN T YRR EAS T 2 R R &K & 42 Za N
T

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHBxT FH&T
33,057 16,047
403 2,815
33,460 18,862

37 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end
of reporting date:

Contracted, but not provided for: BTV B R -
— Plant and machinery - B Reas

— Buildings -1&F

- Land )

37 BAREIE
AREEHIRE B EIRA A TR ARE -

2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FET
72,844 9,433
43,018 653
1,219 1,140
117,081 11,226
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R BTSRRI ()

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2017, Man Yue Holdings Inc. had a
44.09% equity interest in the Company as the single largest
shareholder. The ultimate controlling party of the Company
is Ms. Kee Chor Lin, a director of the Company, which her
principal place of business at Unit 03, 6/F., Habour Centre
Tower 2, 8 Hok Cheung Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

38 BEALRS
72017412 A31H * Man Yue Holdings Inc. A
B-RARBERF DA AR 44.09% B A
o ARAZBIIERA T AR AR ESLEE
Tt EFEZEMEATBNEAWBNEGS
SEMEB O H61B03E -

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed in Note 12, the
Group had the following material transactions with its
joint ventures and the associate:

(a) BRPEL1I2FERZZ PN REBMEAESE
TERBERRZEARZNT

2017 PAONNS)
20175 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Joint ventures: BEPE

— Purchases of raw materials - BERME (i) 61,008 37,115
— Rental expenses - MA&Hx (if) 13,877 13,559
— Interest income received - BB A (i) 3,701 3,556

An associate: —MEERA -
— Sales of raw materials - HE R # (i) = 529
— Sales of finished goods - HERK G (i) = 1,384

Hret -

Notes:

(i)  The above purchases and sales of raw materials and
finished goods were determined on the basis agreed by
both parties and were conducted in the normal course of
business.

(i)  The rental was charged at rates with mark-to-market
yield.

(i)  The interest was charged at a rate of 4.90% (2016:
4.90%) per annum.

() DB E R ERMERBR R L
EHE EEEE - WRIEREXBBRRZ
PHETT

(i) BEIVEEIFHEZLEFE -

(iiy  FETHIREEA90E (20164 : 4.90F) 2
BREE -
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=
wa

38

39

PR M ()

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Remuneration for key management personnel is set
out in Notes 13 and 14 of the consolidated financial
statements.

(c) The loans to a joint venture, amounts due from and

due to joint ventures are set out in Notes 24 of the

consolidated financial statements of the Group.

(d) None of the above related party transactions falls under

the definition of connected transaction or continuing

connected transaction as defined in chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group has certain financial instruments, including bank
loans and cash and short term deposits, of which main
purpose is to fund the Group’s operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk
and credit risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

(a) Foreign Currency Risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
USD, Renminbi and Japanese Yen. The Group manages
these risks by entering forward exchange contracts
to mitigate a proportion of its currency risk exposures
with reference to the cash flow statements. The Group
does not speculate on foreign currencies. There were
no forward exchange contracts used by the Group and
recognised as derivative financial instruments as at 31
December 2016 and 2017.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI EEER AT

38

39

BEATRSZ (H)

(b) =ZEEBAB ZFHMENLRE B RE M
F13%14 -

() BTy MALLEZER BEKENSE
BEEZFAENARE ZGREPBRER
FizE24 -

(d) BiBABALRSHMEBR ETRAE
VUABREZ ER G RIFERER S ©

MBEREREBEREE

FEBEEETeRIA(BERITEFUREAS
KEEER) - TR BN RAREZ EHRME
Bx - ARBELEREMERMEERBE(E
WESERRENESEALER) HERNE
BREL -

RAAEBERIAZ EBARBIMNEER  F
*ER  ADELERRERER - EF RS
R e SR A AR 2B - S0 T SO -

(a) s B
REEATHEEEREZREAINE (B
ARG EBAEENREEEIIINZE
BORHEZ SHE RIRMEATE £ 2 RIKARK -
ENERRRS S -  EEZRARZER
FBAFETL ARBEKHE - AEERE
WE&MEBRF R HINES B LURIK IG5
BERE {HmEEZERE - AEEY
M) EINE o FA20164F 22017412 A 31
B AEEWERBRAIMNES LB ER
BITESRTA -
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39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39 BIXERKMEEEERBE(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Foreign Currency Risk (Continued) (a) shEsmBs (%)

Sensitivity Analysis BRBEDN

The following table indicates the instantaneous change TRINFEAREENRERRFEEEKR
in the Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) in Rz INE[ERPZ A ES) - BREBE
Japanese Yen denominated cash and bank balance and o R Be R =M AREE R A A
trade and bills payables, Renminbi denominated cash (RIRBEF)HME AEER S MRTTE
and bank balance, trade receivables and trade and bills % ENEIERRER ARK:HER
payables and USD denominated receivables from group © RIRITHER  BRE SEFARENE
companies that would arise if foreign exchange rates SEFNEBEUARBEWREERKE NG 2E
to which the Group has significant exposure at the TLRTERUBARE RIS E A 7 #8) o Lt -
end of the reporting period had changed at that date, AEBBRKZBTEE T HBMEERE IS
assuming all other risk variables remained constant. SZETHEMEM T MESHEATE -

In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States
dollar would be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the United States dollar against
other currencies.

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in Japanese in profit
Yen rate before tax
= MRBLAT
ExLEH A M,
(~B&) OR2)
% HK$'000
Aot THET
2017 20175
If Hong Kong dollar had weakened BT H BEERT®
against Japanese Yen 5 (1,205)
If Hong Kong dollar had strengthened i 7 35% B BIEX -7t
against Japanese Yen (5) 1,205
2016 20164
If Hong Kong dollar had weakened BT H BEERTRF
against Japanese Yen 5 (196)
If Hong Kong dollar had strengthened i 7 5% B BIE= -7t
against Japanese Yen (5) 196

- /_
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39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39 BIXEKMESEEERBE(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Foreign Currency Risk (Continued) (a) HMEsE B (48)
Sensitivity Analysis (Continued) BREST(E)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in RMB rate before tax
AR BRBiAD
E=L# e R0,
/(&) OR2)
% HK$'000
Bakt FET
2017 20174
If Hong Kong dollar had weakened M8 T 4, A RS [ & g
against RMB 5 50
If Hong Kong dollar had strengthened &t AREER FF+-
against RMB (5) (50)
2016 20164
If Hong Kong dollar had weakened M8 T 5, A RS [ R g
against RMB 5 (1,828)
If Hong Kong dollar had strengthened &t AREER FF+-
against RMB (5) 1,828
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in USD rate before tax
Epv RRBi Al
ExLEH A M,
(~B&) Om2)
HK$'000
FHET
2017 2017%
If RMB had weakened against USD AR H TR T 5 20,770
If RMB had strengthened against USD A RN ECER HF+- (5) (20,770)
2016 2016%F
If RMB had weakened against USD AR HETEER T 5 21,084
If RMB had strengthened against USD {4 A RIEH ZE T fEX FF (5) (21,084)
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39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Foreign Currency Risk (Continued)

Sensitivity Analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit before tax and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the Group
which are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group's presentation currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2016.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group's interest rate profile as
monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

To manage any exposure arising from the changes in
market interest rates, the Group enters into interest
rate swap, in which the Group agrees to exchange, at
specified intervals, the difference between fixed and
variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to
an agreed-upon notional principal amount. This interest
rate swap is not qualified as hedging for accounting
purposes.

39 MBEREEREREEE)

(a) Hhasmbe (&)

BRED (&)
EREFNZAEREEANEE
BT m?’F‘J&%m(LARQZIﬂﬁ
ZAR R EEE  RIEZEY
RZEXRBERBTT

FREDMBRIMEEXBBCEAIAE
R EAKERAZERITA  M&EFe
mﬂlﬁfiﬁilﬁéiﬁiﬁﬁiﬁéwl\Eﬂ

B BREABERAIEBERAZY

SNERSEHE 2 ANE B A QR H R R
FEM IR - BN T T BREREFINE
B BERERAEE2EEMBESE 2
ZHE - BRE20165F 18R 2 BAEETT -

(b) FREE

AERZNXRAREIZARBEEES

T;u%%ﬂf‘ﬁ&ﬁzlmﬁﬁhﬁgZ%Eﬁ I
HAREE BRI © IR EN X E R &
=R - %@%?’%ZK;‘%%IJKEER%%

RT3 -

REEMGNEESH BT AR -
BRI A RIS HIE 4 o Bkt - NEE
RETREARBELEREZLABEATHE
AESZERBRY RS R o e
FFENME - MEREHENTTEERIE

i o

Annual Report 2017 G 4R

[31::3

»

g

Eﬁr »
¥

m
o
&

189



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Interest Rate Risk (Continued)

(i) Interest Rate Profile
The following table details the interest rate profile
of the group’s net borrowings (as defined above)
at the end of the reporting period.

39 MI¥EKREEBEZERBUR(E)

(b) FIZREE

(i)  FIRER

TRHANAKBEEEFHE(EEE L
XORBWERRZFEER

2017
20174
Effective
interest
rate
BRAI=E
% HK$'000
Aot FHET

2016
20164
Effective
interest

HK$°000
THET

Fixed rate borrowings: EEFEEE :
Loans to a joint venture BT EeEE
2B 4.90 % (80,083) 4.90% (71,257)
Variable rate borrowings: ZEF|REE :
Bank loans RITER 3.49% 847,079 3.29% 809,748
Total net borrowings g g¥E 766,996 738,491
Sensitivity analysis BRBEDW

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group’s profit before tax and retained profits
by approximately HK$847,000 (2016: increase/
decrease the Group's loss before tax and retained
profits by HK$810,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit before
tax (and retained profits) that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group’s profit before tax (and
retained profits) is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed
on the same basis as 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity Risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board.
The group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and readily realisable marketable securities
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and
the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

A U RR M ()

39 BIEREEEEREEE)

(0 "RBERMR

AEERNENEEEREERAZREE
2 BRASABZENRERSmRERE
HREFTRMEBEZER  AGTHRA
ExeltE - FAEBZBRAEMERA
MBEEHRREBERNZERER
NEREFFERASRHEBRAIBRERZ
BEES ARAXTZERBEBIGRER
AHEERE  AERNEMRER RS
BeHg e

TRIRAEENRERRZIFTESR
BERTEZRABZHTANIHRB
N EBRBEORBARSRE (BERE
MMEAEZF BN - SARF B R
FHE - BIARIRE R ZBRITHERFE) A
RASEAXN 2 &P AMFE

2017
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
20174
EHRRBEBERER
Within Carrying
1 year amount
or on at 31
demand Over December
—E R 1 year Total M12A31H
RER BBE—F et ZEREE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET THET FET
Derivative financial instruments $74 4T A 3,680 2,540 6,220 6,156
Trade and bills payables BN EZERRER 225,069 - 225,069 225,069
Other payables and accrued H A e 5RIA

liabilities RIEETBE 98,857 - 98,857 98,857
Due to joint ventures JE AL A 39,465 - 39,465 39,465
Bank loans RITEMR 728,167 131,980 860,147 847,079
Dividends payable FETRR S 43 - 43 43
1,095,281 134,520 1,229,801 1,216,669
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39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

39 MI¥EKREEBEZERBUR(E)

(c) Liquidity Risk (Continued) (o) RBESLESR(E)
2016
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
20164
BHRIRIREN
Within Carrying
1 year amount
or on at 31
demand Over December
—FR 1 year Total M12A31H
R Esk iR —F FE ZBREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FHT FAT FAT
Derivative financial instruments $74£ &g T A 3,875 4,258 8,133 7,994
Trade and bills payables BB ZERREE 183,419 - 183,419 183,419
Other payables and accrued H b e 3B L fEET
liabilities I=NEd 86,204 - 86,204 86,204
Due to joint ventures JEE S IR 19,751 - 19,751 19,751
Bank loans RITER 579,084 264,857 843,941 809,748
Dividends payable FERTAR B 43 - 43 43
872,376 269,115 1,141,491 1,107,159
(d) Credit Risk (d) &R

192

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if
a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Group's
credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, loan to joint ventures, other financial
assets and deposits with banks. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group
manages the credit risk by setting up a team responsible
for the determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group
has entered into credit insurance contracts with the
Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation and
other financial institutions to mitigate the credit risk
arising from the receivable balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M ()

39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39 BIKEREEBEREEK(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Credit Risk (Continued) (d) EERb (&)

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual HEWE FEARLEMERREmS @ A
credit evaluations are performed on all customers SESHMAERBR —TeEEELE
requiring credit over a certain amount. These PHETEBIEETE - ZF5 T hEERRE
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of P S B AR RN 50 8% DA K 3R B A5 R BE
making payments when due and current ability to N WEEEFPZREEHEEF EEM
pay, and take into account information specific to EHAEEIRR - BWE SRR —BHREE
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic HHEIE90HAEIER - EFME » AEEYW
environment in which the customer operates. Trade MEmMER 2 ERm -

receivables are due normally within 90 days from the
date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

Investments are normally only entered into for long BWE—RERRARRETL - PRITES
term strategic purposes. Transactions involving MIACZRSHEARIFEEIRZHEFA
derivative financial instruments are with counterparties BT - ERREEESEENL  EEE
of sound credit standing. Given their high credit BHEMRESFIIEREARTHAT -

standing, management does not expect any investment
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly AEEFEY EERRFEXERPE
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather BIRFMEMIER P LT F R 2 T BIR
than the industry or country in which the customers P - B - A EEE R % S
operate and therefore significant concentrations of EXER  BEXrEELEREETZEER
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant b2 o RIREEAR - BULE 5 AR E At fE
exposure to individual customers. At the end of the WFRIEBREF11.23% (20165 : 1.79%) &
reporting period, 11.23% (2016: 1.79%) and 22.64% 22.64%(2016%F : 8.87%) 7 Rl AEKRAE
(2016: 8.87%) of the total trade and other receivables BHRARENAARRFE ZFE -

was due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees REBWEBEREME MM AEREZ(E
which would expose the Group to credit risk. BB ER o

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s FHAASEAZBRWE SRF L EME
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other WHRIBEE 2 EERR 2 S(LEBRGEE
receivables are disclosed in Note 26 to the consolidated W TSR M 26F 2 88 o

financial statements.
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39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Capital Management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders. The Group prices its products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and secures
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure and strives to maintain a balance
between higher shareholder returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure

39 MI¥EKREEBEZERBUR(E)

(e) EXERE

AEEEAERE T ZARABRAEE
BRENEERSEREEELE  BER
PR A B3R R AR A SR A AR KA
& o AREREERKFRLEASERR
AR5 E BA RIZA IR A IS RLE o

AEEESIEREERGEBETRT R
B BB HERSEEKRFZ
KRR RERERFZEARRERZ B
HEREBZEZ T LEARKERELZ

BHEAERELRE -

in the light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of a net debt to capital ratio. For this purpose, the
Group defines net debt as interest-bearing debt (which
includes bank loans), less cash and cash equivalents and

time deposit with banks.

During 2017, the Group's strategy is to strengthen
or maintain the net debt to equity ratio which was
unchanged from 2016, at the range of 20% - 30%. In
order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise

new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratios at 31

December 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

RITER

Bank loans
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Less: Time deposits over 3 months J& : | HI A #8:8 =18 A

to maturity when placed 2 TEETERR
Net debt BEF8
Equity attributable to equity RARIRIERA A
holders of the Company e R
Net debt to capital ratio BB F RS AR AL &

B RE KRS EEY

AEBENEEFRERA L RIERERA
BARERBZER UM E - AEEKE
BEFRAERFEER(BERITER
WIRE MIRE EEWARIRITERFR -

20174 » AEE Z KK RILRRAERE
EFEEBRAL R - ZHERE2016FF
N TF20%E30% © BIRFFAFHEERE
& REESEHBABRRIKN ZBE
B BOTHRD  RERATEER £
SHEBREIHEEENREAE -

A20175FE K%20165F12 83180 - AEEKH
BEBEFHEEBRALENT ¢

2017 2016

20175 20164

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

30 847,079 809,748
28 (312,702) (283,116)
28 = (7,775)
534,377 518,857

1,416,507 1,242,410

37.7% 41.8%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f) Fair Value Measurement

0]

Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at
Fair Value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

The Group engaged external valuer to perform
valuations for the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (2016: available-for-sale
unlisted securities) which is categorised into level
3 of the fair value hierarchy. The external valuer
report directly to the management. A valuation
report with analysis of changes in fair value
measurement is prepared by external valuer at
each interim and annual reporting date, and is
reviewed and approved by management.

A U RR M ()

39 BEMEEBSRRBER(E)
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[z AT S A SR B R A (A
EATABRBARE - TAE
R \BBEELRETISER
ZBABIE

- F=EHE: ERERTAIER
BABBIEZARE

REEZEINMEEMBEOEARR
BEERE=ZBZUAABEFAEBRZ
SRMEE2016%F : AlEHEIELET
BH)VETHE - AN HEMEER
EERERE - I AR EFEEHS
T 2 [ ERE B INEE B A & A A
LREEREONRE  ERAEEES
B R A o

Annual Report 2017 G 4R

195



196

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f) Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at

Fair Value (Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in level

2 fair value measurements

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated
amount that the Group would receive or pay to
terminate the swap at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account current interest rates
and the current creditworthiness of the swap
counterparties. The Group engaged external valuer
to perform valuations for the interest rate swaps
which is categorised into level 2 of the fair value

hierarchy.

The following table presents the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value at year end.

Assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss —
non current

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss —
current

Total assets
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments:

— Interest rate swap

Total liabilities

aE

PYAVR IR N (=5
ZEBMEE
i)

PYASHIEEIAN SE
ZERMEBEE
—n&

BERE

afE

ITEERMTA

- MR HAH

BERE

39 MI¥EKREEBEZERBUR(E)

()

D AERTE(E)

0]

RAREFECERMEEREEE)

MAEFEE-_ERRAZMGER
i K2 A B8
NERPENZ AR ERARERR
EERWERS ST AR HE A A2
AEt e KA REREOHTFHIZ
RITHERRITEER - AREZREI)
BEEMRIERAIAEBRE_E
ZM R EIA KM TIA(E -

TRENAEBRFLEBIRARET]
RS THE-

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2017 categorised into
R2017F12A31BZ2 AABEHESER

Level 1

EF—fE
HK$°000
TERT

Total
#st
HK$'000
THET

Level 3
H£=E
HK$'000
FET

Level 2
E=E
HK$’000
THET

- - 23,374 23,374
36 - - 36
36 - 23,374 23,410

- 6,156 - 6,156

- 6,156 - 6,156
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39 BIXERKMEEEERBE(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f) Fair Value Measurement (Continued) (f) AREFEGE)

(i) Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at () BROAREFEZERMEEREEE)
Fair Value (Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in level ARBEFEEF-_EBAEAZGHER
2 fair value measurements (Continued) oy R A BB ()

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2016 categorised into
M2016F12A31B 2 AR BFEDEAR

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—=Z E_[ EHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHT Tt
Assets BE
Available-for-sale investments At HHEIRE - - 14,462 14,462
Financial assets at fair value AR EEFAER
through profit or loss ZEmMEE 45 - - 45
Total assets BEBE 45 - 14,462 14,507
Liabilities =N
Derivative financial instruments: 744 & T A :

— Interest rate swap - FIRBEE LY - 7,994 - 7,994
Total liabilities AfERE - 7,994 - 7,994
During the years ended 31 December 2016 and REZE2016F %2017F 128318 1LFE - F—
2017, there were no transfers between Level 1 BRE_EB7EYEER  syEBAREHE=
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The o NEE 7 BR AR BRER 7 shE BIRER

group’s policy is to recognise transfers between NAEBRZER -

levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.
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39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f) Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

0]

Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at
Fair Value (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

39

MRS EE R R RBEK(E)

Valuation techniques

fEE R

Key management
insurance contracts
FEFRERBRER BRBReRE
Equity securities
hENE MBReNE
The fair value of insurance contracts is determined
using the discounted cash flow model. The
duration of the cash flows and the specific timing
of inflows and outflows are determined by
conditions in accordance with the terms of the
respective insurance contracts. The periodic cash
flow is estimated as gross redemption value and
interest income less surrender charges. The series
of periodic net income for the contracting periods
is then discounted. The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to the discount rate. As
at 31 December 2017, it is estimated that with
all other variables held constant, a decrease/
increase in discount rate by 1% would have
increased/decreased the Group's profit or loss by
HK$1,546,338 (2016: HK$1,661,124).

The fair values of the Group’s unlisted equity
securities measured at fair value through profit
or loss are based on cash flows discounted using
a rate based on the market interest rate and the
risk premium specific to such investments. As
at 31 December 2017, it is estimated that with
all other variables held constant, a decrease/
increase in discount rate by 1% would have

increased/decreased the Group’s profit or loss by

HK$520,231 (2016: HK$88,661).
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Discounted cash flow

Discounted cash flow

BAREFECERMEEREEE)

FRF=BEARENEZER

Significant

unobservable Weighted
inputs average
BEARH

B ABE InREFE
Discount rate 2.32%
BRER & 2.32%
Discount rate 19.0%
BRER % 19.0%

RBERZARENRARERS R
EXETE - BERE 2R KA

T 2 B TR IRIE S RE AR
ERZIEFETE - THESRENH
STABEREERNBBARERE
FA o &RAM 2 — @R T EHFWAT
TUASTEE - A EFT SRR RTIR
MEFE - M2017F12A318  £F7
EHEMBEMERFTEZBRT « Gat
HAIR T EFA1% - 3800, 8
DA & B 18 25 1,546,338 78 7T (2016
& 1,661,12487T) °

REBEBUAR BT ABRFEZIEE
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FIRBIE 2B ERENIETHBRE
2 REBEERE - BR2017F12 A31
H ERAEMEEESTE2BR
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B0, > A £ BB 25520,23178 7T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f) Fair Value Measurement (Continued) f) DAREFEE)

39 MiI¥EKREEBEZERBUR(E)

0]

Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at @

Fair Value (Continued)

The movements during the period in the balance
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as

follows:

Key management insurance
contracts:

TEEBEERBER :

BAREFECERMEEREEE)
BEFF B 2 AEHNEIR

2016
20164

HK$°000

THET

Opening balance under HKFRS 9 RIBRE BT B s 2R

(1January 2017) FOSRETE 2 K

(2017%1A18) 13,285 11,821

Additions NE = 1,579
Net unrealised gains or losses BN IBRS R 2 KRB E

recognised in profit or loss during &g Spi=beit

the period 758 -
Net unrealised gains or losses AP E fh 2 E A

recognised in other comprehensive R ARERU S

income during the period SE1EFE = (115)
At 31 December M12H31H 14,043 13,285
Total gains or losses for the period sFAE MR ERA

included in other comprehensive 2 HAR S s B 1B 4R R

income = (115)
Total gains or losses for the period RN ERITFTHE

included in profit or loss for assets ZBEAER

held at the end of the reporting ZHAR S sk 1R 4R R

period 758 -
Equity securities IR E 25
Opening balance under HKFRS9 RIEE BT RE 2R

(1 January 2017) FOSRE T 2 YK

(2017%1A18H) 1,177 830

Changes in fair value recognised in AR B ER

profit or loss during the period ZRREE 7,800 -
Changes in fair value recognised in BRREMZERA

other comprehensive income ERZ R EES)

during the period - 368
Exchange realignment PE 3 R 354 (71)
At 31 December M12A318 9,331 1,177
Total gains or losses for the period FFAHEMEREA

included in other comprehensive ZHAR S sk R 4R R

income 354 297
Total gains or losses for the period MRS B RIEE

included in profit or loss for assets ZBEABR

held at the end of the reporting ZHIR R s B e saEE

period 7,800 -
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39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

39 PBERERERFERBER(E)

(f) Fair Value Measurement (Continued) ) DREFTE(E)
(ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost were
not materially different from fair values as at 31
December 2016 and 2017

(i) EFEUAREBEIRZEMEERE
BARE
VARG AR S S P AN B BR 2 AR Bl 3t
TAZERAEBEEN2016F &20174F
RANBZARBETEERER -

40 RESERVES 40 #1E

AEBHERE

Reserve Movement of the Group

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RARREREARE

200

Balance at 1 January 2017 ROTEIRIEZES 165,458 1971 2,800 15,151 1819 98,354 56,419 (162) 792,985 1,194,855
Adjustment on inita application HRERERIRES

of HKFRS 9 B B0% 7 BR - - - - (1.879) - - - (5,835) (1.714)
Adjusted balance on 1 January 2017 20171518

JEEREs 165,458 191 2,800 75,151 - 98,354 56,419 (162) 787,150 1,187,141

Profit for the year TEREH - - - - - - - - 48177 8177
Other comprehensive income: Efp2ERA -
Asset revaluation surplus, netof tax — FRFUEKEEE B - - - 4,605 - - - - - 4,605
Remezsurement of et defined S AERN

benefit asss HEAE = - s s = S S = 6 6
Change n fair value of TELERENE

avalable-for-sale investments g9 - = s s = = = = - -
Curtency ranslation differences EXzE

- Group -K&E - - - - - 10570 - - - 120570

- Joint ventures -5ERE - - - - - 8453 - - - 8453
Total comprehensive income forthe — EZ2017£12 83181

year ended 31 December 2017 EEAANGEE - - - 4,605 - 19 - - 4818 181811
Employee share option scheme: [EREREE:

- Share option forfeited -EHEERE - (95) - - s - - - % i,
Transferred to retained profits BEERDAT - - - - - - 2,605 - (2,605) -
Balance at 31 December 2017 ROTEAIB LGS 165458 1876 2,800 19,756 - 01311 59,024 (162) 832823 1368952

Share

premium
Ry
HK$'000

T

Share
option
BhE
HK$'000
Thn

Contributed
surplus’
EON-
HK$'000
Thn

Asset
revaluation
reserve
BEEf
Rl
HKS000
Tin

Available-
forsale
investment
revaluation
Teserve
e
REEHRE
HKS'000
Tin

Exchange
fluctuation
reserve
EiRE
e
HKS'000
ThR

Mainland
China
reserve
funds?
hEm
fifEer
HKS'000
Tin

Retained
profits
REEH
HKS'000
Tin

Other
reserve
HibGfE
HK$'000
Tin

Total
3t
HKS'000
Tin
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

40 RESERVES (CONTINUED) 40 #E(E)

Reserve Movement of the Group (Continued) REBRESE (E)

Attributabl olders of the Company
AFIREREARL
Available-
forsale Mainland
Asset investment  Exchange Ching
revaluation  revaluation fluctuation reseve

Share  Contributed Tesenve Teseve funds? Other Retained
opt os'  AEEfR { ks e Teserve profits

B Bh fEE = HhgE  R2NH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§000
B TEt Tt Thr  TAr TR ThR
Benceat |l 2016 RvieEIAIAZER 1680 255 2800 65 165 DBLIB S0 (16) S0 1343

Profit for the year TEEHT - - - - - - - - (14905 (14905
Other comprehensive income: ~— Z42EH A -
Asset revaluation surplus, MhEREEER RS

net of tax - - - (1,386) - - - - - (1380)
Remeasurement of net defined B8Rz

benefit assets EfAxSE - - - - - - - - 1 1
Change in fair value of MREEREDLE

avalable-forsale investments — 7£8 - - - - 254 - - - - 254
Currency translation differences B3 28

- Group - 1£E - - - - - (125137 - - - (125137

- Joint ventures -REM% - - - - - (8311) - - - (8311)

- An associate - LT - - - - - (381) - - - (381)
Total comprehensive income HEWI6F12A318L

for the year ended EE/2ENREE

31 December 2016 - - - (1,386) 54 (133829 - - (14138 (149,005)
Employee share option scheme:  (EBERIEHE:

- Share aption forfeited -BHEERE - (554) - - - - - - 554 -

Share repurchased - iE) (404) - - - - - - - - (404)
Transferred to retained profits ~ ERZREER - - - - - - 489 - (489) -

Balance at 31 December 2016 0165123318 2488 165458 197 2800 75151 1879 98354 56419 (162) 792985 1,194,855

1 The Group’s contributed surplus represents the difference ! REB 7 HABMIEFFKENIE QR 2 ROEE
between the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries B AT B R ARG TR A RRHEE
acquired over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued P

in exchange therefor.

# Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Mainland # RIEP B AAERER AR - REERFER
China, a portion of the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries K 2 AT E SO RN S EREERE A
which are established in Mainland China has been transferred EES - EBAZ IR -

to Mainland China reserve funds which are restricted as to use.

/ |
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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41 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

41 FRATUBRARKHEEEE

rEERBERE(H)

Reserve Movement of the Group (Continued)

IR W

Statement of financial position

202

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000

HK$'000
THET TET

Non-current assets RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIEE 63,901 63,901
Available-for-sale investments A ERE - 3,961
Financial assets at fair value AR AR ERBZRIER

through profit or loss ZERMEE 4,114 -
Total non-current assets EMBEERE 68,015 67,862
Current assets REBEE
Due from subsidiaries WM B AT Z 58 634,968 632,587
Prepayments B FRIAE 1,619 1,685
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFED 211 269
Total current assets MEVEERE 636,798 634,541
Current liabilities REEE
Due to subsidiaries FEHB AT 2 A 407,964 398,548
Other payables and accrued liabilities HibENFE N ETEE 1,916 2,611
Dividends payable FEATAR B, 43 43
Total current liabilities BB EAE 409,923 401,202
Net current assets REAEEE 226,875 233,339
NET ASSETS EEFRE 294,890 301,201
EQUITY i
Share capital A& % 47,555 47,555
Reserves ] 247,335 253,646
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 294,890 301,201

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED E#¥RHZEBER AT




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

41 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

41 ARFMBRRARRFEEZE (R)

(CONTINUED)
Available-
for-sale
investment
revaluation
reserve
Share Share Contributed  wtH&  Retained
premium option surplus RE profits Total
RARE BRE SARE EfRE REEH @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TR THEL TR
At 1 January 2017 P017F1 A8 2 65 165,458 1,971 63,623 328 22,266 253,646
Adjustment on initial application of S NERE BT KREES
HKFRS 9 FIH AR - - - (328) 328 -
Adjusted balance on 1 January 2017 R017F1 A1 2SR 165,458 1971 63,623 - 22,594 253,646
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (6,216) (6,216)
Employee share option scheme: [EEEREE
— Share options forfeited -DREERE - (95) - = = (95)
At 31 December 2017 2017812A318 165,458 1,876 63,623 - 16,378 247,335
At 1 January 2016 #2016F1 718 165,862 2,525 63,623 277 37,767 270,054
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (15,501) (15,501)
Change in fair value of AEEEREL
available-for-sale investments MEES - - - 51 - 51
Employee share option scheme: [EEm iR -
Share options forfeited BERRE - (554) - - - (554)
Re-purchase of shares BERG (404) - - - - (404)
At 31 December 2016 0164128317 165,458 1971 63623 N8 22066 253646
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=
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41

42

43

PR M ()

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefore. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), a company may make distributions
to its members out of the contributed surplus in certain
circumstances.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in Note 4(v)(i) to the consolidated financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 21 June 2016, the Group entered into a sales and
purchases agreement with Yageo Corporation to acquire the
15.74% equity interest of Luminous Town. As a result, the
Group’s equity interest in Luminous Town increased from
43.16% to 58.90% and obtained control of Luminous Town.
Luminous Town became a subsidiary of the Group.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Group.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI EEER AT

41

42

43

KRB BRR KRR HERE (F)

KRB ZEABGIEFTEENB AR ZRD AR
BB ARRNERRRDMETZARER
MHEEZHE - RIEAFE1981F R AEERT
) REAER TIHER T HEA RO KT
o

BRhEFRERECROIERMARITRBREZAR
B E—THERLEEVBRRMEAVOIAE
AR RERZ MRS Z GFTHK - 2R
R RERBEEE TR ERERMEER - X
WEBZBRECERRCNE  NERERE

A o

E

201656 218 » AEEHEERMNBERA
RIFEEAR - WEEHET15.74% M -
Ett - NEBRIBNE T 2 RIER43.16%I5E
58.90% * BERUBINE T2 2HiE - BIET
RAREBEMBAR -

BZE2017F12A3MBLFEECHEM
B RERZIERT ~ FTEARRE
AR E

HEZSUBKBRETIZEBH  BEEMASR
WL BIEET RHET LR - ZEIERT R4
REZE2017F12A318IEFEHARES - BR
ZEMERRLFERA - U T ABATFEEREE T
B BRIZER -



43 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

Notes to the Consoli

43
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

BRI BREEREISHEIEFALRA

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based payment: Classification and

measurement of share-based payment transactions
BRMBRELENE2RISET A ARND BER 25K : Akt AEEEZ
NRR Gz RS ]

Amendments to HKAS 40 Investment property: Transfers of
Investment property
EBGHERFI0REFT A IREWE - BRIREWE]

HK(IFRIC)22 Foreign currency transaction and advance consideration
ER(EBRMBHREZREBEES)) REERRINER F RFEARE]

HKFRS 16 Leases
B BmELERNE 1655 1HE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of
the new standards which may have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for HKFRS 15, the actual
impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards may
differ as the assessment completed to date is based on the
information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standards are initially
applied in the Group’s interim financial report for the six
months ended 30 June 2018. The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the transition options,
until the standards are initially applied in that financial report.

dated Financial Statements (Continued)

R BTSRRI ()

BE2017F12A31BLEECE MG
B RERZIEET - FTERRZE
2RSS E(1E)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTE5I A8z BBk 2
EEHEEX

1 January 2018
2018F1H1H

1 January 2018

2018F1/1H

1 January 2018
20181 A1H

1 January 2018
2018F1H1H

1 January 2019
20191 A1H

AEBE T EZEBR] - ERIRRERVIXER
HIMTEHELE CFE - 5 AR EEHRIFEI 2
AlzETHEAEHRAVBRRERNEAT
2 GTERPYE  E— PBR T XGR -
BEHE BN BHREERE 155 2T EE R
TR BARES TR ZEAAEEE /TS
ERAER - MERNER BT &N

Bl RAREBEEZE20185F6 308 IL/NEA 2+
HR TSRS B X JE A sZ S A R AT IR AT BE stk 31 EL
FE  AREETARERBH S HBURRIE(RE
BERE) BRI XERRZYEHRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR RS RAR M R (]

43 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 43 BZE2017F 128318 L FECE M

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue from
construction contracts.

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group has
identified the following areas which may be affected:

(a) Timing of revenue recognition
The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed
in note 4(u). Currently, revenue from the sale of goods
is generally recognised when the risks and rewards of
ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good or
service in the contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations
in which control of the promised good or service is
regarded as being transferred over time:

(i)  When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

(i)  When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in progress)
that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced;

(i)  When the entity’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI EEER AT

BERERZIERT T ERA R 2E
Z A RERE ()

BRMBHREENEISHEEFEOWNE
EEMBRELNEISHREYL —EARREFE
WA ZERAIER - BRV B HREERNFE 155
ERIRE 2 WAER (BB EFHERIE 1855
WAl BERREEHEEMREHRRBESZ
WA - ARBEBEERENRIZEEN ]
EPEARESNZIRMAGFRE) -

RIBES TR ZaHE - ARBECERIA T AIRER

EllpZ il

(a) BMARRZEE
RS 2 WA RER BRI M 5 4(u) P IR EE -
BAl - BHEEYMBZRA—RNAE
R R R BB ER PR TIAER -

REBBPBREERFE 155 - WATIR
BEIREBENFFIFAEEMIREZ 2
TERS T OARER - BABM B IMEERIE 155,
BBl P GE B SR AR TS 2 R AR R BE
BRETNEBBZ =B

BRENN  BERBEIRNE
PR MFRIR M FI3

U]

m ok
B W

\
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(i) EEBZBEOTABREINR AR
RIAERAREBZ TP EE
(PlanfESm)

(iy EEBIBEATAVERE—BYEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

43 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

(a) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)
If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not
fall into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15
the entity recognises revenue for the sale of that good
or service at a single point in time, being when control
has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
is only one of the indicators that will be considered in
determining when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue standard
is not likely to have significant impact on how it
recognises revenue from sale of goods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

As disclosed in note 4(i), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and accounts
for the lease arrangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group enters into some leases
as the lessor and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under a
lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no
longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease
the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

A U RR M ()

43 BZE2017F12A3MBLEECHEM

BERERZIERT » HETER K RE
Z A RERE ()

BBMBEREENFISHFFEOWE

(%)

(a) WARER R (%)
e DGEIEERTRYTBIMEMNZE
=RBIEN - IREEEM B REERES
5 BN B (BIREG#EE
FOBLHE B S RIS HERUA - PREHER
Lk EREBEASNEEIENEEREE
B T IAZ B2 i —IRIEIR -

AEECFEFRALR - ZFERLE
HonERHEEERMBRAERERY
o,

BRMBHELEAE 1655 HE

I AT - AREREHEENER
BMEMELEEHE  YREEEZVBEHHEE
ZHREIT TR &R - AEEEREHEAR
Hi \MERARARTZETHEE ©

BEMBREENE1RAER TS HHEAE
HEET 2 RANREEZ B RIBELERY
2 RM —BERKEEHMBERELEAE 16
% AEASTEROBREHERKLEEE - 1
R ZAITHEETAZKRR - REARRERE
BEHESFEIERUZ T B BEREANR -
BUR AR ERA A A - AT AR B R &ERER
KB ERANTEEERE  REHEZEEZ
[ERHEIEE - NP HERZEERBEER &
MARREE B BAERIEE 2N S KE
FEEENE - MIFRERABERNEHREZE R
SEEERRBLEHEMEL 2 HEMX -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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43

PR M ()

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As disclosed in note 36, at 31 December 2017 the Group's
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases amounted to HK$33,460,000, the majority
of which is payable either within 1 year or between 1 and
5 years after the reporting date. Most of these amounts
may therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with
corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted.
The Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis to
determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising
from operating lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS
16, after taking into account the applicability of the practical
expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or
terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and
the effects of discounting.

HKFRS 16 offers different transition options and practical
expedients, including the practical expedient to grandfather
the previous assessment of which existing arrangements
are, or contain, leases. If this practical expedient is chosen,
the Group will apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS
16 only to contracts that are entered into on or after the
date of initial application. If the practical expedient is not
chosen, the Group will need to reassess all of its decisions
about which existing contracts are, or contain, leases, using
the new definition. Depending on whether the Group elects
to adopt the standard retrospectively or follow a modified
retrospective method of recognising a cumulative-effect
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at the date of
initial application, the Group may or may not need to restate
comparative information for any changes in accounting
resulting from the reassessment.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI EEER AT
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BERERZIERT » HeTERKRE
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ERMKRELERFE 1655 HE |(E)
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HEAB(WHERBEREREEE) - NEEER
SR EBREE A ZERERRIREERAEE
SRS ERF 16 AR LR ILEAE
MERIRE B EL ARG  EITE AN - A
HERNE ST HIRS EFE 165 B CERLY
FEMEEZNEERABZ G -

BEEVBMELENE16REHTRBETRER
ERRBENE  BRZIMBAELHERLES
MEERRETE - MEBLEREETE
AEERERAEEMBRELNF 165 H
B EENARERRAYS BRI ZAK -
W NEREREENE  AEESHF2ERTTE
BEFTAEERRAERNREESREHEE
ZRE - MFAEBRBEFEPEAZERK
BREGIERTZEWIE - RERER B RERY
HIVIERIEL R EREME - AEET—F
BEREFIEEB NS EHEIILRE
e



Five-Year Financial Summary

hFEIEHME

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- AT AXAEEBERAGRFE 2 EEUREE - 8
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, &N IFZEIRRERME - itk a 0TI 2 &%
as extracted from the published audited financial statements is set ~ BA%#R¥*k °

out below.

Results #E

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
20175 20164 20154 20144 20134

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T FAT FAT FHET
Revenue A 1,275,923 987,027 974,421 1,186,967 1,322,182
Profit/(loss) before tax BrEATEF, (B518) 62,199 (4,460)  (37,396) 55,996 80,269
Tax Mg (16,994) (8,642) (8,442) (12,160) (19,438)
Profit/(loss) for the year RNELHEF, (E518) 45,205 (13,102)  (45,838) 43,836 60,831
Attributable to: THIB IR
— Equity holders of the — NARIRRE
Company BB A 48,177 (14,905) (45,095) 43,257 61,021
- Non-controlling interests — FEIERR R R R (2,972) 1,803 (743) 579 (190)

45,205 (13,102) (45,838) 43,836 60,831

Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests BE BERFERRRER

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
201745 20164 20154 20144 20134

HK$'000 = HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT T FHET THETT T
Total assets BERE 2,753,087 2,475,167 2,553,022 2,749,435 2,778,270
Total liabilities BERE (1,277,548) (1,162,592) (1,156,762) (1,180,290) (1,239,528)
Non-controlling interests IS R A 2R (59,032) (70,165) (4,282) (5,291) (7,411)

1,416,507 1,242,410 1,391,978 1,563,854 1,531,331
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Glossary
= P — B
AR 5

Annual Report

F

Audit Committee
ENLZEY

Board

BExg

Board Diversity Policy
EERZIUEEER

Bye-laws
NGIEE]

Company
ZAUNS]

Company Secretary
NEWE

Corporate Governance Code
eEERTA

Director(s)

B=%

EBITDA
EBITDA

E-Caps

R B ERS

EBITDA
EBITDA

ECLs
TR E R

EDLC

== E T o 28
HEFEEER

EICC
EICC

ESG

R HERER

annual report for the financial year ended 31 December 2017

HZ2017F 12 A31H I BFE 2 FERE

audit committee of the Company
RNRARZEZEZER

the board of directors of the Company

ARBZEEE

board diversity policy of the Company
RAREEFZTTEBER

bye-laws of the Company
/NS /N E

Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited
BRNMREEERAR]

company secretary of the Company
RN AN IE

Corporate Governance Code
EERTH

directors of the Company

ARBZER

earnings before interest expenses, taxation, depreciation and amortisation

AR B S - BRI E R AT B A

Aluminum Electrolytic Capacitors

BEREER

earnings before interest expenses, taxation, depreciation and amortisation

AR B~ BE - B REHATRA

Expected credit loss assessment for individual customers

RBYFFPZERERER

Electric Double Layer Capacitors

Electronic Industry Citizenship Coalition
EFTERRERA

Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE g RER

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED E#¥RHZEBER AT




ESS
EEEREER

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFRITES

ISO
ISO

LED
LED

Listing Rules
AR Al

LPG
X ay:: et

Luminous Town

Model Code
oA

MOU
Eliaispes=d

Nomination Committee

RELZES®

Polymer Caps

ESTERE
RBA
RBA

Glossary (Continued)
(1)

Energy Storage System

Greenhouse gas

]

Company and its subsidiaries
AR REKME QR

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
iz A RAMBEEBRFRITHE

independent non-executive director(s) of the Company

RRARZBIUIERTES

International Organization for Standardization

BIFR R (AR A

light-emitting diode
BHIRE

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B X P o= B AR B

liquefied petroleum gas
BALARE

Luminous Town Electric Co., Ltd.
BINEFIRHERAF

Multi-layer Polymer Capacitors
BRASS TEEERR

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
ETETAEFETESFRZNRETH

memorandum of understanding

Bl

nomination committee of the Company

ARRIZIRHEES®

Conductive Polymer Aluminum Solid Capacitors
BT TIREERERRS

Responsible Business Alliance
B ER R
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Glossary (Continued)

212

R (&)

Remuneration Committee remuneration committee of the Company

FHEES RARIZHMEES

RMB Renminbi

AR AR

RoHS European Union’s Directives on Restriction of the Use of Certain Hazardous
Substances in Electrical and Electronic Equipment

RoHS BB BRLEFRIEEEMERIES

R&D research and development

e i 7e Kl 8

SFO Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

5 R EE D) BH REIE D (FBAERIZE571%)

Stock Exchange
R 32 PR

tCO,e
F1CO B8

Year
REE

HK$/HKD
AT
TWD
B

usb
e

%
%

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBMERXGHERAT]

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
FICOEE

financial year ended 31 December 2017
BE2017F12A31BIEMBFE

Hong Kong dollar
BT
New Taiwan dollar

ek

United States dollar
=TT

per cent
Aotk
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